
Department of Transportation 
Board of Directors  

   Notice of Public Meeting 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Third Floor Conference Room 
Carson City, Nevada 
May 12, 2014 – 9:00 a.m. 

AGENDA 

1. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only.

2. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on
Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the
Meeting begins. Informational item only.

3. April 14, 2014 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
– For possible action.

4. Approval of Contracts over $5,000,000 – For possible action.

5. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action.

6. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.

7. Direct Sale – For possible action

Disposal of NDOT right-of-way located along a portion of US-95 between N. Decatur
Boulevard and North Valley View Boulevard in the City of Las Vegas, Clark County, NV
SUR 08-27

8. Direct Sale – For possible action

Disposal of NDOT right-of-way located along a portion of US-95 between N. Decatur
Boulevard and North Valley View Boulevard in the City of Las Vegas, Clark County, NV
SUR -08-28

9. Approval of Equipment Purchases in Excess of $50,000 – Fleet – For possible action.

10. Approval of Equipment Purchases in Excess of $50,000 – Tow Plows – For possible
action.

11. Approval of Equipment Purchases in Excess of $50,000 – Spreaders – For possible
action.

12. Briefing on Federal Funding Cliff – For possible action.

13. Old Business

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only.
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only.
c. Fatality Report dated April 30, 2014 – Informational item only.

14. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on
Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the
Meeting begins.  Informational item only.



 
15. Adjournment – For possible action. 

 
Notes:   
 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
• Request for such supporting materials should be made to Holli Stocks at (775) 888-7440 or 

hstocks@dot.state.nv.us. Such supporting material is available at 1263 South Stewart Street, Carson 
City, Nevada 89712 and if available on-line, at www.nevadadot.com. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Clark County    
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   200 Lewis Street 
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Governor Brian Sandoval 
Controller Kim Wallin 
Tom Skancke 
Len Savage 
Tom Fransway 
Rudy Malfabon 
Bill Hoffman 
Dennis Gallagher 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Sandoval: Good morning, everyone.  I will call the Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's meeting to order.  We will commence with Agenda Item 
No. 1, Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25-plus year employees.  
Director Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  I'll read off the names and the years of service.  
Unfortunately, I don't believe that any of these people were able to make it 
today for recognition.  First is Tony Letizia.  He was our planning chief 
down there in Southern Nevada, 30 years of service.  Scott Magruder, as we 
all know, is a beloved PIO for several years here, 26 years of service.  Daren 
Yadon, 25 years of service.  He worked in field operations for the Materials 
Division.  From District 2 Administration, the training officer, Walt 
Clemens, retired with 26 years of service.  Steve Hill, another person from 
our Materials Division, Supervisor II there, 27 years of service.  Marti 
Gallegos, he was a Supervisor III and assistant resident engineer in Las 
Vegas, 30 years of service.  Timothy Ozuna, who's a Las Vegas traffic crew, 
Maintenance Worker IV, 35 years of service.  So great career there with 
NDOT and thank him for his service.  Bobby Paul, who was an assistant 
resident engineer in District 1 in Las Vegas, 28 years of service. 

 And I wanted to also mention one that will be reported next quarter, but is 
worthy of mention, Mike Stair, who is our equipment manager, is retiring 
this month and I wanted to acknowledge him too.  But we will -- altogether 
I'm sure that the Board would wish these folks well in their retirements and 
thank them for their years of service to the Department and to the State of 
Nevada. 

Sandoval: And thank you, Director.  And that's -- I can't do the math... 
1 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Malfabon: Yeah. 

Sandoval: ...but that's a lot of years of service.   

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: I mean that's over a hundred years, easily, of combined service from those 
state employees, and that's quite a commitment to the state.  And what I 
would ask, because they weren't able to be present today, is if you would 
prepare a letter of appreciation for signature by all the Board members and 
perhaps next meeting we could all sign it and send it to them to express our 
thanks as a Board for their service. 

Malfabon: Great, Governor.  I will do that. 

Sandoval: And, actually, since they're not here, but maybe somebody will -- let's give 
them a big hand.   

Malfabon: Yeah.  Sure. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Let's move to Agenda Item No. 2, Presentation of Awards.  Director 
Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  We have several awards to give out.  The first of 
these is our Internal Partnering awards, and we have a robust partnering 
program here at the Department.  We acknowledge both the efforts of our 
construction personnel, as well as the contractor's personnel.  They're the 
team that builds the project and sees it to a successful completion. 

 The first award goes to the Moana Lane Diverging Diamond Interchange.  
And I'll acknowledge the folks that worked on that.  Shane Cocking was 
NDOT's resident engineer on that project, and Taylor Polan was the project 
engineer for Granite Construction.  Steve House from NDOT Construction, 
Devin Cartwright from NDOT Roadway Design, John O'Day from Granite 
Construction, Bernard Smith from Granite Construction and our project 
manager, Adam Searcy, recently changed hats; went to Washoe County, but 
I didn't know if he was able to make it today.   

So those are the recipients of the 580/Moana Diverging Diamond 
Interchange project award.  It was a very unique project in its configuration 
and they had a lot of intense planning for the concrete pours on that project; 

2 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

a lot of close work and coordination with the RTC project on Moana Lane.  
So that is definitely worthy of that award. 

 And I'm going to go ahead and read through the names, Governor, and then 
we'll do the photo ops later.  The next partnering award is to -- in the Elko 
area, several projects were done in coordination there.  Six projects, about 
50 miles of state roadway worked on there, on those six construction 
projects.  And several resident engineers and their contractors, I wanted to 
acknowledge them.  Michael Simmons on Crew 912.  He's the resident 
engineer.  Ken Oates on Crew 910.  Nick Senrud from Crew 908.  Boyd 
Ratliff from Crew 301.  Contractor Dan LeBlanc, from Sierra Nevada 
Construction.  Steve Blakely from Road and Highway Builders, and Jeff 
Bean from Q&D Construction.  And I wanted to also acknowledge Kevin 
Lindeman, the project manager for Q&D Construction.  All of those folks 
worked together on those several projects in the Elko area.  And some folks, 
in fact, were sent up from District 2 to assist in District 3; there was so much 
work there in that season. 

 I'm going to go on to the ASCE awards.  And, again, we'll have the folks 
come up during the photo op so it's not just one photo at one time.  But I 
wanted to acknowledge that on -- and this project you've heard about had its 
struggles with the project completion.  And I just wanted to mention, 
though, that even in those difficult projects that we have some success 
stories.  And this project was acknowledged by the American Society of 
Civil Engineers, Truckee Meadows Branch, for an outstanding achievement 
in civil engineering, structural, and geotechnical category.  The Meadowood 
Interchange project that was due to increasing traffic congestion near 
Meadowood Mall, NDOT in partnership with the City of Reno RTC and 
CH2M Hill, successfully constructed new interchanges and connector roads, 
as well as extended Meadowood Mall Way and added landscape and 
esthetic features to help alleviate congestion and enhance connectivity. 

 Now, the project was obviously opened and it's operating well, and we 
appreciate ASCE for acknowledging the efforts of the construction team.  
And in this case, Shane Cocking was our resident engineer from Crew 913.  
Thor Dyson, our district engineer; Cindy Potter, representing CH2M Hill, 
was the designer on the project.  And this one was unique in that it was 
ARRA, federal stimulus funded, so the RTC of Southern Nevada -- I mean, 

3 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

I'm sorry, RTC of Washoe County did the design with CH2M Hill then 
NDOT delivered the project on the construction phase. 

 I wanted to mention this is a unique award.  I really love the look of these 
awards that we'll hand out later.  But on March 11th and 12th, we had the 12th 
Annual Nevada Bicycle and Pedestrian Summit in Reno.  And this one is 
not in your packet, but I thought it was worthy of mention.  The Summit was 
organized by the four staff members who make up the bike and ped unit of 
NDOT planning.  These employees are Janie Fromm, Albert Jacquez, Tim 
Rowe and Bill Story.  Developed to augment statewide bicycle and 
pedestrian resources, the Summit provides the latest information on bicycle 
safety, tourism, facility planning and design, enforcement and education 
initiatives, Americans with Disability Act accommodations and the Safe 
Routes to School Program.  This annual conference is truly the state's 
foremost event for bike and ped enthusiasts, advocates, engineers, 
administrators, educators, and consultants.  The Nevada Bicycle Coalition 
would like to recognize the four NDOT staff members for their super 
teamwork in putting together this event. 

 So we'll acknowledge Janie, Albert, Tim, and Bill as we go through the 
photo opportunities.  And I wanted to also mention that we received what's 
called an ADDY Award.  We don't have an actual award with us, but I 
thought it worthy of mention in the packet for the Board.  For our Zero 
Fatalities NI Impaired Driving Campaign, we received the silver ADDY 
Award for public service TV and the silver ADDY Award for public service 
integrated campaign.  And this is in partnership with the Nevada Office of 
Traffic Safety, OTS, which is part of the Department of Public Safety in 
Nevada.  And as part of the Zero Fatalities Campaign a lot of good effective 
ads that were developed and used on televisions, billboards, social media; 
and the campaign reached 95% of Nevadans, drawing attention to the 
dangers of impaired driving.  So I wanted to acknowledge the efforts of our 
safety group and our consultants that developed that ad campaign that 
received that recognition, the silver ADDY Award in those two categories. 

 With that we'll do our photo ops. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Just one quick question on that last award.  Was that the one where 
people got their faces painted? 

4 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Malfabon: Yes, that was the one. 

Sandoval: So I stand corrected.  I mean, because I was giving a hard time to that one, 
but obviously somebody thinks that was effective.  So someone higher than 
me, so congratulations. 

Malfabon: Yeah, you and Member Fransway, I think you had concerns about that, but 
definitely reached its audience.  Thank you, Governor.  So if we could have 
the first group from the I-580/Moana Diverging Diamond Interchange.  
Shane, Taylor, Steven House, Devin Cartwright, John O'Day, Bernard 
Smith, Adam Searcy, if he's here, come up and we'll do a photo op.  If 
everybody could come down to the front.   

And while they're getting in place, I wanted to acknowledge a couple of 
things.  Controller Wallin, who is down in Las Vegas today, I wanted to 
extend my appreciation for her speaking to our Nevada Transportation 
Conference the other day.  Thank you, Kim. 

Wallin: You're welcome.  I enjoyed it.  Thank you for having me. 

Malfabon: Okay.  So the next group representing the Elko projects.  Michael Simmons, 
Ken Oates, Nick Senrud, Boyd Ratliff, Dan LeBlanc, Steve Blakely, Jeff 
Bean, and Kevin Lindeman.  So any of those present?  Nick is up in Elko, 
and Boyd is also up in Elko.  So I wanted to acknowledge their efforts on 
this.  Shane, you've got to come back up.  Here's the really cool awards.  
Albert Jacquez, Tim Rowe, Janie Fromm. 

Unidentified Male: Janie is out sick. 

Malfabon: Oh. 

Unidentified Male: She's (inaudible). 

Malfabon: That concludes our awards, and thank you, Board members, for the photo 
op. 

Sandoval: Does that complete Agenda Item No. 2, Mr. Director? 

Malfabon: Yes, it does, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  Let's move on to Agenda Item No. 3, Director's Report. 

5 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor and Board members.  Go ahead and advance to the 
next slide, please.  We'll make this very quick since we have a very full 
Agenda today.  But I wanted to update the Board on the status of the 
Highway Trust Fund.  Last Thursday, the folks on the Senate Committee 
had a press event to talk about the concurrence among their members, or 
their committee, on principles and extending the MAP-21, the transportation 
bill and reauthorization.  They stated that it requires $16 billion of additional 
revenue to maintain the current levels of transportation funding per federal 
fiscal year.  And the money has not been identified, but that's the 
responsibility of the Senate Money Committee.  So both the Money 
Committees and the Senate and the House will have to come into agreement 
of where that money is going to come from, but folks are saying that 
possibility of a general fund transfer.  The amount of that general fund 
transfer will dictate the duration of the extension of MAP-21. 

 But we're hopeful that -- we want to get a five- or six-year bill, a long-term 
bill.  And all state DOTs have carried the same message to their 
congressional delegations.  But the amount of the transfer is an issue, 
because in the House side, if there is a transfer from the general fund in the 
House, they will probably ask that there be some cuts in the budget and 
spending to fund that transfer.  So we're thinking that most likely, although 
we want a long-term solution, a short-term solution that gets passed in 
November election is more likely, but we'll keep the Board informed of any 
progress along this front.  Next slide. 

 And Bud Wright, who's the executive director of AASHTO, showed this 
slide at the Transportation Conference and it's called The Cliff, showing that 
in federal fiscal year 2015, if no action is taken to reauthorize and fund 
transportation with this additional revenue that's needed to keep it at current 
levels, that there is basically no money available for new federally funded 
projects.  So you drop from a total of about $51 billion between all those 
categories, transit, highway, safety, to basically nothing.  Now, the federal 
government would still be collecting the 18.4 cents per gallon gas tax, and 
that money would go to pay back any kind of reimbursements on projects 
that are already currently authorized and obligated. 

 So that's a concern to us.  And with the Board's approval, we will basically 
be coming back for Board approval of a plan which basically -- because it's 

6 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

going to hit the projects, Governor.  What we would be coming back to the 
Board with is some recommendations of a prioritized list of projects that 
could not be funded with no federal funds, obviously.  We have federal 
funds for some projects and some are state funded projects, which would not 
be affected, but we wanted to present to the Board this plan and let the 
Board give us their approval of that.  And then once we have this list of 
projects, we wanted to ask the Board to allow me to send a letter, or the 
Board to send a letter to our congressional delegation, saying these are the 
projects that are going to be affected if there's no action taken on the 
reauthorization of the transportation bill. 

 And next slide, please.  So I covered all this.  Next slide.  An update on 
Interstate 11, the Boulder City Bypass.  NDOT did hire Tetra Tech.  They 
were the successful consultant selected through a procurement process to 
assess naturally occurring asbestos in our construction limits.  The 
negotiated price was more than the $400,000 that the Board had approved, 
so I had it put on the Agenda this time.  That's why you have a revised sheet 
that shows that final amount that was negotiated.  The sheet that was in your 
packet was the amount that they had proposed and we negotiated that down 
from approximately $572,000 down to $499,000.  So it is a significant cost.  
Governor. 

Sandoval: No, it is.  And I think what we'll do is we'll save all the questions because I 
have many on that... 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: ...for the Agenda item. 

Malfabon: Okay.  We are having weekly coordination meetings with the RTC of 
Southern Nevada, with the Federal Highway Administration, and each of 
our consultants.  FHWA is using Volpe Research Center.  RTC of Southern 
Nevada is using Kleinfelder, and NDOT with Tetra Tech, so that we are all 
on the same page and proceeding forward.  The RTC Board is concerned 
with the delay.  This is a significant project of interest to all of Southern 
Nevada and all of Nevada, and we know that the Board was concerned.  
They actually had to delay their due date for their request for proposals for 
their design-build project.  They've used a lot of the Clark County fuel tax 

7 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

revenue, the indexing revenue for this project.  So definitely they express 
their concerns and the need to expedite, if possible. 

 They anticipated that their consultant, Kleinfelder, would have their results 
due around the end of May.  They're taking about 200 samples.  We've 
asked our environmental section to talk to Tetra Tech, our consultant, 
although they're just getting started, to find ways to accelerate their work so 
that we can shorten the amount of time it takes to fully assess how much 
naturally occurring asbestos is out there on the phase one, the NDOT portion 
of the project. 

 I wanted to ask if Tina Quigley is present?  Yes.  Tina -- you don't have -- 
okay.  Basically, it was just to underscore that RTC is willing to help out 
NDOT in any way possible.  Obviously, we're doing the coordination I 
mentioned, but definitely we've been working closely with the RTC of 
Southern Nevada and appreciate their coordination on this effort.  Next 
slide, please. 

 TIGER grants are due April 28th for the applications.  NDOT intends to 
submit one for Project NEON.  Listed some of the other entities and the 
projects that they are submitting.  RTC of Southern Nevada is submitting for 
their I-11 Boulder City phase two.  Flamingo Road, Bus Rapid Transit 
Project, Maryland Parkway and NEPA, the environmental clearance for 
Maryland Parkway and preliminary engineering.  RTC of Washoe is 
submitting for 4th Street and Prater Way.  Placer County, with the 
concurrence of Tahoe Transportation District, is submitting for Kings Beach 
Commercial Core.  Pyramid Lake Paiute Tribe, Wadsworth State Route 447 
Bypass, it really gets a lot of traffic around Burning Man event, so they're 
looking at a bypass so they can get traffic out of their town and go around it.  
ADOT is submitting for the I-15 Virgin River Gorge, which is important to 
Nevada because of all the folks that come through Utah, through that little 
corner of Arizona, to visit Southern Nevada. 

 The applications, as I mentioned, we are aware of these ones.  There might 
be some others that we're not aware of yet.  But we typically sign letters of 
support for all of these applications just out of a courtesy.  And it's a 
competitive process, so the USDOT will select the ones that get funded 
through this current round of TIGER. 

8 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: I have a question and then Member Skancke has a question.  And this 
perhaps a discussion for another day, but at least on this Pyramid Lake 
Paiute Tribe, I understand the need, but is Burning Man going to participate 
in the costs associated with that? 

Malfabon: No, they weren't looking at that.  I know that the promoters and developers 
of the Burning Man event pay the BLM for the use of the federal land, but I 
haven't heard that they were going to participate in this project that the tribe 
is looking at. 

Sandoval: Well, have we asked? 

Malfabon: This is the tribe's project, so I don't know if they have asked.  We could 
check, Governor, and follow up. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Okay.  Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  I'm not familiar with this round of TIGER grant 
applications.  What's the available funding from this round? 

Malfabon: I believe it's -- is it $600 million?  Yes, so $600 million.  And they anticipate 
that they'll take in the applications and probably announce in a later part of 
the year. 

Skancke: Okay.  And on this page, do we know what this amount totals?  What these 
applications… 

Malfabon: No, I don't know of all the amounts on these.  And we can report that next 
month. 

Skancke: Okay.  That'd be great.  Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: But perhaps we shouldn't wait until next month, because next month the 
applications will already be due. 

Malfabon: Yeah, definitely, the applications are going forward and we're in support of 
those that request NDOT, you know, if it makes sense for us to support 
those projects, and typically we support these projects, but we are not going 
to delay any kind of applications going in. 

9 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: No, I'm not suggesting delaying it.  But do you know, is there a place -- was 
there a sheet of paper where it says how much of these are that perhaps you 
could retrieve that? 

Malfabon: Oh, we could get that to the Board members sooner than that, yes. 

Sandoval: I mean could you get it by the end of this meeting? 

Malfabon: I'm not sure.  Mr. Greco. 

Greco: I'm looking at it now. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: And I think, at least in response for NDOT's Project NEON application, 
we're requesting $20 million.  Next slide, please.  And we've had some 
discussion with the districts and Equipment Division about some areas of 
concern that could be ripe for this operational audit that we want to do.  We 
will be bringing this back as a future Agenda item to request the Board 
approval prior to release of the request for proposals.  But the areas that I've 
noticed are interlocal agreements.  Sometimes they take a long time to close 
out.  We can look at efficiencies gain there.  Purchasing controls in 
stockrooms and equipment shops that buy supplies and equipment to repair 
our vehicles is another area that we could review. 

And I wanted to address, while I'm on that subject, you may have seen the 
news reports about a former NDOT employee that basically embezzled 
about $250,000 worth of supplies, used for his personal use or sold that 
material, so committing fraud.  And definitely had some discussions with 
Equipment Division.  We've taken some actions in putting those stockrooms 
under the District 2, rather than under the previous equipment division 
assignment.  It makes more sense in District 2 that these stockrooms are 
ordering materials to support the maintenance crews and the construction 
crews, so it makes more sense to put them under the districts because 
maintenance and construction crews are under the district.  So they can 
watch that more closely; make sure that there's proper controls in place. 

We also had some employees undergo some additional training in this area.  
And we think that with some of the efforts that we're doing to move towards 
electronic documents internally, that this kind of situation where the 

10 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

employee was using Wite-Out and copying signatures over and over again, 
that this would not occur if we go to a system that we're currently 
developing internally for our internal documents and approvals. 

The other areas that the audit will look at are efficiency of operations.  
Anything that we do with maintenance, such as management of service 
contracts, is another area so we can look for efficiencies and improvements 
so that we can manager those better.  These, as I said, will be kind of 
finalized and that scope of work will be presented to the Board for your 
consideration, hopefully soon, so that we can release the RFP and get an 
outside auditor in to handle these efforts within NDOT.  Next slide, please. 

So ready for any other questions.  I wanted to mention also that State Route 
207, the work commenced this week.  We did some additional outreach with 
the Carson Valley Inn and folks in Gardnerville to apprise them of the 
details of the construction limitations, and this project will be going on 
through the middle of next year, so a lot of work going up there, a lot of 
significant reconstruction to be done.  But we did do some additional 
outreach to address folks' concerns.  Obviously, not everybody is happy 
with that closure, but it will get us out of there sooner with this type of full 
closure and detours. 

And Q&D is working very closely with NDOT so that we can be very 
responsive if something goes wrong and we have to change plans.  I wanted 
to thank you for those efforts.  And that concludes the Director's Report.  I'm 
ready to answer any other additional questions. 

Sandoval: Questions from members?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And thank you, Rudy, for the informative and 
thorough report.   

Malfabon: Thank you. 

Fransway: One question regarding MAP-21.  You mentioned that it may be necessary 
to supplement MAP-21 with the general fund? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Fransway: That's got to be unprecedented, I'm sure. 

11 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Malfabon: No, actually it has been done before.  In fact, I think it was mentioned that 
it's -- several billions have been transferred before in previous bills, and it's 
been done about three or four times before. 

Fransway: Okay.  Are those funds subject for reimbursement? 

Malfabon: Reimbursement -- they would be reimbursed by the Federal Highway 
Administration after the project funds are expended then we submit for 
reimbursement (inaudible). 

Fransway: Okay.  So the U.S. Department of Transportation would reimburse those 
general funds? 

Malfabon: They would not -- whenever they do the general fund transfer, they do not 
transfer highway -- or fuel tax revenue back to the general fund to repay it.  
The reimbursement I was discussing was for the projects that are currently 
obligated by the Federal Highway Administration.  We do get 
reimbursement.  But at that level between the Highway Trust Fund and the 
general fund, the flow of money has been going from the general fund to the 
Highway Fund to prop it up.  So there hasn't been a reimbursement at that 
high level back to the general fund federally. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  Rudy, at I-15 and Tropicana, where we put in the CD 
roads and the express lanes -- I've mentioned this to Tracy a couple of times 
and I thought I would bring it to the Board.  That particular on-ramp and CD 
road, for lack of a better term, is a disaster.  That road is now backing up 
from Tropicana to the 215 Spaghetti Bowl.  This last Friday, all three lanes 
were occupied.  It was a fight weekend.  And what we have with the 
weaving there is you've got local traffic weaving out to get in the main line 
of 15; tourists coming off to get off at Tropicana.  I don't know what it 
would cost, but in my opinion we need to fix that.  We thought the CD roads 
and we thought that the expansion was going to fix some of the congestion 
at Tropicana.  I'm not so certain if we've made it worse, and… 

Malfabon: Member Skancke, if… 

12 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Skancke: …some of it might be signage.  Some of it might just be reengineering, but I 
think we need to take a serious look at what's going on there. 

Malfabon: We've taken some steps to look at that area, and I wanted Assistant Director 
John Terry to address that real quick. 

Terry: I've obviously answered this question before.  Really the answer to that is 
we know that it needed a two-lane on-ramp from that CD road to I-15.  The 
limits of the project were Tropicana.  We cannot put a two-lane on-ramp in 
because the Tropicana Bridge does not have enough span to allow us to do 
that.  We made the decision to obviously allow a little more congestion on 
the CD road versus taking a lane away from the main line so it had a lane to 
come into.  We are currently underway on a study on Tropicana 
Interchange, including essentially the removal and the replacement with a 
larger Tropicana Bridge.  Now, that's not going to solve the problem any 
time soon, because that's going to take quite a while to do. 

 But we're aware of the issue.  The problem is that's where the project ended 
and that's where the congestion begins.  And we know what the solution is; 
we need to replace that bridge in order to give it more capacity. 

Skancke: If I could, Governor, just a follow-up question.  Is it possible -- you guys 
know what's going on, but I just -- this is counseling for myself.  Is it 
possible to put up some type of barrier or something to keep the traffic from 
going all the way forward and then they try to cut in or does it help that they 
try to cut in?  What's happening is you've got the left lane that's the on-ramp 
into 15 of the main line, right?  And then that next lane over, which really 
should be the two lanes to go off down to Frank Sinatra and up to the 
Tropicana Interchange, you've got people trying to sneak in and cut in.  And 
now what's happening is that you've got two, sometimes almost three lanes, 
backed up with people trying to get over to the main line.  Is there 
something we can do to better direct traffic or is that the best solution?  Not 
being an engineer myself. 

Terry: Yeah.  I mean the only things we've done so far is worked with FAST to 
crank down the ramp meters harder on the on-ramp from Russell Road, 
because those people, for the most part, want to weave over and cause 
conflict.  I guess the only positive I can say is that same movement you're 
describing used to happen on the main line and now it's happening on the 

13 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

CD road, which at least should be a slower speed.  But I understand what 
you're saying, is they bypass the queue and try and sneak in at the last 
minute and if somebody doesn't let them in then that causes congestion in 
that lane and it backs up further.  I have not heard of a high incident of 
accidents at that location because of the movement you're describing.  But I 
guess we could ask the highway patrol to enforce that area better.  That's all 
I can think of. 

Skancke: John, it's not the accidents.  It's causing more and more congestion.  So as 
that weave comes in they're backing up the 15 in the -- what is it, the 
number three lane and then the folks are trying to weave out.  So, I mean, 
you're aware of it.  I won't beat that horse.  How long will the study take? 

Terry: It's just underway.  The study itself won't take that long, but the study would 
only start the NEPA process, depending on what the results of the study is 
and what level of NEPA.  So I think we have something programmed to do 
something at Tropicana a few years -- three years out or something. 

Skancke: Okay.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Any other questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 3? 

Malfabon: And, Governor, I wanted to mention is response to Member Fransway's 
question.  The amount that Bud Wright had mentioned was $55 billion over 
the last five years from the general fund has been transferred to the Highway 
Trust Fund.  So it has been done before. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Wallin: Yeah.  Thank you, Governor.  I have a couple questions on our state 
highway fund.  If the Director could address where we're at with our state 
highway fund and how high it is over last year at this point in time, and 
where we stand with the purchase of right-of-way for Project NEON; if 
we're on track or if we're going to have leftover money and are we going to 
get some extra projects out because of that, so… 

14 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Why don't we -- at least with -- to NEON with your permission, Madam 
Controller, we do have that one Agenda item for the… 

Wallin: Okay.  All right. 

Sandoval: …or not the purchase, but the condemnation of that property and maybe we 
can get into that so it's all one subject.  But on the… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: …state highway fund, Rudy. 

Malfabon: Yes, in response to Controller Wallin.  The state highway fund is very 
healthy.  We have a balance of currently about $214 million plus the $100 
million that's for bonds issued for the purchase of right-of-way for Project 
NEON.  Back around November of 2013 -- I'm sorry, 2012, we were down 
at $35 million.  So the idea was that some of that $214 million was 
originally committed to the phase one right-of-way purchase.  And you 
mentioned, Governor, Cole Mortensen will cover that where he has it in the 
schedule and how much is still to go out during the Project NEON 
presentation. 

 But there is definitely a healthy balance and it has allowed us to look at 
some additional projects, should the Board approve that, that are state 
funded-type projects, the 3R overlay-type projects that are primarily 
pavement preservation. 

Wallin: And, Director, when would we be approving those projects if we're able to 
spend the (inaudible)? 

Malfabon: We're looking at, as part of that presentation, probably next month with this 
list of federal projects that we might have to delay.  We also would request 
that there are some state projects that we can get out fairly quickly and 
address the… 

Wallin: All right.   

Malfabon: …preservation needs.  Thank you. 

Wallin: Thank you. 

15 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: And thank you, Madam Controller.  Are you okay with holding that 
purchase question until we do the condemnation? 

Wallin: Yes, I am. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Thank you.  Are there any other questions from Board members?  
All right.  Let's move on to Agenda Item No. 4, Public Comment.  Is there 
any member of the public here in Carson City that would like to provide 
comment to the Board?  Seeing none, I'll move to Las Vegas.  Is there any 
member of the public present in Las Vegas that would like to provide public 
comment to the Board? 

Wallin: None here, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Agenda Item No. 5, March 10, 2014 Nevada Transportation 
Board of Directors Meeting minutes.  Have the members had an opportunity 
to review the minutes and are there any changes?  If there are none, the 
Chair will accept a motion for approval. 

Savage: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Member Savage has moved to approve.  Is there a second? 

Skancke: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Skancke.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  The motion passes unanimously amongst the members 
present.  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 6, Approval of Contracts 
over $5 million. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Assistant Director for Administration, Robert Nellis, 
will cover this. 

Nellis: Thank you, Director, Governor, members of the Board.  There are two 
resurfacing contracts under Attachment A on Page 3 of 17 in your packet, 
for the Board's consideration.  The first is on Interstate 80 from about 
one-and-a-half miles west of Golconda Interchange from the crossover to 
about one mile east of Pumpernickel Valley Interchange.  There were six 

16 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

bids and the Director recommends awarding the contract to Granite 
Construction Company in the amount of $10,069,069. 

 The second is on US 50 from .343 miles east of Deer Run Road to the 
Carson City line county line.  And then from the Carson City line county 
line to about half a mile east of the junction with State Route 341.  There 
were six bids on this contract and the Director recommends awarding the 
contract to Granite Construction Company in the amount of $6,354,354.  
Does the Board have any questions for Assistant Director John Terry, or I, 
on either of these items? 

Sandoval: Just how many miles of pavement is that on each project? 

Nellis: Gosh.  John, do you know? 

Terry: (Inaudible). 

Nellis: Yeah. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  And then when was the last time we provided maintenance on that 
section of roadway for each of those projects? 

Terry: (Inaudible). 

Sandoval: Okay.  Is that on a regular schedule?  Is that why this has come up or is it in 
a bad situation there? 

Terry: Yes, the asphalt stretches of road especially do follow through our 3R 
program kind of a regular program of overlay and maintenance of the 
interstate.  And it's hard to give an exact number of years, but 7 to 10 years-
ish when those require a maintenance overlay. 

Sandoval: So that's likely when the last time we did this was 7 to 10 years? 

Terry: Probably. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Other questions from Board members?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Just a question regarding 3559.  Does that 
construction project include, basically, all of the roadway over Golconda 
Summit? 

17 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Nellis: It does, yes. 

Malfabon: I'm told it does.  Thank you, Robert. 

Fransway: It does? 

Malfabon: It does. 

Fransway: Okay.  And I'm wondering if it constituted any special construction needs 
relative to safety or anything going over that mountain? 

Malfabon: No, Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: And when will construction commence or operations? 

Terry: There are projects that we tried to get out now and wanted to get awarded 
now so they could be under construction in this summer construction 
season.  So I would assume within a month or so. 

Sandoval: And they'll be completed before the winter? 

Malfabon: These are probably two seasons. 

Terry: I'm not 100% sure if they will be done in one season.  I think they will 
extend into next summer. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Any other questions from Board members?  Hearing no further 
questions, the Chair will accept a motion for approval of contracts 3559 and 
3561 as described in Agenda Item No. 6. 

Fransway: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Skancke: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Skancke.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

18 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  The motion passes unanimously among the members present.  
We will move on to Agenda Item No. 7, Approval of Agreements over 
$300,000. 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor.  There are three agreements under Attachment A on 
Page 3 of 9 for the Board's consideration.  As Director Malfabon mentioned 
earlier, there's an update provided to your packet dated April 10th.  The 
update is to Item No. 3, to add Tetra Tech as the contractor and change the 
agreement amount to $499,582.  This is an update to the emergency 
approval received by the Department at March's Transportation Board 
Meeting for naturally occurring asbestos, technical services for the Boulder 
City Bypass project in Clark County.  I understand you have some 
questions, Governor. 

Sandoval: I do and I think some of the other members have questions.  But on that 
RFP, part of the bid process didn't include a bid amount.  So we, in other 
words, put it out and scored it, but ultimately the bid winner got to come 
back and say this is how much it's going to cost. 

Terry: Yes, sir.  Again, John Terry, Assistant Director for Engineering.  And we 
considered this a professional services procurement in the engineering field, 
and so we could not low bid by law.  And it was a procurement in which 
they were selected based upon their qualifications and their proposal, and 
we began negotiations after that point.  And when we went to the Board 
meeting the last time, we had not started those negotiations. 

Sandoval: And does Tetra Tech have a relationship with UNLV? 

Terry: I cannot speak for them in terms of other contracts.  They had in their 
proposal that they would use UNLV as a subconsultant, and we asked them 
not to do so and to do the work themselves and with their other 
subconsultants.  Whether they have done business with UNLV in other 
ways, I cannot say. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  And I'm not being pejorative of UNLV.  My concern here is the 
study that was conducted that resulted in having to do this work was 
conducted at UNLV.  So my concern is that perhaps there may be a conflict. 

Terry: Yes, sir.  And I believe they added them in as advisors to their study 
thinking that would be an advantage and because of that potential conflict 

19 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

we asked them not to do so, and they took them out and we negotiated as 
such. 

Sandoval: Okay.  So now -- I mean the -- and I've got to ask this question because it 
begs the question.  You've got Kleinfelder doing the work for the RTC for 
half the amount that this contract is for, for a bigger scope of work, at least 
from sitting here. 

Terry: I cannot answer the question of all the differences in the scope, but there are 
pretty significant differences between the scope of our work and their scope.  
In particular some of the air quality monitoring, and as I said at the last 
meeting, we have to prepare the updated NEVA document, whether it be a 
reevaluation or supplemental.  So we mean we're going to have Terracon 
help us do that, which is another step that they don't have to do. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Terry: There are differences in the scope, but I'm not familiar with all the details. 

Sandoval: Because when I -- I'll speak for myself.  I'm not going to speak for the 
Board.  But when we approved that $400,000 we thought that was the blue 
sky number, and now we're already $100,000 -- $150,000 -- or $100,000 
above that amount. 

Terry: Yes, sir.  And we thought it was a high number when we proposed it, but we 
negotiated, you know, in good faith and did our estimates and utilized the 
FHWA's Volpe group to help us prepare our comparable estimate to theirs.  
And I will say, again, this is a cost-plus-fixed-fee with an amount not to 
exceed contract.  In other words, we track the cost and if those costs aren't 
spent they aren't reimbursed.  So it is not a lump sum-type contract. 

Sandoval: So you won't be coming back with a report from Tetra Tech that says, well, 
we've done all these polls and we've tested the atmosphere, but you know 
what, we're going to need another half a million dollars to complete our 
study, because we just got some preliminary findings. 

Terry: I will not guarantee that only because we don't know what we're dealing 
with.  I cannot guarantee that that won't happen.  We're doing our best to get 
us through the reevaluation and get the jobs out to construction, but I can't 

20 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

guarantee that we won't need their services for other aspects of this moving 
forward depending on what they find. 

Sandoval: And the Director alluded to it in his Director's Report, but we've got the 
RTC, Commissioner Brown, who's very concerned about the progress of 
this project.  We became aware of it, my understanding is in December. 

Malfabon: It was actually around Thanksgiving that we received a press release in Las 
Vegas, and then up here in headquarters we saw the newspaper December 
26th. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Well, so now we knew about it in November.  We're in the middle of 
April.  We're just approving a contract now.  When does Tetra Tech think 
it's going to be finished with its scope of activities within the agreement? 

Terry: I'm not sure about everything within the agreement, but the critical task is to 
have the fieldwork done and the analysis on that fieldwork done so we can 
make the decision on the reevaluation of the EIS or the supplemental EIS by 
August. 

Sandoval: So that means nothing is going to happen with this project until August? 

Terry: Probably not. 

Sandoval: And again back -- I know I asked this question before, but why didn't we 
piggyback on the RTC's contract with Kleinfelder since they were already 
out in the field? 

Terry: And I don't have a much different answer than I gave last month, is we 
looked at that, decided that we needed -- that would have been, you know, a 
really major addition to a contract in a way that we hadn't done it.  We 
followed, you know, our normal process and went out with an RFP.  I will 
say we considered it.  We also considered the fact of capacity and wanting 
another expert on the situation.  We considered it, but we chose not to and 
went out with an RFP. 

Sandoval: Was Kleinfelder one of the participants in the RFP? 

Terry: Yes, they were. 

21 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Well, I mean I guess I'm kind of curious and I'll ask Ms. Quigley how this is 
going to affect the RTC's piece of this project.  I apologize for putting you 
on the spot, but now I'm hearing August of 2014, which is when we'll first 
start to hear at least the results and then there will be recommendations after 
that, which means there will be more of a delay, I would imagine.  And I'm 
curious where the RTC is with Kleinfelder and its part of the process in 
terms of determining what mitigation and what the effects of the airborne 
asbestos is, if I may. 

Quigley: Well, the RTC has decided to delay a portion of the RFP, the actual moving 
forward part.  Our test results will be coming back May 23rd, and after going 
through them they'll be made public either late June or early July.  We will 
continue to coordinate as best we can with NDOT.  In fact, I know Rudy has 
accelerated the contract with Tetra Tech to try and get your results by 
August.  So I know that your staff is pushing forward, at this point, as 
quickly as they possibly can.  There is a chance that there is going to be a 
delay.  Of course, we had hoped to start construction by the end of October 
of this year, and it may be pushed back.  We're not ready to say yet exactly 
what that will be, but there's a good chance that it will. 

Sandoval: Does anyone else have any questions for Ms. Quigley? 

Skancke: So in kind of following the Governor's question, is -- I'm sorry, I'm 
perplexed.  Is it a policy within NDOT that would require us to do our own 
environmental or -- I'm trying to get the thought process behind why we 
decided to do our own and not piggyback.  Is there a policy?  Is there a law?  
Is there a regulation?  I'm trying to make… 

Terry: Well... 

Skancke: …this as easy as possible, John.  I'm just trying to get to is this something 
that's been in -- let me tell you where I'm going.  These are not gotcha 
questions.  This is a 21st century economy.  If there's a rule or a law that was 
written in 1911 that says we have to do something some way, then maybe 
we can work with some people to get a new law that says that we can work 
cooperatively, allow the Department to piggyback on another project, 
expand a scope of work to expedite these types of things; because if this is 
something that's been done for a hundred years, I would suggest that that 
process is broken, because anything that's older than 10 years, it's done. 

22 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

So if there's a way that we could change the rule or change the law or 
change the regulation to give you more freedom to be more innovative, and 
if the Board could do that then I would recommend to the Board that we try 
to do that.  If it's something that's written in stone that we have to do, let's 
figure out a way to be more maybe innovative in the process. 

Terry: We considered writing an amendment -- because we already have a major 
agreement with the RTC, we considered amending that agreement, in other 
words, repaying the RTC and them writing an amendment to their 
consultant to do that.  Well, that would have been an unusual way to do 
things.  I think we could've done it.  It's not the normal way.  Would we 
have gotten federal participation in doing something like that?  We would 
have had to work with the feds and it's possibly we wouldn't.  So I wouldn't 
say the rules are so strict that we couldn't have done that.  It certainly 
would've been very unusual for us to advance it that way.  And we did 
consider it.  It wasn't the only reason we didn't go that way.  It's simply 
because it was an unusual way to proceed. 

Skancke: So, if I could, Governor.  I'm going to back up to 1991, when we were doing 
the Barstow Interchange in California.  That was an unusual way of 
completing a project.  And I think the more unusual we can become, maybe 
the quicker we can get things done.  And I'm not beating you up.  I'm just 
saying that, in general, this is costing the taxpayer's time.  It's costing the 
project time.  The longer we delay, the more the cost of the project goes up.  
And I'm just suggesting that if we can be unusual and deliver things sooner 
and figure out a way to do it, then we should try some unusual ways of 
getting things done.  That's my only point. 

And I share the Governor's frustration that this is going to be August, then 
we may not get anywhere until January.  I'm not saying that's the date, but in 
transportation time it's almost like dog years.  Things do move slow.  And if 
we can speed things up, I think we should look at those alternatives to do so.  
Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: No, and I just have a follow-up question.  When you say "we considered" 
and "we decided," who is we? 

Terry: I would say myself and the Director and the other deputy directors. 

23 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Because right now we're over time and over budget and we haven't done 
anything.  Okay.  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Along the same lines, Mr. Terry.  Ms. Quigley had 
pointed out that the results for the RTC study are due, I believe, around May 
25th, May 20th.  And I can understand the pros and cons of having an 
independent study.  But would we want to sit back and reflect to see whether 
or not those results came back to expedite the project rather than engaging 
another consultant at this stage, even though we're going to be out until 
August?  So would it make good practical sense to say time out, maybe we 
expedite Kleinfelder's research with dollars, however that might be done, 
like a contractor working overtime (inaudible) consultant?  Could that be 
expedited?  I don't know the answer to that.  And that's some thought that… 

Terry: I believe at this point by bringing another firm in, we bring in other labs, we 
bring in other professionals, that there is capacity issue.  I do not think that, 
at this point, changing direction and going back and doing that would be in 
our best interest and would complete it any sooner.  I believe that the path 
we're on right now is the best, because we open up more capacity with more 
experts, more field testers and more labs by having the two firms doing it. 

Savage: And my only fear to that is like contractors, consultants, and attorneys, they 
have their way of doing business.  And this is a major project and I know 
that we're trying to figure it out together.  And none of us have the glass ball 
to know the answer, and that's a concern I think that we all have, and it's an 
unknown.  But I think we might want to take a moment and breathe rather 
than engaging the contract until 2018.  It's a major step.  Just some food for 
thought, and I know both yourself and the Director have been very involved 
in this and know a lot more than I do, but I just wanted to pass the thought 
out there.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: And why is that until 2018, the contract end date? 

Terry: It's a big multiyear construction contract.  I mean, once it's advertised… 

Malfabon: It was -- yeah, just in case that we needed their services during that period.  
Obviously, we'd have to negotiate any additional efforts that would be on 
this base scope of work, Governor.  And one of the things that we've told -- 
or that I've discussed with John Terry was that why don't we have Tetra 

24 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Tech also look at clearing some of the advanced work in the utility 
relocation area so those utility companies can get out there and -- or that 
NDOT could -- if NDOT is doing the utility relocation, get out there and do 
that work initially in advance and at least not slow a certain phase down of 
this NDOT project. 

Sandoval: So when you say "get them out on the utility road," does that still include 
within the scope on the airborne asbestos issue? 

Malfabon: Yes.  So we have to assess that area first, is what I'm suggesting to staff, so 
that we can at least get the utility companies and the utility relocations in 
that.  That does require excavations, so we have to assess if there's any 
naturally occurring asbestos in those trenched areas. 

Sandoval: And what happens if the RTC's experts come out with one opinion in May, 
and our experts come out with a different opinion in August? 

Malfabon: The opinions are going to be based on the information from the sampling in 
those specific areas.  So it's possible that you might see naturally occurring 
asbestos in one area and not another.  One thing to point out was that 
Kleinfelder was already doing geotechnical investigation just for this type of 
earthwork project, where you're moving a lot of rock and dirt.  You have to 
drill holes and see the type of material that the contractor is going to 
encounter, so they had the benefit of having some core samples already.  
Whereas we're looking at it as what's the proper amount of tests and 
adequate amount of samples to take to basically represent the entire area of 
our project and where it could be showing up. 

Sandoval: But the area of our project is a fraction of what the RTC's area is, correct? 

Malfabon: Yes.  It's a little over two-and-a-half miles versus theirs is over 12 miles. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  So following Member Savage's line of questioning.  
Would it save us time and money to partner with the RTC -- I am going to 
beat this because I think there's an opportunity here for us to save the 
Department money and time.  And maybe the Board needs to have a 
discussion on what type of policy we want to have with these types of things 
going forward.  But in my mind, that lag time is significant.  And to the 

25 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Governor's point, what happens if there are conflicting reports?  If we can 
move this faster, and unless you guys can demonstrate to us why it's going 
to slow it down if we don't, I actually have some heartburn awarding a 
half-a-million dollar contract when there's already a contract in the field and 
we could be more innovative to expedite the project.   

Now, if it doesn't expedite it that's one thing, but I think this is a policy 
discussion for the Board to have as it relates to these types of things going 
forward.  And you can resolve it today.  None of us want to be here until 
2:00, but I'm on the 6:00 flight.  That was a joke.  I'm trying to add a little 
levity.  But in all seriousness, I'm just not comfortable with that amount of 
time; that there's that much time between one result and the other. 

Malfabon: Well, our concern is that we do the proper amount of effort so that it 
satisfies the requirements of the oversight from Federal Highway 
Administration, and they have Volpe advising them.  We definitely have to 
wait and see what we find out there and that's going to determine whether 
we have to do a supplemental to the environmental impact statement for this 
project.  I don't recommend changing course, although definitely Kleinfelder 
was an option.  I would recommend proceeding with Tetra Tech and 
expediting what we can; having our staff have those discussions on what can 
be accelerated.  They are using a local consulting firm, Broadband 
Associates in Southern Nevada, as well as having Tetra Tech's office in 
Southern Nevada.  So we have the benefit of having some additional 
capacity in Southern Nevada that has expertise in this area, and I would say 
let's proceed and work collaboratively and cooperatively with RTC and 
Federal Highway Administration. 

Skancke: How much is Federal Highways, Rudy, funding of this?  What's their 
portion of funding on this particular piece of the project? 

Malfabon: I don't know.  Tony Lorenzi, do you have… 

Lorenzi: Yes.  They are not funding the NOA asbestos testing.  Are you asking about 
the project itself? 

Sandoval: Yeah. 

Lorenzi: It's 95/5. 

26 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Skancke: Thank you. 

Malfabon: So Tony Lorenzi stated it was 95% federal, 5% state. 

Sandoval: Did you say the reason that you didn't select Kleinfelder was a resource 
issue that you felt like they were oversubscribed because they're doing the 
work for the RTC? 

Malfabon: Yes.  We were looking at capacity, and Kleinfelder is doing more than the 
naturally occurring asbestos assessment.  They were doing the geotech 
investigation of the entire 12 1/2 or 13 mile project that's the RTC's 
design-build project. 

Sandoval: So Tetra Tech, though, is subcontracting a big piece of this to Broadband 
Associates? 

Malfabon: I don't know how large of a piece it is to Broadband Associates, but they are 
a subconsultant to Tetra Tech. 

Sandoval: But it sounds like they're going to be the ones doing the work out in the 
field, Broadband Associates. 

Malfabon: I couldn't say, Governor, what scope of work Broadband Associates is 
performing.  I just know that they were on the team.  John, do you know? 

Terry: I would say, Governor, they are doing some of the fieldwork to supplement 
the Tetra Tech staff, but not all of it.  I do not know the exact percentage of 
the contract, but it's not a huge amount. 

Sandoval: Mm-hmm.  And I just want to make sure that's similar to what Member 
Skancke and Member Savage's -- I don't have the technical expertise that 
you have, but I heard you say that the biggest reason for going with Tetra 
Tech was that there's additional scope of responsibility on behalf of the State 
that the RTC doesn't have with regard to the entire project.  And could you 
kind of simplify that a little bit? 

Terry: While the FHWA is the final approver of any NEPA document, we're the 
ones that prepare the NEPA document.  Just like we prepared the original 
EIS for the project, we have to prepare the revision to the EIS.  And while 
our environmental staff does much of that work, since this is specialized 
work, we need assistance in writing whatever it is, a reevaluation of the EIS, 

27 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

the supplemental EIS, and we're going to use our consultant to do that.  The 
RTC's data will be fed into that to make us able to do that. 

Sandoval: So they don't need what we are doing on their 10-mile piece? 

Terry: They need the reevaluation of the EIS in order to proceed with their work in 
the construction phase.  They want to know whether it's going to be a 
supplemental EIS or a reevaluation of the EIS before they're comfortable 
putting out their package.  They also need things like special provisions to 
put in their contract for dust and whatever.  That can come directly from 
Kleinfelder to them.  They need us and our consultant in order to clear the 
environmental so that they can proceed. 

Sandoval: So does that mean that our consultant has to go into where they're working 
and where Kleinfelder is working? 

Terry: I don't think so.  I think they need to interpret their results and work with us 
to get the document approved. 

Sandoval: It sounds like -- and, again, I'm not engineer.   

Terry: Yeah. 

Sandoval: But it just sounds like that you're saying we're doing more than they are 
because we want to be thorough and what they're doing isn't doing 
everything they should. 

Terry: Again, and I don't think the reevaluation is that much work compared to the 
fieldwork.  The fieldwork is a lot of the work.  I don't know all the 
differences within the two scopes.  All I can say is our group negotiated in 
good faith with Tetra Tech to come up with the scope of what they're doing.  
And there was some attempt to coordinate the scope of what Kleinfelder is 
doing, but frankly we did the best scope we could within our section. 

Sandoval: Because it's one project at the end of the day.  And my concern is it sounds 
like we're testing for a lot more things than you're saying they are.  And if 
we make findings on pieces that they're not testing for and there's conflict at 
the end, there's going to be a problem. 

Terry: I hope not. 

28 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Well, that's not… 

Terry: I don't know that. 

Sandoval: …a good answer. 

Hoffman: Governor, if I may. 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Hoffman: For the record, Bill Hoffman, Deputy Director.  There have been very 
substantial coordination meetings between Volpe, which is the Federal 
Highway Administration representative, and Kleinfelder and NDOT staff.  
So the comment John just made, "hopefully it will go well," I think is much 
better than that because of the coordination that's going on.  And I would 
like to just drop back and say when we first learned of asbestos in Southern 
Nevada, we were very concerned about public health issues.  Of course, you 
want to be prudent and you want to move forward as efficiently and 
effectively as you possibly can.  But we were very concerned about health 
issues down there, and we felt it was very important that we have an 
independent firm come on board, work with Kleinfelder, work with Volpe 
and try to put the best analysis team out there and try to come up with a 
scenario that allows both NDOT and the RTC to move forward as quickly as 
possible. 

 There are substantial coordination efforts going on as we speak and have 
been for several weeks on direction, analysis, testing, and so forth.  
Hopefully that helps. 

Sandoval: And nobody is going to question that there's a public health concern out 
there, and we all want to get to the bottom of it.  But there's a disconnect 
here between what's happening with the RTC and what we're doing.  And 
the answer right now is they'll do all their testing, we'll do all our testing and 
if they differ -- and our testing is more than what they're testing and if 
there's a difference at the end, we don't know what's going to happen.   

Hoffman: Right. 

Sandoval: And so I don't want to be sitting here in August and then suddenly saying, 
well, we've got these different results and Kleinfelder is saying one thing 
and Tetra Tech is saying another, and Tetra Tech tested for more.  So if only 

29 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Kleinfelder had done this much more so now we need Kleinfelder to do this 
testing on that 10-mile piece, which is going to delay it more. 

 And as Member Skancke has said, every day of delay is more money.  I 
mean I don't think anybody is going to argue over that.  And this is a real 
important project, and we have an opportunity here to get it right from the 
beginning.  And that's, I think, what everyone is trying to do here, is get it 
right from the beginning.  And there's negotiations about cooperation, but I 
don't hear that we're cooperating.  And so, you know, we're all just trying to 
figure out why there's these different standards and different scopes, and 
one's double the amount of the other, yet it's one-fifth the size of land area.  
And I know maybe there's higher concentrations in one than the other.  But, 
again, that's going to cause a problem later on down the line. 

Terry: Right. 

Sandoval: And so, you know, I don't know how to articulate it any differently.  I'm 
really troubled about where we are right now and particularly we're, pardon 
the pun, five months down the road from discovering this, maybe a little 
more, a little less.  But we're at this point where now we're going to put 
someone out there and they're going to be doing something different than 
what Kleinfelder is doing.  And, you know, I don't know, you put any, as I 
think Member Savage was alluding to, you put any engineer or two 
engineers in the same room, you put two contractors in the same room and 
they're going to come up with different results. 

And so in the meantime we have a major infrastructure project that is 
hanging out there, and they want to start moving dirt in October.  And that's 
not -- I mean it seems like far away, but it's not; it's six months away.  And 
we don't even know what -- I mean, just again, we don't know.  But what I 
can anticipate is that there's going to be differences of opinion in August 
from what was found in May.  I just don't know what the magnitude of those 
differences are going to be.  I hope and pray as I sit here today that they're 
very similar and we can all move together with a joint plan to fix this, but 
right now all of that is uncertain.  So I apologize.  I feel like I'm preaching, 
and maybe I am, but I'm just thinking out loud about my concerns here.  
And we've had other issues, historically, on this Agenda that have bubbled 
up like this and then it gets worse instead of better.  And I don't want it to 
get worse. 

30 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Malfabon: Greg Novak will address the Board from Federal Highway Administration. 

Novak: Good morning, Governor.  Greg Novak, Major Projects Manager for Federal 
Highways.  I've been listening and I can probably fill in some of the details.  
Federal Highways engages services of our research folks at Volpe who have 
looked over the scope of work for Kleinfelder side and NDOT side, and we 
are knitting both of those projects together.  We are meeting weekly.  We 
are making sure that the samples that are being done by RTC and the ones at 
NDOT are going to collect are of a scientific basis that we can defend the 
study.  And I think, you know, there were some concerns here about delay.  
RTC's project is a design-build contract, so they have some time when theirs 
actually goes out, so the design work has to be done.  NDOT's is a low-bid 
contract, so there's slight differences in the way the contracts are written and 
the specifications. 

 But by all means, what we're doing on phase one and phase two is being tied 
together and we will come up with a NEVA reevaluation that puts all the 
work in perspective and is of a consistent basis.  I know everybody had 
those concerns, but we've got the best in the business between Kleinfelder 
and Tetra Tech and Volpe and NDOT and Federal Highways looking that 
we have a consistent defendable approach to this whole subject. 

Sandoval: And thank you, Mr. Novak, because I think that's part of what this Board is 
seeking, is some comfort here. 

Novak: Yes. 

Sandoval: And right now I'm really uncomfortable.  And, you know, you're an expert 
and I don't want to put you on the spot, but maybe I will.  But do you see 
this as a… 

Novak: Yes.  I think John mentioned that last month, you know, was a showstopper.  
No, it's slower downer.  But we have to be careful and take a thorough look, 
and I think we're doing that.  You know, everything that has been done so 
far is excellent work, but we're just trying to put it together in a consistent 
format. 

Sandoval: And we get all that.  And you have the technical expertise.  I don't.  I just 
want to make sure that we're pulling all the right levers so this moves 

31 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

forward in the best way possible, so that six months from now we don't look 
back and say, you know, this was a really bad decision. 

Novak: Right. 

Sandoval: And so, I mean you review these projects all the time.  Is this a good 
approach?  Should we be working with just one consultant or should we 
have more than one? 

Novak: Since it is getting to be a high-profile item, I think the consensus was more 
than one point of view to show that we're on the same page is the best way 
to go.  So besides, well, you know, the Volpe folks helping, they're actually 
bringing in their national panel of experts to make sure that what we're 
looking at is consistent with other asbestos studies around the country.  And 
what we have here does not appear to be a big deal, but we want to be sure 
that it is a fair deal and it is fairly evaluated. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Question is, are we being redundant with these two consultants in the tune 
of $500,000? 

Novak: No.  No.  The scope of work that we have for Tetra Tech is an expanded 
scope of work, and there's more analysis and scientific background and 
sampling plans and other things that will tie it together.  So we'll probably 
have a more consistent report when we do stitch phase one and phase two 
together.  And it is a fair price for what we're getting. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Mr. Novak, because this is a touchy situation as we 
all know… 

Novak: Right. 

Savage: …and that's why we're debating it.  Mr. Terry and the Director, we try to 
support them in all the decisions that they make.  And as a Board, you 
know, we look from the outside in to try to bring some clarity at times.   

Novak: Sure. 

32 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Savage: And I think my personal concern is, and question that I have for you being 
from the feds, would be historically on other NOA findings, have you used 
independent consultants on the same project? 

Novak: Specifically, Federal Highways, I do not know.  On other projects, 
definitely.  Yes.  I mean you just split them up and you get different 
opinions.  I mean… 

Savage: You get different opinions.  And that's the concern, I think, this Board has is 
having this asbestos finding by UNLV.  And I know in the last packet that 
we looked at a couple months ago, there were findings, I think, in California 
and I know the federal highway program has come across these findings 
before.  So my specific question would be, have you utilized two consultants 
on one NOA project that you're familiar with? 

Novak: No, I'm not aware of any that we've actually encountered.  Most of these 
NOAs that have come up have been on -- we've seen some dam projects or 
Libby or some other areas, but as far as naturally occurring asbestos on 
highway projects, we are not that familiar with it.  That's one reason we 
brought Volpe on board, to give us a consistent approach so we can analyze 
this adequately. 

Savage: Mm-hmm. 

Novak: You know, and I mentioned, you know, there's slightly different opinions.  
Well, the reason we've got this set up the way we do now is so those experts 
can weigh in early and make sure that the data is collected in a consistent 
manner, so when we're done we have a consistent agreeable consent to some 
that we actually have in Boulder City.  If we went separate ways, we 
definitely would not be able to pull that together.  That's why it's taking a 
little bit of time to pull in phase one and phase two with the outside expert to 
come up with an overall approach and a scope that narrows us down to one 
conclusion when we're done. 

Savage: I'm a little confused though.  We are going separate ways.  We're using two 
different consultants. 

Novak: But under protocols and procedures that all parties are agreeing to.  I mean 
when we're following standard protocols, we should get similar results, and 
that's what we're trying to pull together here. 

33 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Savage: And I think that's my personal concern, is that in theory it makes real good 
sense.  But in reality the unknown and the samples that are going to be taken 
are yet to be determined.  Kleinfelder's results are going to be here 
mid-May, and the Tetra Tech results possibly in August.  So would there be 
any risk in trying to have Kleinfelder's results prior to our next Board 
meeting and delaying this decision another month?  What ramifications 
would that cause? 

Malfabon: We would be behind on our phase.  Kleinfelder is only looking at phase two, 
not phase one. 

Novak: Right. 

Savage: Oh. 

Novak: Yeah.  That's why what has been mapped out looks at the entire project, 
phase one and phase two.  And with the accelerated schedule, NDOT is 
going with Tetra Tech.  We think we are, you know, coming to a conclusion 
at about the same time this summer.  We'll hear earlier results from 
Kleinfelder and that will be used to help guide what Tetra Tech is doing as 
well. 

Savage: And the actual findings of the UNLV independent study occurred where, 
physically? 

Malfabon: It was basically all throughout that valley in Boulder City, out towards that 
dry lake bed out there along US 95 on up towards kind of south of 
Henderson, where our project is.  It's a large are. 

Savage: So it's both phases? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Savage: Okay.  That's all I have, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  And just a quick question, kind of piggybacking on what 
Member Savage talked about.  And that was part of my concern, is having 
UNLV affiliated with our contractor, is that is our contractor going to be 
assessing the UNLV findings and what scientific methods they used and 
what the scope of the work that was done by the UNLV study? 

34 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Terry: John Terry again.  I don't believe so.  I believe they're going to go out there, 
use that maybe as information, but they're just going to go out there and do 
new samples.  And, again, the UNLV study covered a huge area.  All we're 
doing is studying our alignment, what to do with our project, within our 
project limits, at a much more detailed level. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Well, that's the point.  Much more detailed.  So do we know how 
detailed that UNLV report was, and I bet they didn't spend $500,000 doing 
it. 

Terry: No.  And we're doing things like taking samples.  They took them all on the 
surface.  I mean we're asking drilling down and getting the samples down 
where we're going to be excavating to with the construction project.  I'm 
sure they didn't do any of that.  That takes drill rigs. 

Sandoval: So would that UNLV report be something that would be defensible if we 
relied upon it? 

Terry: I do not know that. 

Sandoval: I mean, I guess the point I'm making is have we done an assessment on that 
report, because look at the consequences that it's having.  I mean it's going 
to delay a major project.  It's going to cost the state half a million dollars.  
It's cost the RTC a quarter million dollars.  It's going to perhaps increase the 
cost.  And, again, I don't want to undermine public safety in any way but, 
you know, I think that we should be looking at that report, as well, to see 
how detailed it, indeed, was.  All right.   

Wallin: Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Wallin: I have a question.  And I appreciate NDOT being thorough here, and maybe 
this is why they're pursuing this.  But if we were to go and say let's expedite 
this, just use Kleinfelder.  Have them do it.  Are we putting ourselves -- and 
we kind of don't do as thorough a job, are we putting ourselves at risk by 
having a -- say health concerns develop after we do the project or while 
we're doing the project and people are starting to get cancer and what have 
you from asbestos.  Are we putting ourselves at risk for a lawsuit down the 
road from a third party, if they were to come in and say, hey, you guys didn't 

35 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

do a thorough enough job.  You do have asbestos in here.  Because I think 
our terrain is a little different than RTC's terrain, because we have to go 
through more of that volcanic area, I think.  So I just want to know; are we 
putting ourselves at risk if we were to expedite the contract and go with 
Kleinfelder?  And are we better off doing our own separate study, protecting 
us? 

Malfabon: I wouldn't know the -- as far as the efforts that Tetra Tech is doing are on 
top of this sampling.  They're doing a lot more assessment.  And since 
NDOT did the environmental document originally for both phases, the 
complete project, we have to have a consultant to revisit that environmental 
document and then Tetra Tech is going to do that effort in collaboration with 
RTC's results and FHWA and Volpe oversight.  So I think that we are aware 
of that concern of liability and, you know, we're starting to receive e-mails 
from people, from the general public about concerns.  The answers are still 
to be found, though, about what we find on our project.  And we definitely 
need expertise in this area.  We're not familiar with it, as a department, for 
naturally occurring asbestos on highway projects.  So we need this expertise 
and we need to move forward. 

Sandoval: Yeah, I think we've covered this.  Just remind me why we didn't test for this 
in the very beginning. 

Malfabon: It's not typical, Governor, to -- it just wasn't anticipated.  It's not something 
that's typically tested for.  I think that going forward, we're definitely in -- 
since you see these types of volcanic areas in Nevada, I think that that's 
something that's going to be an element in the future environmental studies 
to precheck for this type of material, because it's something that's unique 
and never was considered previously in environmental studies in Nevada. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Well, if I'm going to support this contract -- I mean, again, we're at 
this point where the Board's put in a position where if we don't then it gets 
delayed that much more.  The decision was made internally to go this route, 
and so we have to support that because we are where we are.  But I think 
you can understand, at least, from this Board's perspective and reading the 
media from the RTC Board's perspective what's at stake here.  I don't know, 
I'm speaking for myself; other Board members can oppose this.  But, you 
know, I just, you know, as I said, we sat here and got a presentation and it's 

36 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

going to be 400 and now we're at 499.  And, you know, and I know that's the 
top line.  It could be more.   

But, you know, this Board -- we need to move forward on this.  I don't want 
to delay this project any more.  I hope that I hear at the next meeting that 
Kleinfelder, all the consultants are meshed and they're not talking about 
working together and cooperating.  They've got to -- whatever it is -- and, 
again, I'm not an engineer or a technician -- figure it out in terms of 
coordinating the activities so that moving forward that we have a once and 
for all answer in August, so we know exactly what we need to do.  I'm 
hopeful -- you know, again, I'm not a scientist.  Why does it take until 
August?  You know, it's kind of like a final exam when you know when the 
day is.  You take until that time to get ready for it.  If there's a way to 
expedite the findings in these things, because there's so much time and 
money and the health issue that are at stake that people have a big 
expectation to know what it is, I would think we need to have a little more 
sense of urgency with regard to this. 

So as I said, I don't have anything more to say.  I don't know if there are any 
other Board member comments before I take a motion.  Member Skancke. 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  The one area where I got a little more comfort was 
Mr. Novak's comments about more eyes are probably better.  And it sounds 
as though that there's a lot of coordination going on amongst the three -- or 
there would be cooperation amongst the three consulting firms and the three 
agencies.  It doesn't happen very often, but it's nice to hear that these three 
agencies are working together to expedite this.  Not that that wouldn't occur, 
it's just nice to hear that.  I also think that probably now more detail is better. 

 To the Controller's comments, in that we have a job to protect the public as 
well as protect the projects.  And so I'm a little more comfortable now with 
kind of the coordination having the information.  I think it's a good debate to 
go through this process and have the conversation.  I'm still having a little 
difficulty getting myself to a half a million dollars when we were at 
$400,000.  What I would rather do is cap it at four, shorten the time and if 
you have to come back to us I'd like to know why it needs to go up to 
another hundred thousand. 

37 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

 If there is more detail, I'd like to see some of the detail along the way, quite 
frankly, to know exactly where we are on this.  You're dealing with 
asbestos.  This is not something that is -- this is a serious issue.  And I think 
the more frequency the Board has to review this -- by the way, none of us 
are questioning any of your skills or capabilities.  You're all very capable 
individuals to do the job that you are doing for the Department and the 
people of the State.  But I think the more this Board can see these types of 
things the better we can do our job and the better informed we can be.  I'm 
not going to hold up a motion if you want to move a motion at the 499, but I 
would be more comfortable at $400,000 and having this item come back if 
there needs to be a supplemental.  But I'll be happy to go with the pleasure 
of the Board.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: No, thank you, Member Skancke.  And I do want to say, because I've been 
really focused on expediting and moving along.  The number one concern 
here is the duty to the public to protect health and safety.  And we, as a 
Board, have a responsibility to be able to look at citizens, the residents of 
Clark County and those that will be traveling there someday, that we did 
everything we could to ensure and to characterize whether or not there was a 
public safety risk.  We just -- there's a lot of different factors that we have to 
balance here, but that is number one.  And so that's why, you know, again, 
I'm going to support this.  I think we've got a good enough record that -- or 
explanation as to why we're going the way we are, but I just want all those 
technical folks to realize there are some consequences, too, to delay.  And so 
if we can balance all those things and move together that would be a good 
outcome.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And I am reluctant to vote in favor of something that 
I really am not in favor of, but I understand what you're coming from.  And 
my question is what would happen if we went with Kleinfelder, with the 
results of Kleinfelder for phase one and then come back for phase two?  
Would we not be doing $250,000 instead of $500,000? 

Sandoval: I'm not real clear what you're suggesting, Tom. 

Fransway: Well, I don't know if it's a suggestion.  It's just dialogue.  We have 
Kleinfelder, who is a Southern RTC consultant for phase one, correct? 

Unidentified Male: Phase two. 

38 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Fransway: For phase two? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  And Tetra Tech is for phase one and two, correct? 

Malfabon: No, phase one. 

Unidentified Male: Phase one. 

Fransway: Oh, okay.  So we have a different consultant for each phase? 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  Okay. 

Malfabon: And phase two is the RTC's.  Phase one is NDOT's. 

Fransway: Okay.  That explains a little more. 

Sandoval: Okay.  So in any event, Mr. Terry, thank you.  I know this is not an easy 
day.  But it just -- there's a lot at stake here, as I said.  And I'm not going to 
be redundant.  So I… 

Malfabon: And, Governor, I have the scope of services for Tetra Tech, and it would 
probably be of interest to the Board.  We can have that copy made and sent 
to Kim and the Board members that are absent. 

Sandoval: Well, we might have wanted that a while ago instead of one sentence in .2 
font.  So I think in the future as this moves on, I guess my message would be 
this has got to be on every Agenda.  I don't want to take an hour and a half 
or whatever we've taken on this, but I think the Board is going to want to be 
up to date on what's going on with the process. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor, we will. 

Sandoval: But as I said, I mean, what we have is an amount and a sentence that says, 
"Naturally occurring asbestos technical services for the Boulder City Bypass 
project, Clark County."  And you may have been able to avoid a lot of these 
questions if we got that contract sooner. 

39 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Malfabon: And in defense of the folks that prepared the packet, they didn't have the 
information, the actual contract until after the materials were put together 
for the Board packet, so… 

Sandoval: All right.  Any other questions or comments?  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  And I'm a little reluctant, but I understand the timing 
and most importantly the safety to the public.  And with that being said, I 
have full trust and faith in the Director and Mr. Terry and their 
understanding of what the big picture really is, so I'll support this as well.  
Thank you. 

Sandoval: And before we take a motion, I'm afraid to ask if there are any questions on 
Contracts 1 or 2 in Agenda Item 7.  You have the Chapman Law Firm, 
which is increasing -- I guess I'm making your presentation. 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Why don't you go ahead and... 

Nellis: Again for the record, Governor, Robert Nellis, Assistant Director for 
Administration.  The remaining two items are amendments.  The first is for 
Chapman Law Firm for Project NEON legal representation.  The 
amendment amount is $250,000.  The second item is with Stantec 
Consulting Services to extend the termination date from 9-30-14 to 9-30-16, 
increase authority by $1,768,940.82.  This is for continued bridge inspection 
and load rating services.  We'd just like to note for the Board that the 
agreement included an option to extend for two years, and the Department is 
electing to exercise that option. 

Sandoval: Does that mean there are more bridges to inspect or… 

Malfabon: No, basically bridges are inspected every two years, so every bridge is 
inspected on a cycle, and it just extends the services of the bridge inspection 
of the same, basically, bridges in Nevada for two more years. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Board members, any questions with regard to Contracts 1 and 2 as 
described in Agenda Item No. 7?  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Nellis. 

Nellis: Thank you. 

40 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: All right then.  As I said, I don't want to complicate this thing anymore than 
it needs to be, so I'm prepared to approve all three of these as presented by 
the Department.  But I'm willing to hear any motions that members may 
have. 

Skancke: So moved, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  Member Skancke has moved to approve Contracts 1, 2, and 3 as 
described in Agenda Item No. 7.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All those in favor of the motion, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  Thank you, Mr. Nellis.  And, 
Mr. Terry, I think you've heard the Board and Director… 

Terry: Yes. 

Sandoval: …and this is a really big deal.  So I appreciate your attention to this and 
ensuring that it moves along as we all hope it will.  Agenda Item No. 8, 
Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements. 

Nellis: Governor, again for the record, Robert Nellis.  If it pleases the Board, we 
have answers to the questions on Agenda Item No. 6, if you'd like for me to 
go through those very quickly. 

Sandoval: Oh, the mileage? 

Nellis: Correct. 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Nellis: Yes, sir.  For the Interstate 80 project it is 13 miles long.  It will take 120 
working days to complete.  Estimated completion is November 2014.  The 
last date it was paved is 2004, so over 10 years ago, sir.  And then on US 50, 
the project is 5.3 miles long.  It'll take 110 working days to complete.  Also 
estimated complete November 2014.  It was last paved in 2004, and another 
part was last paved in 2001. 

41 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: And, again, thank you.  I mean that's good news that it's going to get done 
this year. 

Malfabon: Weather permitting. 

Sandoval: Yeah, maybe I hexed -- I don't want to jinx anything.  But all things unique 
we'll get done this year.  All right.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you.  Would you mind getting at least me a copy of that scheduled 
time?  I'd certainly appreciate that. 

Nellis: Yes, Member Fransway.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Okay.  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 8. 

Nellis: Okay.  Thank you, Governor.  There are three contracts under Attachment A 
on Page 4 of 18, for the Board's information.  The first is installing a 
weigh-in-motion system in Elko County.  There were three bids and the 
Director awarded the contract on March 4, 2014, to Titan Electrical 
Contracting Incorporated in the amount of $234,482.20.  The second 
contract is installing an automated vehicle counter.  There were three bids 
and the Director awarded the contract on March 4, 2014, to Fast Trac 
Electric in the amount of $35,948.  And finally, the third contract is 
demolition asbestos and hazardous material abatement for nine parcels along 
the Interstate 15 corridor in District 1 Clark County for Project NEON.  
There were five bids on this contract and the Director awarded the contact 
on March 4, 2014, to Baldwin Development, LLC, in the amount of 
$295,295. 

 And I'd just like to note for the Board that the engineer's estimate of 
$705,000 on this included additional scope in the estimate that was later 
determined did not need to be performed.  Does the Board have any 
questions for either Assistant Director John Terry or I on these items? 

Sandoval: Any questions?  Please proceed. 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor.  Under Attachment B, there are 42 executed 
agreements found on Pages 6 through 10, for the Board's information.  Items 
1 through 8 are cooperative and interlocal agreements, and then Items 9 
through 33 are property acquisitions and utility agreements.  And finally, 

42 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Items 34 through 42 are leases and service provider agreements.  Does the 
Board have any questions for the Department on any of these items? 

Sandoval: I think you wore everybody out on the last (inaudible). 

Nellis: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any questions, in all seriousness?  Okay.  We can proceed. 

Wallin: Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Wallin: I actually have… 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Sorry about that.  I actually have one question.  Item No. 8, it says that it's 
an interlocal and it's for a traffic prediction study and it's with Applied 
Engineering Management Corp.  Why is that an interlocal? 

Malfabon: That is a research project, probably misclassified as interlocal, Madam 
Controller.  So it's a research project as part of our normal research program, 
but it was with a service provider, so it was misclassified.  Good catch. 

Wallin: All right.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Why don't you move to settlements. 

Nellis: Oh, settlements.  Dennis, do you want to take that? 

Malfabon: Yes.  Governor, this was a settlement that was approved by the Board of 
Examiners at the March 11, 2014 meeting, approved in the amount of 
$61,500.  I don't know if you have any questions for our deputy attorney 
general on this item.  It was related to real property necessary for the 
construction of I-15 Freeway from Blue Diamond north to Tropicana.  So it 
was on the I-15 design-build project and settled on the amount of property 
that we acquired. 

Sandoval: Yeah, I asked all my questions at Board of Examiners, so I'm satisfied.  Any 
other Board members have questions?  Mr. Gallagher, I don't know if you 
have any other comments you'd like to make. 

43 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Gallagher: No, Governor, I don't.  You did ask all your questions at the Board of 
Examiners and we appreciate that. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Anyone else?  Thank you, Mr. Nellis.  Board members, any other 
questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 8?  It is an informational piece of 
the Agenda, so we won't be taking a motion on that.  All right.  Thank you.  
Agenda Item No. 9, Condemnation Resolution No. 443. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  We have a condemnation resolution for the property 
owned by Las Vegas Golf and Country Club.  This is in support of Project 
NEON and incorporated in the phase one of that project.  You can see how 
far apart we are in our initial offer of about $4.4 million, and they had made 
a counteroffer of $33.5 million.  So we're very far apart and respectfully 
request the Board's approvement of a condemnation resolution to acquire the 
property. 

Sandoval: We did though -- or how did we get from $4 million to $21 million, because 
we did make a counteroffer of $21,500,000. 

Malfabon: No. 

Sandoval: Or is that… 

Malfabon: The counteroffer is basically a portion of the counteroffer from the owner, 
the landowner, so they added $21.5 million of lost future income related to 
the property. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I misread that.  That's my mistake.  All right.  So was this one of 
those instances where we got our first appraisal and then there was such a 
big gap that we wanted to make sure that our first appraisal was okay before 
we went in to condemnation; because I know in other situations we've 
gotten a second appraisal just to be sure that we were okay. 

Malfabon: We did not acquire a reappraisal, so we went with the first. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Questions from Board members?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Governor, I would move for approval of Resolution 443 as presented. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway has made a motion to approve the Condemnation 
Resolution No. 443 as described in Agenda Item No. 9.  Is there a second? 

44 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Savage: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Savage.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All those in favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously of the members present.  We will move on to 
Agenda Item No. 10, Resolution of Relinquishment. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  The City of Mesquite has assigned a resolution 
consenting -- basically, they want to have some property there along I-15.  
It's about 5.31 acres, and noted in there.  So we own this property in fee 
simple and if the purpose of the city's use of this parcel ceases to exist, all 
interest will revert back to the Department. 

Sandoval: Board members, any question with regard to Agenda Item No. 10?  If there 
are none, the Chair will accept a motion of the Resolution of 
Relinquishment as described in Agenda Item No. 10. 

Skancke: So moved. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously of the members present.  We will 
move on to Agenda Item No. 11, which is Review and Ratify the Selection 
of the Contractor for the Pedestrian Bridge Escalator in Clark County, Las 
Vegas… 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: …or Las Vegas, Clark County. 

Malfabon: John Terry, Assistant Director for Engineering, will cover this item. 

45 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Terry: Again, this is the CMAR project that we chose the CMAR process for the 
rehabilitation of the pedestrian bridges and escalators at Tropicana and Las 
Vegas Boulevard.  We had presented to the Board previously that we 
wanted to use the remaining LVCVA funds from the $300 million bond sale 
for this project at about $19 million.  I believe we went to the Board 
previously about using the CMAR process, and so now if we could go...  

Unidentified Male: Go ahead.   

Terry: And so here we are on the CMAR process.  We've gone through and are 
looking to select a contractor for the preconstruction phases in our CMAR 
process. 

 So the project overview is replacement of the escalators.  The escalators are 
a big part of the work, as well as you can see the electrical and plumbing 
systems are outdated.  As we had said previously, this is the first of those 
pedestrian overcrossings that was built.  It's the only one that NDOT still 
maintains.  It has a lot of issues and it really wasn't designed to withstand 
the outdoor environment for where it is, and we spent a lot of money on 
maintenance of it.  Next please. 

 So we coordinated with the Tropicana Resort, who has improvements 
proposed on the corner, but we are proceeding with the project as we 
continue to coordinate with the Tropicana Resort, as well as with the other 
resort owners who don't have any, you know, of their own proposed 
improvements at this time.  Obviously, there's going to be construction 
phasing and, in fact, pedestrian phasing due to the project.  And we still are 
working on the maintenance agreement that we upgrade the escalators and 
the entire thing to turn over to Clark County for maintenance, and we have 
been working with them on that agreement. 

Sandoval: And this is something we've talked about since I was the attorney general 
sitting… 

Terry: Yes. 

Sandoval: …on this Board.  And my vague recollection was we tried to get the County 
to take it and they said, well, if you replace it all and put it in brand-new 
condition then we'll take possession of it and be responsible for the 
maintenance. 

46 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Terry: And that is the summary of the agreement that we're working on.  It is not 
executed.  We expect to bring that agreement to this Board in the not too 
distant future. 

Sandoval: Oh.  Great news. 

Malfabon: John, I have a question.  Is there other bridge work to do for Clark County to 
accept the project that's not included in this scope for the CMAR?  Crack 
sealing and things like that.  I think that I recall… 

Terry: Some of that is included in this.  I believe that everything we are doing here 
is to bring it up to the standard that it would… 

Malfabon: Okay. 

Terry: ..take for them to take over. 

Malfabon: Thank you. 

Terry: Next please.  So we received proposals on October 30th.  Four firms 
responded and the proposals were evaluated.  It would bring up this is a little 
bit different work for us.  We had a more diverse panel even than we would 
normally have, because this is the type of work that we're not used to doing.  
Next.  And these were the three shortlisted on December 19th and 20th, and 
we approved an evaluation panel.  Next please.  And we're recommending 
the selection of Whiting-Turner Construction Company as the CMAR 
provider.  And, again, this is the first phase.  We did say in the Board packet 
that we did not have the amount that we're recommending for approval.  The 
amount is $289,000 for the preconstruction phases.  And we anticipate that 
as an agreement under $300,000 to be brought to this Board next month in 
the informational items. 

 And with that we're asking for approval of the selection of Whiting-Turner 
as the CMAR provider for the pedestrian escalator bridge. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Mr. Terry, just one question.  And thanks for 
disclosing the amount for $289,000 for the construction cost; is that correct? 

47 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Terry: No, sir.  That is for the contractor's participation in the preconstruction 
phases. 

Savage: Preconstruction.  Is there a construction cost estimate at this point? 

Terry: $19 million. 

Savage: $19 million.  Okay.  I thought that 289 was one smoking deal.  The last 
question I have is how much was Jacob's contract, if you remember? 

Terry: I'll have to either follow up on that or perhaps by the end of the meeting 
somebody can provide that.  I do not know that off the top of my head. 

Savage: That amount as well as the term was it completed construction?  If you 
could look into that and just let me know. 

Terry: Okay. 

Savage: The Jacob's contract. 

Wallin: Governor? 

Terry: Yeah, go ahead. 

Sandoval: Somebody (inaudible)… 

Martinez: Yeah, we have that information.  Jacob's contract is $700,000. 

Savage: And, Ms. Martinez, is it through completed construction? 

Martinez: Yes, it is. 

Savage: Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Terry.  Thank you, Governor. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Mary. 

Sandoval: And it was pretty close between one and two on the bidders here? 

Terry: Yes, sir. 

Sandoval: All right.  I have no further questions.  Member Skancke. 

48 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  So the project cost is being covered by the LVCVA 
room tax investment that was left over from the express lanes on the I-15 
project; is that correct? 

Terry: Yes. 

Skancke: Thank you.  I would make a motion, Governor, to approve. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke has made a motion to approve Agenda Item No. 11, and 
that would be the selection of the contractor for the pedestrian bridge 
escalator replacement Construction Manager at-Risk project in Las Vegas, 
Nevada, and approve an agreement with Whiting-Turner. 

Malfabon: Whiting. 

Sandoval: Whiting, is it? 

Terry: Did I mispronounce it?  Sorry. 

Sandoval: You said Whiting.  Whiting-Turner Contracting Company for 
preconstruction services for the project.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Sandoval: Give it to Madam Controller, has seconded the motion.  Any questions or 
discussion?  All in favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously of the members present.  Thank 
you very much, Mr. Terry.  We'll move to Agenda Item No. 12, Update on 
the Southern Nevada HOV plan. 

Malfabon: And Assistant Director for Engineering, John Terry, will present this item 
also. 

Terry: And as opposed to NOA, which is a very new thing… 

Sandoval: Are you going to get a raise after this meeting, Mr. Terry? 

Terry: ...HOV's has been something I've been dealing with for years, so I feel a lot 
more comfortable on this than on some of those other issues.  If we could go 
on, please.  A quick definition for those high-occupancy vehicles lanes, so 

49 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

we'll use the term HOV for the remainder of the presentation, are the special 
lanes dedicated for if you have two-plus occupants in your vehicles and can 
use them and are currently used on US 95.  And have been found on 
multilane freeways to increase the person carrying capacity of that freeway 
and to definitely benefit transit. 

 In 2007, and I happen to have been the project manager back then, we did 
the HOV plan for Southern Nevada.  It was a plan for HOV facilities on the 
freeways of Southern Nevada.  It really didn't get into the other arterials.  It 
was a freeway plan.  We came up with a near and a long-term plan for HOV 
system and the near-term facilities were really the US 95 and I-15 system.  It 
was coordinated closely with the RTC of Southern Nevada as HOV systems 
really aren't successful if they really don't have a transit element.  And we're 
happy to say that already on US 95 at the (inaudible) Summerlin Parkway 
there are Park & Ride lots and express buses utilizing the HOV system that 
we have so far.  Next please. 

 This is from the 2007 study, and the green was what, at that time, was called 
the near-term system.  And really the result of that study was we 
programmed and changed Project NEON and, in other words, before that it 
did not have an HOV connector.  This study added that and some of the 
other elements to the regional plan so that we could develop an HOV 
system.  And the green was essentially the system that was recommended in 
the initial system. 

 Next slide.  Now we can kind of explain the system we're in on Southern 
Nevada, which those of you that drive there a lot kind of realize that we 
have HOV lanes on US 95, from MLK to Ann Road and on Summerlin 
Parkway, including the flyover that gets you to Summerlin Parkway.  But 
currently it has two-plus occupants, motorcycles are allowed, emergency 
vehicles are allowed, no trucks.  It's peak hour only, as you can see from the 
sign there that really anybody can use it in the off-peak hours.  Originally 
opened at 24 hours and it was switched to peak hour.  And it has what we 
call continuous ingress and egress.  You can cross the line anywhere you 
want.  Next please. 

 Then we have the express lanes on I-15.  The express lanes, any vehicle can 
be allowed in or out, but it has limited ingress and egress where you can get 
in or out, and it's allowed 24 hours.  There is no time of day restrictions on 

50 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

the express lanes.  Next please.  And this graphic kind of shows where the 
current express lane system and where the current HOV system and, of 
course, the big hole between the two is Project NEON.  Next please. 

 So what we're proposing is the I-15 and US 95 HOV system.  Project NEON 
will be the connector between the two.  It's actually in the environmental 
documents that the express lanes will become HOV lanes, as well as the 
regional plan and the air quality plan for Southern Nevada is based upon 
those HOV lanes.  I-15 south of Sierra Avenue, where currently you have 
express lanes, will become one HOV lane in each direction and four or more 
general purpose lanes versus the three and two configuration that's out there 
today.  And then we will have 22 miles of HOV system from Silverado 
Ranch on I-15 to Ann Road on US 95 plus the stretch at Summerlin 
Parkway.  And most of the near-term system, the green that I showed in the 
2007 study, is what we'll have.  There's a few places that the limits are a 
little bit different, but essentially we'll have that system that was proposed in 
2007.  Next. 

 So we decided to update the plan and the consultant agreement for that 
update was brought before this Board previously.  And part of the reason we 
updated now is the 2035 Clark County Regional Travel Demand Model.  
The model that's used for traffic in the whole valley now includes mode 
choice.  In other words, it predicts transit users, as well as HOV users, from 
just cars.  The model that was used for the 2007 study was not the adopted 
model, but rather one that was used for the transit study in Southern Nevada.  
But now that they have the 2035 model that the air quality model is based 
upon uses the traffic demand model, we incorporated that traffic demand 
model into the new HOV plan so we're consistent.  We intend to update both 
the near and long-term HOV systems and to evaluate direct connector 
locations, and I'll get to that later.  And make recommendations on the 
operational issues within the HOV system.  Next. 

 So why are we coming before the Board now?  Well, one, NEON is coming 
and this sets up for NEON.  And two, we're about to start the public 
involvement process.  We've finished the modeling.  We have the analysis.  
We're about to go to the public involvement.  We're really starting that 
public involvement with this.  We'll be presenting to boards.  We'll go to 
public meetings about the HOV system just like we did back in 2007.  But 

51 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

we have some decisions to make.  We need to make recommendations on 
how the HOV system is going to operate.  We already said it's going to be 
one lane on I-15.  We're recommending that it has to stay as occupancy as 
two-plus.  We don't have enough people with three-plus occupants.  The 
two-plus is the right thing to do, we think, when it opens. 

 We need to decide against peak hour versus 24 hour.  There are different 
HOV systems around the nation that use one or the other.  Our team is going 
to go to the public involvement process and to you recommending 24 hour, 
but we think this is an item that needs to go through the public involvement 
process.  Vehicle eligibility, I don't know if you were aware, but there is an 
NRS that would allow the Department to adopt policies that would allow 
high-mileage vehicles, energy-efficient vehicles into the HOV system as is 
done in some other states.  So we have to address that issue.  We are not 
recommending that because we don't think that there's the available capacity 
in there for that, and that it would be very difficult for the enforcement 
aspect.  But, again, that's going to go through the public involvement 
process, and we get questions on this issue quite often. 

 Ingress and egress is the other issue, whether to allow people in and out 
continuously or pick the places where they can get in and out.  And I guess 
our team is sort of recommending -- those of you who have been to 
Southern California, it's kind of the Southern California system.  And that is 
there's ingress and egress points every, you know, about three miles with 
about a quarter mile where you get in and out and you cannot get in and out 
at other places, and it runs for 24 hours.  Going to go through the public 
involvement process and we'll probably be back before this Board after 
that's over, but that's where we're at right now.  Next please. 

 Direct access interchange; really the big ones that were in the original study 
were build NEON and the Summerlin flyover.  But it also studied direct 
access to the strip, and that's an important aspect; is can you get from that 
system, especially for transit vehicles, off at an interchange that is not a 
general purpose interchange to the strip?  Way back in 2007, we studied 
Harmon and Hacienda as like half diamonds at each.  This is a big part of 
this update to the plan is look for the locations for those direct access so we 
can get the workers and others to the strip.  And we'll go through quite a 
process to get to that recommended location. 

52 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

 Direct access to Park & Rides at transit centers.  So the transit centers out on 
Summerlin Parkway or way up north, they may want to get directly from 
that into the HOV lane and we'll make recommendations on that just like we 
did in the original study.  And then is future direct access freeway to 
freeway such as I-15 to I-215 probably more in the long-range element, but 
we will study that issue again as well.  Go ahead. 

 And with that I really -- answer any questions on the system, but just point 
out we're starting the public involvement phase.  NEON is a big part of what 
we're doing with the HOV system, so we want to bring it to the Board at this 
time as an informational item. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  And that was very thorough.  Do you know if the utilization of 
the current HOV lanes is what you expected it to be? 

Terry: It's not good.  We kind of expected it not to be good.  It's gotten much better 
since we've extended the HOV system much further north, I'll say, in the last 
year since the US 95 project opened up.  And the usage has helped in terms 
of the number of people since the RTC has added express buses in it.  But it 
needs to be a longer system to provide the time-savings advantage.  And we 
kind of knew that going in and it's why NEON is so critical. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Thank you.  Any other questions from Board members?  Thank you, 
Mr. Terry.  Next Agenda Item is 13, Status of Project NEON. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Our project manager, Cole Mortensen, will present 
to you an informational presentation on the status of Project NEON, 
recognizing that next month we will actually come back with the request for 
the release of the public-private partnership request for proposals, the RFP.  
Cole. 

Mortensen: All right.  Good morning, Governor, members of the Board.  For the record, 
I'm Cole Mortensen.  Next slide.  I'd like to talk to you about today a little 
bit on the benefits of Project NEON.  Still we want to keep focused on that; 
kind of go through what the overall scope of the project is.  I'm going to 
update you on the schedule and then talk a little bit about a financial update, 
in addition to a number of the changes that have occurred on the project 
since last June.  And as Director Malfabon had mentioned, we anticipate 
making it out to each and every one of your over the next month to explain 

53 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

more in depth and to be able to offer an opportunity to brief you again on 
the project.  And then next month we'd like to bring the project to you again 
for approval to release the RFP to industry.  Next slide. 

 Again, as we've talked about it before, you know, we're going to have a big 
project in the most heavily traveled stretch of road in the entire state.  So if 
we can get more now and we can afford to get more now, we want to 
continue to look into doing that.  Savings on project cost, the initial thought 
behind phasing the project ends up costing a significant amount in 
temporary construction, as well as additional impacts to the traffic and all 
the construction escalation associated with delivering the other phases later. 

 As I've mentioned before, improving those connections -- John Terry just 
mentioned some of the critical connections and the added utility that we're 
actually going to be getting out of the HOV system.  One of the key 
components to it and one of the biggest features of doing that is actually 
keeping those HOV riders in the inside lanes.  You're no longer asking them 
to move through the general purpose lanes.  Say from US 95, if they want to 
get on the I-15 they can stay in the median.  That direct access interchange 
that'll allow traffic to get out on Western Avenue is going to just be another 
one of those locations where we're adding that utility.  And anybody that 
wants to get off in the downtown area can just stay in that HOV system and 
stay out of the competing traffic in the general purpose lanes. 

 And, of course, last but not least we want to create some jobs.  But what I 
want to show you here is actually a graphical representation, a rendering that 
we had put together that actually shows the entire project.  We just started 
overhead at about Sahara, and as you can see we're just passing 
Oakey/Wyoming.  What I want to point out is that direct access interchange.  
In this video, you can see the traffic is taking those off-ramps down to the 
ground level and they're going under the northbound lanes to access the 
local facility, and then here they're getting back up to where they're entering 
into the HOV system again. 

 Now, off to the left-hand side, I want to point out that this is where our 
phase four ramp rating came in.  So all those movements that you see on the 
left-hand side is where we're trying to take off those interchange movements 
and make sure that they happen in more of a CD road environments. 

54 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Can you slow that down? 

Mortensen: I don't know if I can.  We may just have to -- I'm happy to play it again. 

Sandoval: You're going about 85. 

Mortensen: I'm happy to play it again.  I'm optimistic, you know, that's what I'd like to 
see traffic moving like when we're done.  Yeah, I'll run it back and we can 
play it again.  But one of the things in this rendering that I do want to point 
out is it doesn't have the sound walls or the barrier rails that we anticipate 
having on the facility.  And then as we're moving down, this is where we 
connect into the existing HOV system at Rancho.  Well, a little further down 
than that.  So if you wouldn't mind backing up again and then running that 
one more time. 

Unidentified Male: Sure. 

Mortensen: There really is a lot going on in this short stretch of road.  And if I may, over 
here is where you see some of that ramp rating still appearing.  This would 
be the ramps going to Sahara and allowing the I-15 traffic in here. 

Unidentified Male: So where will we make -- sorry.  Where will we make the decision to get off 
at Sahara? 

Mortensen: Boy, I don't know if I can slow it -- yeah, I don't know if I can slow it up.  I 
believe it's actually going to be right here.  At this location here is where 
you'd actually make that decision to get off at Sahara, so it'll be just past 
where you'd make that decision to get off at Charleston.  Of course, we're 
going to need the advanced signage in place to allow motorists to 
understand that.  All right.  Next slide. 

 So when we're talking about the schedule, when I was before you in 
January, we had anticipated asking for Board approval to release the RFP in 
this month.  As I've mentioned, we've had a lot going on and I really want to 
allow you the opportunity to have a little bit more time before you make that 
decision.  And then we'd also like to make sure that we're getting out to you 
with the most up-to-date information that we have before we actually release 
the RFP to industry. 

 Last week we released the second draft of the RFP to industry on 
Wednesday, and we'll be going into one-on-ones the first part of May to get 

55 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

additional feedback from the developers on the setup of the RFP and to 
make sure that we can continue to make it competitive.  As you can see 
from the schedule here, we're still anticipating having a preferred proposer 
selected in December, and then we'll go under commercial close in February 
of 2015, and that's actually the executed contract.  And then there's a short 
period of time -- well, not a short period of time, about a three- to four-
month period where we actually go through financial close.  And there's 
some key financing decisions that happen during that period of time that'll 
shape the contract just a hair more, and at least the financial obligations 
within that contract.  But we anticipate going out to design and construction 
in midyear of 2015, at this point in time.  Next. 

 As offered earlier, we'd like to give you an update on the phase one 
right-of-way.  Right now, we're at about 75% complete -- 74% complete on 
our right-of-way for phase one.  We've actually had a few parcels drop off 
because of the priorities of the P3 project and other issues.  So we 
previously had 48 parcels, and I think right now for phase -- or for the P3 
phase we're actually looking at 43.  But we have 32 of the 43 parcels 
acquired right now.  We're right at about $69 million spent on the 
right-of-way, and our current cost estimates have it coming in at right 
around $90 million in total.  Now, of course, that doesn't take into 
consideration any of the settlements that may have to occur and that type of 
thing.  But right now we're anticipating still being under the budget that we 
had set previously.  Next slide. 

 Financial updates; one of the things that I wanted to step through here is that 
we've had items added to the project that have increased the scope and the 
cost of the job.  And so I want to make sure that you understand what those 
items are and what they bring to the project, and then we'll discuss how 
that's impacted the overall cost and what we're estimating in the future.  As I 
brought to you in January, the phase two of the project, which is anticipated 
to be $20.5 million as the reestablishment of MLK from Alta to Oakey and 
Wyoming.  That's going to be funded by the City of Las Vegas, but we'd 
like to get it incorporated into the overall scope.  Next slide. 

 One of the unique facilities that we'd like to incorporate into the project, 
both for preconstruction and during construction, as well as afterwards, is an 
advanced traffic management system.  And what that is, is that's actually a 

56 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

gantry setup that'll have gantries like you see in the pictures at spacings 
throughout the corridor that you see.  We're actually looking to start at the 
215 and take it all the way up to Rancho Road on US 95.  And what that's 
going to allow is a more direct and, I guess, discretized management of the 
traffic through that footprint.  What it allows is small DMS signs above each 
of the lanes of traffic that we can then manage and change the speed limits 
of the lanes themselves.  And so if there's an accident in the outside lane, 
what you do is you put that big red X over the outside lane and then you 
may reduce the speed in the next lane over so that you're encouraging traffic 
to move away from the incident and actually continue to flow smoothly, as 
well as having the opportunity to get them queued where they need to be.  
Say during construction if you know you've got a couple of lanes closed 
down, you're letting the drivers know in advance that that's the case so that 
they can move over into the lanes that are moving, and hopefully spread out 
that distance where you're trying to get the cars to weave and to make those 
movements.  Next slide. 

 With the change of the express lanes to the HOV system, what we 
discovered in looking at that is that we're going to end up with a lot of ghost 
striping and we're going to end up with some issues that are created by that, 
as well as the crumb rubber within that area is going to start reaching its 
expected life.  But what we're looking at right is a mill and an overlay of the 
express lanes, and that'll be an anticipated additional cost of $5 million.  
And that'll include some of the signage changes and the striping as well.  
Next one. 

 Over the last eight months, we've also really taken a look at the O&M for 
the project.  What's the footprint that we want to recommend having for the 
contractor, and what does that actually include?  One of the things that came 
out of that study was actually looking at our legacy facilities that are out 
there, the bridges that we currently have.  And the reason that this is 
important is we actually have several bridges that are actually identified in 
this drawing that are either needing to be replaced now or would need to be 
replaced during the term of the O&M contract.  And so then the question 
becomes is it best to replace it now when the developer is out there and they 
have all their traffic control in place and the ability to do so, or allow the 
developer to replace them in 10 years.  We're recommending having them 
do it now while the traffic control is in place so that we're not out there in 

57 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

another 10 years for a several month or a year cycle so that they can get 
these bridges constructed.  The additional cost for the four bridges is 
approximately $30 million.  One of the things that we're actually looking at, 
too, specifically with the US 95 structures and making sure that it'll handle 
the additional capacity necessary for the future of the I-515 going south.  
Next slide, please. 

 So in June, I believe, we came to you and we said that the overall project 
cost and net present value, I believe, was about $602 million, and right now 
we're at about $740 million.  So we've seen a distinct cost increase.  Our 
availability payment is still anticipated to be around $32.7 million 
(inaudible)... 

Sandoval: And let me stop you before you move off that 740, and I apologize.  When 
you say "a distinct cost increase," that's because you're adding these other 
things on, not because the cost of the project is more originally? 

Mortensen: Correct.  Correct. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Mortensen: We've actually gone through -- we're adding scope.  We've gone through 
and we've fine-tuned and actually identified exactly what we want to have 
for the O&M.  And then the other part of that that I'll talk about, too, is 
interest, and the interest rates have gone up.  And so there's been a certain 
amount of cost increase that we've seen due to interest rates.  And that's 
another thing that we want to make sure that we're able to answer all your 
questions with regards to that and what those financing costs are and how 
those actually impact the project cost.  And I'll talk a little bit more about 
that here in a second. 

 Back to, you know, we're still watching what we can afford.  We're still able 
to keep under that $100 million mark on our debt service that we had talked 
about previously as well.  Next slide.  And so the way that this has turned 
out from the $602 million that we provided you last June is the 5% is in our 
increased construction and development cost.  Those are the additional new 
bridges and somewhat updated construction utilities costs.  The 7% increase 
in O&M and lifecycle costs, that's really -- it's costing us 7% more based on 
what we finalize that O&M scope to be rather than what we had anticipated 

58 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

back in June, which in June we were just looking at the cost of the 
constructed footprint, whereas now we want to extend that O&M limits 
from the actual construction that they're doing on US 95 to Valley View so 
it allows a distinct point where the developer is able to turn around and to 
maintain right up to an interchange structure. 

Same thing on I-15 headed north, I believe it goes to about Washington.  
And then south, I believe we're looking at about Spring Mountain.  Heading 
south on the I-15, with the anticipated improvements that we have out there, 
we've actually cut it short at about City Center -- or the old -- or F Street or 
that structure.  And then down at the bottom here I have the 11% increase in 
financing costs.  And these are, again, the change in interest rates that we've 
seen over the last 10 months.  And these are things that we definitely want 
to keep our eyes on, because as I mentioned earlier, we're executing the 
contract next February.  And so whether interest rates go up or down, they 
can have a significant cost impact on the project. 

Sandoval: So when you say 11%, what's the effective rate?  What was it before and 
what is it now that… 

Mortensen: That I'd have to get back to you on as far as what the assumptions that they 
were using and what the effective rate was, because it's a combination of the 
different financial mechanisms as far as what the rate for TIFIA was, what 
the rate for the private activity bonds are, and then it's a combination of a 
number of rates. 

 So this is just a graphic showing, essentially, just what I've talked about 
here.  And last June, we thought it was going to be about $602 million, so 
we've added 5% in construction cost to the project.  When we finalized our 
O&M that was another 7%, so we've added a total of 12% in construction 
and then O&M cost.  So then again the 11% changed due to those interest 
rates fluctuating.  Next slide, please. 

 Now, this is a graph that I believe we showed you, again, last June, although 
it is different now because we've bonded for the right-of-way, and so the 
right-of-way is included in the dark area down below, whereas before we 
were showing those right-of-way payments as part of the debt service.  And 
you can see the dark line is the total future commitment for what we told 
you in June of 2013, and the yellow lines are the reestablished values that 

59 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

we're looking at right now for the project payments as of P3.  The dash line 
is actually kind of a technicality.  What they're doing is they're subtracting 
out the O&M cost there because technically that's not future debt service.  
So you can see that back in June, we were right at the $100 million mark, 
but now here in May of 2014, we're still staying under that $100 million 
mark.  Next slide, please. 

 So, again, when we're looking at that kind of change happening over the last 
8 to 10 months, what I wanted to do is show you one of the other things that 
we've been looking at and actually just looking at the sensitivity of different 
aspects of the project.  Right now, if our construction costs come in, say, 5% 
less we'd be looking at a corresponding 4% change in the total net present 
value cost of the project.  On the far left-hand side of the screen, you can see 
the impact of a half a percent change in the overall net present value for the 
project.  And so you can see a half a percent interest rate change converts to 
about a 4% total fluctuation on the net present value for the project.   

Now, conversely, on the other side of the graph you see we have a 1% 
interest change and that equates to about a 9% overall.  We did half a 
percent down and 1% up because it's less likely at this point in time, or at 
least our financial advisors feel that it's less likely at this point in time that 
that interest rate will go down rather than up. 

 Still, one of the drivers that we're looking at and we're continuing down the 
path with TIFIA.  TIFIA is a low interest rate financing program.  If we 
don't get TIFIA what our financial advisors are recommending is looking at 
doing a $300 million final acceptance payment versus the $200 million final 
acceptance payment so that we can take advantage of the lower bond rates.  
But that would be a 14% impact on the overall net present value of the 
project.  Next slide. 

 This is just another slide and essentially clarifying what we showed you on 
the last one.  The additional costs on an annual payment is indicated there in 
the $5.7 million for the extra debt service on the $300 million final 
acceptance payment versus the $200 million final acceptance payment.  And 
so right now we're still looking at a base availability payment of about $32.7 
million, and you can see the fluctuation with the financial risks that we're 
looking at.  Next slide, please. 

60 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

 And so that really concludes the update that I have for you right now.  As I'd 
mentioned, we would -- and I'm looking forward to working with each and 
every one of you over the month here to sit down and really be able to dive 
into a number of the terms of the contract as well.  There are a handful of 
items that we want to make sure that we point out to you as we move 
forward before releasing that RFP.  So, Governor, at this point in time I'm 
willing to take any questions. 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you.  And I guess I want to go back to my other question 
on are we mixing apples and oranges, because when you have these 
adders… 

Mortensen: Mm-hmm. 

Sandoval: …aren't those financed differently than how you're financing Project 
NEON? 

Mortensen: You know, that's one of the things that it's -- and that's partially why we 
want to sit down with each and every one of you individually is so that we 
can sit down and explain some of the intricacies of how it's been handled.  
Each of those added costs are essentially -- take the four bridges, for 
example.  Those are four bridges that we would've had to have replaced as 
an additional contract sometime over the next 35 years, if not now.  And so 
those are projects that would have gone out.  They'll be included as part of 
the availability payment.  So when you see that what we have in there is -- 
yes, it's additional to the construction costs that we're currently estimating. 

Sandoval: And how would we have otherwise paid for those bridges? 

Mortensen: They would have been decided on at that point in time, whether it was state 
or federal funding or a combination of both in the future when they needed 
to be replaced. 

Sandoval: And this MLK, is that $20 million in that number as well, even though the 
money is coming from City of Las Vegas? 

Mortensen: It's coming back out, too, but it's considered to be a project cost.  So in the 
financing end of things when we're computing that availability payment, 
that $20.5 million has been considered, but we're still trying to show it in 
terms of the total project cost, at this point in time. 

61 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Okay.  I just want to make sure.  And this $25 million on the advanced 
traffic management system, that's just another complimentary project that 
you're going to build into this? 

Mortensen: Correct.  And the reason that we want to build it in now is it's something 
that the Department has been looking at for some time, but it makes a lot of 
sense to get into the NEON now, because if we can help that traffic align 
ahead of the work zone and ahead of the construction zone and help notify 
drivers in advance of the work zone, we're hoping that that'll help the 
270,000 cars a day get through that work zone efficiently. 

Sandoval: Okay.  And perhaps this is the question for when we meet individually.  But, 
you know, we're building this house and now we're adding an addition.  And 
can we afford the additions? 

Mortensen: That's where we're still -- and those are questions that I'm happy to answer 
and we're going to be presenting that kind of information to you when we 
come to brief you as just how does that impact, what does it look like 
compared to what we were anticipating last June?  Some of those items 
we've been wanting to kind of keep under our hat a little bit, though, to 
make sure that we're not tipping our hands to the industry. 

Sandoval: You just did, didn't you? 

Mortensen: I know.  I know.  I know.  Well, you know, it's a fine line.  We're, you 
know, hoping to give you enough information so that you're comfortable 
with what's going on, but at the same time, you know, we're hoping that we 
can keep things at least as understandable as possible in the public eye. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Let's see.  So will these increases upfront increase the amount of the 
availability payments later on? 

Mortensen: Yes.  On everything but the phase two work, because essentially we'll be 
receiving that money when the construction is being completed at that point 
in time, and so everything else would be financed through the availability 
payment. 

Sandoval: And those availability payments are 40 years, 30 years? 

Mortensen: Thirty-five. 

62 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Thirty-five years. 

Mortensen: Correct. 

Sandoval: So that's something that, you know, again we can talk about later, but we'll 
all be long gone.  And, you know, somebody 20 years from now is going to 
be sitting here and we have to be able to answer the question what were they 
thinking.  And so as we add things on, I want to make sure that we're not 
overextending people in the future. 

Mortensen: Correct.  Correct.  And we're still coming back to you with the similar 
analysis that we brought to you last June.  We've been asked to look at the 
design-build bond scenario as well, and that's the type of information that 
we'd like to bring to you individually. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Questions from other Board members?  We'll go to Member 
Fransway and then Member Savage. 

Fransway: Governor, thank you.  And thank you, Cole.  My question relates to the 
replacement of the bridge structures, which we already talked about in some 
fashion.  It sounds like the option is to do it now or do it later. 

Mortensen: Exactly. 

Fransway: My question is if we do it now, will we be inheriting aging infrastructure 
after the O&M is timed out for a better term? 

Mortensen: I understand what you're asking.  We've considered both sides of that 
argument.  The four bridges that were selected are very close and they all 
have some structural issues that we've been monitoring with them anyway.  
The other side of the question, and the problem for us, is when we're looking 
at those four structures, we've identified that they have some problems, and 
so when we have a developer come in to try to give us a price on how 
they're going to maintain that facility then there's the potential to have added 
risk thrown in there, because they don't fully understand the issues and when 
they may have to replace those bridges. 

 So by having the developer replace them now, it's allowing us to utilize the 
traffic control that we have in place.  It's taking advantage of the economy 
of scale.  We're reducing that escalation from constructing them in the 
future, and what it's also allowing is it's allowing the developer to have 

63 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

assurance that the bridges were constructed to their quality standards that 
they're willing to maintain over the next 35 years.  So that's the thought 
process that went into the decision behind including those right now. 

Fransway: Okay.  So if we do it now, they're still going to age.  And so when they age 
in 20 years, or whatever time frame, then we're going to have to do it again 
anyway, are we not?  Do they last that long? 

Mortensen: We have certain requirements in the hand-back provisions of the PPA and -- 
anyway, the PPA is part of the RFP that's going to go out.  That's the 
public-private agreement that requires them to hand back the facilities to us 
in a certain condition.  So, for example, you know, I understand the concern 
about, well, they'd be handing back a 35-year old bridge.  Well, all of the 
other bridges that are being constructed now will be in the same shape, but 
what we'll be asking them to do is make sure that when they do hand it back 
to us they're up to a certain quality standard, and if they're not that they 
make any reparations necessary to be able to hand it over to us in that 
condition. 

 With regards to kind of your question about, well, we're replacing it now 
instead of in the future and we're not utilizing that service life.  I'll have to 
get back to you on the anticipated service life of each of those structures.  I 
know some of them are very immediate and then others… 

Fransway: Okay. 

Mortensen: …have had a number of improvements made to them, so they're in varying 
conditions because this piece was constructed, you know, X number of years 
ago and then it was widened and so there's another piece on it, and I'll have 
to get that information to you. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you, Governor.  Thank you, Cole. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Mr. Mortensen, thank you for the presentation.  A 
couple quick questions.  Has your team considered, due to these additional 
scopes… 

Mortensen: Mm-hmm. 

64 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Savage: …and additional dollars, have you considered alternate bid line item dollars 
for the RFP so that we as a Board and you as a department can actually look 
at the additional dollars that may or may not be spent due to our funding? 

Mortensen: Mm-hmm. 

Savage: Have you looked at that delivery system and… 

Mortensen: We haven't considered that yet to this point, but we can take that into 
consideration. 

Savage: It might be wise, because then you have a menu of what's affordable and 
what's not. 

Mortensen: What you're suggesting is we have a breakout for each of these items and if 
it turns out that it's less affordable than what we were anticipating that we 
would just remove one of those items and… 

Savage: Something to consider… 

Mortensen: Okay. 

Savage: …with your team would be… 

Mortensen: Yeah. 

Savage: That's all I have, Governor.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Yes, you knew.  Thank you, Governor.  To kind of address Member 
Fransway's question about the bridges.  I think it's my understanding that 
don't the bridges have to be built to a 75-year life now, to that standard?  Is 
that… 

Mortensen: I… 

Wallin: …my understanding? 

Mortensen: ...believe it is 75 years, if it's not more than that right now.  I know when I 
was a bridge engineer it was 75 years, but there isn't necessarily a magical 
equation in there that says that if we want it built for 50 years that you 
change the loads.  It's just that basically they've been calibrated so that when 

65 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

you design it this way, you anticipate a 75-year life expectancy out of the 
structure.  And now that doesn't mean at year 75 that that bridge has to be 
replaced.  Most of the time we actually go on those bridge inspections that 
were discussed earlier on the condition of the bridge and the situation that 
it's in. 

Wallin: Okay.  And then to kind of follow up with Member Savage's comment, kind 
of having a menu; I think that's a great idea, and the Governor also said, you 
know, you're building this house and you're adding on and adding on.  So I 
have concerns, you know, when we're adding on like this, because then 
what's going to happen if you come back to us in another month and we've 
added on.  So at some point we're going to have to say this is the project, 
you know, it's not our dream project that we're going to put every bell and 
whistle in the world on it.  So we kind of have to get in check there. 

And when you come out to brief the Board members, if you can bring with 
you what you gave us the first time, telling us about the project so we have 
the comparison to what you're going to show us now.  And then I really 
want to have a detailed breakdown, because I'm trying to get my head 
around why an 11% increase in the finance cost.  I'm really having a hard 
time with that as well.  But I think, you know, we really have to be 
cognizant of what we can and can't afford and with transportation dollars 
getting smaller and smaller, the fact that our fuel tax revenue has been flat 
for the last five years and I don't see it increasing because of fuel efficiency, 
that we have to be mindful of this; that we may end up doing this and we've 
got so many bells and whistles that this is the only thing that Nevada can 
pay for in the next 35 years.  So let's kind of be cognizant there. 

Mortensen: Absolutely. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Just one other component that the Controller prompted a thought -- 
or a question for me is how when you juxtapose what's going on with all this 
financing and what's happening federally, and so… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: …we have to have those components in mind as well when we (inaudible)... 

Malfabon: Definitely, Governor.  And I know that we've mentioned before, I think last 
month, that we have to see how the reauthorization plays out and that would 

66 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

definitely play into our recommendations to the Board on entering into this 
long-term agreement.  Even though that's going to only be a portion of that 
35 years funded through the reauthorization or whatever length of time it is, 
that at least gives us some idea of what is Congress', you know, preference 
on long-term versus short-term. 

Fransway: Governor? 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: One more real quick.  Mr. Director, do the members of our congressional 
delegation know the importance of TIFIA, particularly to this project? 

Malfabon: Yes, and the TIFIA program has been well-funded and, actually, it was 
increased under the current authorization.  So we will definitely keep them 
informed about the importance of TIFIA as far as to our congressional 
delegation. 

Mortensen: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: You've got a lot of work between now and the next meeting. 

Mortensen: Yeah. 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you.  Agenda Item 14, Briefing on NDOT's Research 
Program. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  In follow up to last month's presentation, we didn't 
do a good job of presenting the overall research program.  And you'll see 
subsequent to this Agenda item there is a specific request of additional 
support that's separate from our standard research program.  So we want to 
make the distinction a little bit clearer and respond to any questions the 
Board has. 

Also, I wanted to mention that, Governor, you had noted that there's a lot of 
studies and research throughout that large figure, $20 million, I believe.  
That does include some of the studies and planning efforts that are separate 
from research.  So we want to make that distinction and have Ken 
Chambers, our research chief, present a clearer picture of what the research 
program is and basically request Board consideration of how we're going to 
go forward in presenting the research program on an annual basis.  Ken. 

67 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Chambers: Thank you.  Governor, Board members.  My name is Ken Chambers.  I'm 
the chief of the research section here at the Department.  I'd like to introduce 
our program and our staff to you.  We have three main programs that we 
coordinate under research.  First of all, we're a section within planning, and 
this staff is responsible for several programs.  We maintain our library at the 
Department.  We handle the qualified products list through the product 
evaluation process.  And the program that I'm here to talk to you about 
today is our research program.  Next please. 

 Our research program is required under U.S. code.  There's generally 
provisions in every authorization act to spend the -- excuse me -- 2% of all 
of our apportionments are spent on planning and research, and of that 2% a 
quarter must be used on research.  So there's the half a percent of our 
apportionments that we use to do research.  That's great for the couple of 
weeks of the year that we're preparing our budget, but the other part of that 
is I'd like to point you to our mission statement of providing a better 
transportation system for Nevada through our unified and dedicated efforts. 

 We try to identify innovation that will make a better transportation system, 
better roads, better bridges, better projects, better plans, better processes to 
do everything better.  Here's an example of our apportionments.  The 
formula that was in the last slide.  Of the $350 million that's apportioned 
about $7 million of that is the 2% for planning and research.  Of that $7 
million a quarter of that, $1.73 million, was our apportionment for federal 
fiscal '14 for research.  This money comes with a requirement for matching 
funds.  It's mostly 80/20.  There are some exceptions. 

 Where do we spend this money?  Your Attachment A has some better 
examples or a little more detail.  But in general, we participate about half a 
million dollars a year in national programs, our staff salaries, the product 
evaluation process that I mentioned earlier.  That leaves about a million a 
year available for research projects.  How do we select these projects?  Our 
program is basically a process.  There is no requirement for a specific topic 
or area of research.  All that's required of us is that we follow a process.  
That process is outlined in our research manual, and we are currently 
underway in improving that process to make us a little bit more responsive. 

 Could we go back one slide, please?  Thank you.  The program, the process 
that I talked about is defined in the research manual.  It is rigorous and it 

68 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

enjoys strong participation from across the Department.  It starts off by 
identifying problem areas and questions.  The most relevant problem 
statements are sent out for proposal and those proposals, based on need and 
budget, are funded for projects.   

Now the timeline, please.  It is an annual cycle and as I said, we're working 
on improving that.  A couple more clicks, please.  This is an annual process 
that I think you've seen before.  And, again, we are moving toward making 
this project selection process quarterly rather than annually to be more 
responsive for the Department.  Next please. 

 The Research Advisory Committee does the heavy lifting here in the 
Department.  This is a group of individuals that work outside their job 
elements, and I appreciate their efforts.  Last year, they reviewed ad ranked 
77 problem statements.  The research coordinator, at their direction, 
solicited proposals on the top 15 problem statements, and when those 
proposals were received, there were 28 of them.  Those proposals were 
ranked again by the Research Advisory Committee.  Those proposals 
include scope, budget, schedule.  The Research Advisory Committee 
reviewed those proposals and made a final recommendation to the 
Management Committee. 

 The Research Management Committee -- next slide, please -- consists of our 
two deputy directors, four assistant directors.  And they review the 
recommendations from the Advisory Committee, make any adjustments 
necessary and give us our direction for each annual program.  Last year, the 
Research Management Committee approved nine projects for funding.  The 
direct benefits of research -- next slide, please -- research is innovation.  
Innovation that saves lives, it saves money and it helps us do everything we 
do at the Department better. 

 A couple of examples I'd like to share.  Marked and unmarked crosswalks 
and pedestrian behavior.  Pedestrians seem to have the expectation that a 
painted line on the road provides safety.  We've done studies that help 
identify the geometry of the roadway to help us locate crosswalks better 
based on the roadway, and to not contradict that human behavior.  This is a 
difficult project to try to quantify the benefits, because when no pedestrian 
is injured there's not an article about it.   

69 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

A much more tangible example is our mechanically stabilized earth walls.  
Basically, retaining walls that you see around many of our structures in 
Nevada.  Those retaining walls, a maintenance worker once identified that 
the retaining straps behind those walls had corroded much faster than 
expected.  He submitted a problem statement; it was selected as a proposal 
and funded.  That research identified that the corrosion on those straps was 
probably going to allow those straps to last about 10 to 12 years rather than 
the 50 or 75 years that we expect our structures to last.  That is a direct 
benefit. 

 Again, better things to do and better ways to do them.  Indirect benefits -- 
next please -- we can immediately implement innovation.  The MSE wall 
example that I just gave you, the panel members that oversaw that 
agreement were from our materials section and could change -- basically 
what that particular project identified was that the test methods of the 
corrosivity of the soil were not appropriate, especially for some of the soils 
in Southern Nevada.  By us doing the research, we could implement and 
change the testing procedure before that result was even published. 

We also work side by side with our universities to support their capacity and 
methodologies to research problem areas that we recognize are coming.  
And we also like to see their students participate in NDOT-related projects.  
We share our solutions with states, cities, counties, all of our transportation 
partners.  We post our results on the National Transportation Library 
webpage.  We don't just work in a bubble.  We work together to help and 
coordinate with other agencies that have similar problems.  Next please. 

Our overhead rate; this first bullet is misleading and I'd like to provide a 
little bit of context.  There is no single national rate.  The overhead rate is 
established by the cognizant agency.  That's defined as the agency that 
provides the substantial amount of funding for a program or a project.  What 
this number represents is what I could find in a few minutes at short notice 
to give you some perspective of the rate that we have currently.  I believe 
that this cognizant agency concept is what allowed my predecessor to 
negotiate a fairly favorable rate of 23% with the Nevada universities.  Next 
please. 

The University Transportation Center, as we discussed last month that is 
another tool available to the Department for research.  Like our research 

70 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

program, their award requires matching funds, and it's available to us if we 
choose to use that for our benefit.  The future of the research program -- 
next please -- I'm not going to stop and wait to see what Congress does, but 
I'm going to plan to be here and be ready to take up the next round of 
proposals and solicitations.  We are currently improving our process to 
become, again, a little more effective and a little more responsive for the 
Department, our primary customer.  And this program will remain 
independent of whether or not we participate in the UTC.  Next please. 

In closing, I offer, if it pleases the Board, that we would come back and 
update you on our research program, and remind you that any request for 
UTC funding will be made separately to this Board for possible action.  That 
concludes my presentation.  Thank you very much for this opportunity. 

Sandoval: Thank you very much.  It was very thorough.  There's a fact that I didn't 
know that I learned today, which is it's kind of like the public art with the 
projects.  There's a certain amount of money within the budget that has to be 
spent on research.  And it was my understanding, at least obviously 
mistakenly before, that there was some discretion involved in that you could 
-- and I made the point last week, I'd rather see the money going towards 
projects, but even if we wanted to we couldn't, because there's a specific set 
aside for research in our budget.  So we either have to -- I guess we have to 
use it or lose it would be a fair characterization? 

Chambers: Yes, Governor, that's correct.  In fact, a couple of the examples that Cole 
Mortensen brought up -- Mortensen.  Sorry Cole.  The crumb rubber usage 
on Project NEON, the ghost striping issue.  Those are both topics that we're 
able to and have started research projects on to address to help save money 
in other areas. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  No, and I guess I feel bad because I would have put you through all 
this grief.  If I'd had known that… 

Malfabon: Well, we didn't do… 

Sandoval: …that there was some discretion involved. 

Malfabon: …a good job of explaining it last month, so Ken did a thorough job this 
time. 

71 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Because, you know, I'm obviously very fearful of what's going on in 
Washington, and if there's dollars -- if I had my preference that dollars can 
go to projects or it could go to research, I'm going to pick projects 
respectfully every time.  But here, you know, I learned today that the money 
has to go to research regardless of anything else, by federal law.  And so 
that's good to know.  So which kind of brings it back to your team which is, 
you know, you've made a compelling presentation on the vetting it goes 
through in terms of selection of those projects.  Because I think Member 
Skancke made a really good point last meeting, which was we don't want to 
do research for research's sake and have a binder on the shelf.  We want to 
be doing research that has direct application to the projects or to the roads 
that we're doing. and so that satisfies me better.   

I'm still going to hammer away on the admin fee.  Because it always 
concerns me because on both Board of Examiners and here we've had kind 
of an immediate agreement, well, we'll drop it to 8%, you know, when they 
were up in the 20s or the 30s.  And, you know, and I want to be fair on that.  
I know the number's not zero, but I just want to make sure that as many 
dollars as possible is going toward the actual research versus overhead and 
administrative fees.  So that's the reason why I've been going -- and, you 
know, the fact that other states are 46% isn't a lot of solace to me.  I just 
want to make sure that here in Nevada we're spending every dollar the best 
possible way that we can.  So I don't have any further questions or 
comments.  Board members?  Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  And thank you, Mr. Chambers, for your 
presentation.  Very thorough.  And as you know, this Board and the 
Department is all about effectiveness and transparency.  And at this time in 
our lives economics research is now under a microscope.  So I appreciate 
your patience and I just have a few questions for you, because it was a very 
thorough presentation.  But how often does the Research Advisory 
Committee meet? 

Chambers: Currently that committee meets twice a year, each year for slightly different 
purposes.  The first meeting is to prioritize problem statements and 
determine the cutoff line to solicit proposals on the most valuable problem 
statements.  They meet again after the proposals have been received, 
typically a couple months, and rank those proposals again as a 

72 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

recommendation for the Management Committee.  So currently it's twice a 
year. 

 If I could also take one moment to step ahead to -- I've alluded to the 
changes that we're in the process of making to become more effective.  
What we'd like to do is rather than burden this committee with 77 problem 
statements and then 28 proposals, as I said, above and beyond their work 
duties, we'd like to break them out into expert task groups aligned more 
appropriately with topical areas, hopefully spread the load a little bit and 
then have them meet quarterly to review those problem statements as well. 

Savage: I think that'd be a good idea.  And then to date in 2014, how many problem 
statements have been received or reviewed by your department? 

Chambers: At this moment, we have not put out the solicitation.  We don't want to 
violate the process outlined in our research manual.  Even though that 
process is dated, it's overseen by FHWA, and what we've done is ask them 
formally in a memo can we modify this process for this year.  When we get 
permission to do that we will conduct this process a little outside the 
guidelines of that manual and then we'll be able to incorporate the best parts 
of those changes into the next generation of the research manual. 

Savage: That makes good sense.  Again, because it's about effectiveness and 
transparency.  So my last question would be if I wanted to review a couple 
of the results of the agreements, would that be a request that's 30 days away 
or 60 days away for research programs that have already been completed? 

Chambers: That's moments away. 

Savage: Moments away? 

Chambers: Yes. 

Savage: Because I have a few agreement numbers here that I took out of the 
February 2014 meeting minutes. 

Chambers: Yes, sir. 

Savage: If you could be so kind, I'll just give you the agreement numbers. 

Chambers: Okay. 

73 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Savage: The first one is 22713. 

Chambers: Okay. 

Savage: The next one is 52813.  The third one is 24012.  The fourth one is 18804 
and the last one is 26911. 

Chambers: I'm at a little bit of a loss because the format of those numbers is a little bit 
odd. 

Savage: Those were agreement numbers that we reviewed back in the February 
meeting.  And I have a list that I can show you after the meeting, 
Mr. Chambers, and we can take the time to discuss it in my office or any 
time that's convenient for yourself. 

Chambers: I would appreciate it. 

Savage: But I appreciate your time and effort. 

Chambers: Thank you. 

Savage: Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: You're welcome.  And just one last question.  Because I noticed that 
Arizona State and the University of New Mexico are part of this consortium, 
and you're obviously much closer to the process.  So, you know, I want to 
keep the money in state, I guess is the bottom line, and so… 

Malfabon: That's coming up, Governor, and he'll respond to that question specifically 
as far as Nevada money going to Nevada research projects. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Malfabon: So would that… 

Sandoval: I'll just save it.  Yeah. 

Malfabon: That was basically for -- we're requesting the Board consider this as the 
option, an annual presentation, or if we go to the quarterly identification of 
what research projects are going to be funded, we would report quarterly.  
But the idea was to keep this as an informational report to the Board for our 
normal research federally funded projects.  And separate from that are these 

74 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

types of UTC requests that will be asked specifically for Board action, and 
we have one, you know, revisiting that on Agenda Item 15 coming up.  So 
just request action on Item No. 14 first. 

Martinez: Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Martinez: For the record, Madam Controller wanted you to know that she needed to 
leave, so she left about five minutes ago.  But my understanding is you still 
have a quorum. 

Sandoval: Yes.  Thank you very much.  So what is the action that you're seeking 
(inaudible)? 

Malfabon: The action would be similar to what we did to request that the Board receive 
these as an informational item, not as an approval item for the Board. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Discussion from Board members?  And I think I said this at a 
previous meeting; I don't want to start having to review or approve all those 
agreements, so we trust your discretion on that, but I would like to have a 
continuous update of kind of what we're doing.  And I think as Member 
Savage indicated, just to make sure that the research is connecting with 
projects and has measurable outcomes in terms of what we're doing with the 
money.  But that's just me.  Any other member comments?  So the motion 
would be a motion to approve a process by which the research program 
would be a quarterly informational item presented to the Board? 

Malfabon: Annually currently, Governor, but if it changes to quarterly we would make 
that presentation. 

Sandoval: I didn't mean to scare you.  Okay.  An annual presentation to the Board. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: So questions or comments or if not, is there a motion? 

Skancke: So moved. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke has moved for approval of a process by which the annual 
research program will be presented to the Board on an annual basis.  Is there 
a second? 

75 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Fransway: On a quarterly basis, right? 

Sandoval: No, annual. 

Malfabon: Annually, but if we change the process to quarterly we would inform you 
quarterly.  It's currently annual. 

Fransway: And does that need to be in the motion that instead of annually it would be 
quarterly? 

Sandoval: No, that's what we just said that we didn't -- or at least I didn't want to do, 
have it every… 

Malfabon: The research program hasn't been changed.  Currently, it's annual so we 
would do the annual.  And it's subject to if the process is changed and 
FHWA approves a quarterly, we would basically present quarterly.  But 
currently it's annually. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I'm still looking for a second. 

Savage: I'll second the motion for an annual review. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Savage.  Questions or discussion on the motion?  All in 
favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes 4-0. 

Malfabon: Okay, Governor, Ken Chambers will present the specific request to fund the 
-- this is separate from our typical research program.  This is using state 
funds to match this UTC research.  Ken. 

Chambers: Thank you.  As was discussed last month, we had asked for support to 
finance up to $1 million to increase the capacity of research done in Nevada 
with this request.  Next please.  The University of Nevada has received a 
grant; a very competitive process that selected them out of over 120 
applicants.  This is the first time that UNR has been identified as a 
university transportation center.  Next please.  Their grant of $2.8 million 
has commitments for matching portions from New Mexico and Arizona 
universities.  This request would leverage basically a one-to-one, an equal 
portion of that grant for research.  Next please. 

76 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

 What would we have studied?  Basically, this would, again, expand our 
current process, identify -- the potential areas that would benefit from 
research are pretty well identified from our current existing program.  This 
would expand the scope and let us tackle bigger projects and a larger 
number of projects.  Your Attachment B has titles of a -- and a summary of 
some of those projects.  Next please.  Like our research program, the UTC 
has an advisory committee composed of 18 professionals.  Your Attachment 
A identifies each of those members.  That committee would function to rank 
the proposals for NDOT's approval.  Next please. 

 The University of Nevada, Reno has done well academically in the past.  
They've provided NDOT with excellent applied research results that we can 
use, and we expect that to continue.  This is also a great investment in our 
future engineers.  We love to see these students across the table at an 
interview when they have firsthand experience with dealing with some of 
our problems.  Next please.  Also, UNR has been a resource used by other 
transportation partners, our cities, our counties, the RTCs in Nevada, and 
has been recognized publically.  Next please. 

 Finally, Governor, I would request that the Board approve $1 million in 
state highway funds to match federal funds for research projects conducted 
under SOLARIS.  That concludes my presentation.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: So this is different than what we just talked about?  This is $1 million on top 
of the $2 million that is part of the budget? 

Chambers: That's correct. 

Malfabon: Yes.  This is $1 million in state funds and this is basically to match the 
research that NDOT would select as part of that process of the advisory 
committee.  So it is on top of, Governor.  That's why we had it as a separate 
action item. 

Sandoval: Okay.  And just so I'm clear on that last thing that we approved.  Any time 
there's research that involves state highway funds outside of that mandated 
amount that's something will come to the Board, correct? 

Malfabon: Correct. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Member Skancke. 

77 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Skancke: Thank you, Governor.  This is a superb presentation.  Thank you, Ken, for 
giving us this detailed information.  I think it's helpful to take a look at -- 
that other states are helping with the match; that our dollars will stay in 
Nevada and the outside states will be participating to reach the match for the 
$2 million from the feds.  So this is very helpful and beneficial for us to 
have a better understanding of what's going on.  I just wanted to, Governor, 
get clarification from counsel.  I sit on the advisory board, it's a volunteer 
position.  I want to make sure that there wasn't a conflict.  I would support 
this today, but I want to make sure that I'm able to vote.  And if I have to 
abstain I will, but I don't think there is a conflict. 

Gallagher: For the record, Dennis Gallagher, Counsel for the Board.  The question is 
whether or not you believe that the independence of your judgment would 
be affected by your relationship with this organization.  If you do not 
believe so, your disclosure on the record is sufficient and the Board can 
move on. 

Sandoval: If you don't participate, we don't have a quorum. 

Skancke: I don't think there's a conflict. 

Sandoval: Just saying. 

Skancke: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Questions from other Board members?  So this was my concern before.  
This is taking a million dollars away from projects and… 

Malfabon: This is four years, Governor. 

Sandoval: Pardon? 

Malfabon: I wanted to point out that it is over a four-year period, so $250,000 
approximately a year. 

Sandoval: So do you think the expenditure of this million dollars will provide more 
savings in benefit than the million dollars that we're spending? 

Chambers: Governor, of course as the research chief, absolutely.  More importantly, in 
all seriousness, sir, I would turn to my partners within the Department of 
Transportation and point out their participation in our process is exemplary.  

78 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

And their perceived value of our program is something that means more to 
me than, oh, yes, let's spend a million dollars of taxpayer money and 
leverage another million dollars of federal grant.  In my mind, that's 
secondary to the projects that we could -- the research projects that we could 
deliver for our brothers and sisters here in the Department to help them do 
their job better.  So I would rely on their discretion and their input to say we 
don't have to spend that last $100,000.  There's not a topic here that we're 
interested in researching.  But I would give them that opportunity. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  No, there's just going to be that much more scrutiny at least on these.  
And as I look through the select list of proposed research projects, when you 
talk about safe and efficient pedestrian accommodation at coordinated 
signalized intersections, I mean you can't put a price on if this research is 
done and it shows that we can do some things to improve safety, perhaps 
we've saved a life here.  When you look at some of these more 
engineering-type; use of self-consolidating concrete for precast, prestressed 
bridge girders.  I don't know exactly what all that is, but what it means to me 
is that perhaps there's a better way to build it and preserve it and those 
things.  So perhaps that'll be a monetary savings and a safety savings to 
citizens. 

 So I just need to justify this million dollars because, again, we have limited 
funds now.  And there's just a lot more scrutiny that's going to happen than 
before given what's happened in Washington and the fuel tax and those 
types of things, what the Controller had mentioned before.  So I just wanted 
you to put that on the record that, at least in your humble opinion and the 
opinion of those that are part of the selection team, that these will have those 
long-term benefits for the people of the State of Nevada. 

Chambers: Yes, Governor.  And, again, I think that the real strength, the pillar of our 
research program and what's mirrored by this schematic here at the UTC, is 
that process relies on the subject matter experts.  If the bridge people, if the 
designers, if the traffic operations people, if the maintenance people say this 
will benefit what we do, then I would stand behind them and say, yes, that 
will benefit them. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I have no other comments or questions.  Member Fransway. 

79 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  As was mentioned in the last meeting, this is a 
carryover from that.  And I want to make a comparison to the 
recommendations then and now.  Then it mentioned that we were going to 
work with the University of Nevada, Reno.  Will that still be the case? 

Chambers: Governor, Member Fransway, yes.  The center is actually located at the 
University of Nevada, Reno.  There is equal participation with University of 
Nevada, Las Vegas, as well as Desert Research Institute. 

Malfabon: So, Ken, the agreements will be with those three entities, not SOLARIS, 
correct? 

Chambers: That's correct. 

Malfabon: So there'll be -- let me clarify.  There'll be, basically, a million dollars worth 
of projects selected and depending on whether the proposal came from 
UNR, UNLV, or Desert Research Institute, I think that we gave you a 
breakdown of who had submitted what proposals in your backup.  But the 
point was that, yes, UNR submitted seven possible projects for 
consideration; UNLV, 14; Desert Research Institute, 1.  And the total of 
that, basically, would expend that million dollars with the million dollars in 
matching funds.  The idea was that Nevada dollars are going to Nevada 
research institutions, but each agreement to total up to this amount that 
you're authorizing would be, you know, basically entered into an agreement 
by agreement, project by project, research project.  So it's not like one 
master agreement, it's basically the agreements will be done per each 
research project similar to the regular research program. 

 But by the action today, the UTC SOLARIS would have, basically, Board 
approval of the process and the expenditure over the next four years of that 
money.  They could count on it, basically, that NDOT is going to provide 
the funds to match the federal funds. 

Fransway: So you're saying that the Nevada University Transportation Center is 
comprised of three entities, correct? 

Malfabon: It is five, but the Nevada money will go to the three within Nevada. 

80 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Fransway: Right.  Okay.  And then also stated in the original recommendation from last 
meeting that NDOT would select the research projects that it will fund.  Will 
that carry over to your recommendation today? 

Malfabon: NDOT has eight members, four from the RTCs in the north and south and 
then Member Skancke is serving as an at-large advisory member on that 
primarily, because of his transportation expertise and his willingness to 
volunteer to help us out on the selection.  So you can see that 
overwhelmingly there's -- that NDOT has a large presence on that 18-
member board, not quite half.  But this clarifies the process for selection and 
there is significant amount of Nevada representation on that advisory 
committee that selects the projects.  That was the point of that.  I think that 
we had to clarify that and we had to dig into the details of the membership, 
Member Fransway and (inaudible). 

Fransway: So my question is, Mr. Director, can we be assured that this million dollars 
will be for research that benefits the State of Nevada, particularly? 

Larkin-Thomason: May I add to that?  I just wanted to say that… 

Malfabon: Would you identify yourself, please, Tracy. 

Larkin-Thomason: Tracy Larkin-Thomason.  I'm the deputy director in Southern Nevada.  On 
these boards, we will only -- yes, NDOT will only pay for ones that we find 
pertinent.  The UTC can look for other funding if we choose not to, so when 
you look at the whole list of projects there's some projects that I do not 
really see -- it's unlikely they'll go through the entire vetting process.  But 
it's always been that we want ones that are applicable to what we do here.  
There's many fine projects on the list, but we will only match -- or make the 
recommendation for ones that are applicable to us. 

Fransway: Okay.  So the short… 

Larkin-Thomason: Does that answer your question? 

Fransway: …answer to the question is yes, we will have the latitude? 

Larkin-Thomason: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 

81 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Larkin-Thomason: Okay.  The short version, yes. 

Sandoval: And just so I'm clear, because it says here that ADOT and, I don't know 
what they call -- and MDOT, they're not putting any money as we know as 
we speak right now into this -- or no, the states aren't -- or no, the DOTs 
aren't.  But… 

Malfabon: But the -- yes.  But the… 

Sandoval: …the universities are making up the difference? 

Malfabon: ...universities are matching, yes. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Malfabon: Usually through in-kind services, such as labor, materials, things like that. 

Sandoval: But Nevada is putting the super majority of the money into this, correct? 

Malfabon: Yes, and for the benefit of Nevada (inaudible). 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Again, I just want to make -- that's what I want clear is that we're not 
subsidizing other states? 

Malfabon: No. 

Sandoval: Okay.  All right.  Any other questions with regard to Agenda Item 15?  All 
right.  Is there a motion? 

Savage: I make a motion to approve Agenda Item 15 as stated, Governor. 

Sandoval: So what action are you seeking here, Rudy, just so I'm clear? 

Malfabon: It would be to recommend approval of up to $1 million of state highway 
funds over the next four years to support this Nevada UTC known as 
SOLARIS. 

Sandoval: Okay.  So we have a motion in that regard from Member Savage.  Is there a 
second? 

Skancke: I'll second. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  
All in favor, say aye. 

82 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  The motion passes 4-0. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  And… 

Sandoval: Thank you. 

Malfabon: …thank you, Member Fransway, for pointing out that we needed to provide 
more information to the Board from the Agenda item last month.  And thank 
you, Ken, for presenting that very clearly.  Next Agenda item, Governor, 
is -- Bill Hoffman will brief the Board on Nevada Pacific Parkway.  I know 
it's an important issue, but we are running over.  So, Bill, take it away. 

Hoffman: Thank you, Rudy.  Good morning.  Wait.  No.  My goodness, it's afternoon 
already.  Okay.  Good afternoon, Governor, Transportation Board members.  
Bill Hoffman, Deputy Director, talking about Nevada Pacific Parkway.  So I 
was here before you in February, and we talked pretty high level regarding 
Nevada Pacific Parkway.  Today, I'll dig in a little bit into the details on 
expenditures and costs for the project.  I did provide you quite a bit of 
reading material.  I hope I didn't ruin any of the ballgames for you guys over 
the weekend.  So hopefully you were able to pour through all of those 
documents.  I'm sure you did and you'll probably have some very good 
questions at the end. 

 So what I wanted to do is just jump back and talk about the project benefits.  
We need to get that clear.  The vision that the Wade's had back in the 1990s, 
late 1990s, was a good one.  This is a good project for Nevada.  It's a good 
project for the Fernley area and it's a good project for regional transportation 
around the Fernley area.  So this slide shows the Crossroads Commerce 
Center that was being planned.  Industrial, commercial development area.  
Has rail access.  This is I-80 right here.  This is US 50A.  So you can see the 
circulation improvements that the interchange project and Nevada Pacific 
Parkway play into the overall picture for transportation throughout this 
business and economic development center. 

 So that's the economic development piece.  That's needed.  Ingress and 
egress throughout this development is critical, and this project provides that.  
Also, the roundabout that's on US 50A provides -- well, right now is -- I 
wouldn't say it's maxed out, but there are times where it is at its maximum 

83 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

capacity.  So this project actually helps relieve traffic that goes to the 
roundabout there.  So from a congestion standpoint, economic development 
standpoint this is a solid project. 

 So the project elements that I went over last time, new I-80 Interchange 
phase one.  That was completed in 2009.  New four-lane roadway, phases 
two and three.  There's a northern section and a southern section.  Phase two 
was completed in 2012.  Railroad bridge, which is part of phase three, and a 
connection to US 50A.  And with that phase three completion you'll have a 
completed project and it will reach the benefits that everybody thought it 
would. 

 So just very quickly, map version, new interchange.  It was completed in 
2009.  This red piece is phase two.  That was completed in 2012.  Phase 
three, which is nearing design completion at this point.  It's about 80-85% 
designed.  We are still looking for funding to complete that portion -- or in 
conjunction or in cooperation with the Wade's, we are looking for funding to 
complete this section. 

 Now, this is an interesting piece here that Member Fransway has picked up 
on.  There was an existing roadway here long before the interchange project 
started.  And that, along with phase two and phase three, will be maintained 
by the City of Fernley.  So those have not and will not be under the 
Department's maintenance responsibility area.  So I just wanted to make that 
clear, because Member Fransway, you've talked about the existing condition 
of Nevada Pacific Parkway, specifically that portion of the roadway that's 
been out there for many years.  And it's not in the greatest condition.  That's 
certain.  There are transverse thermal cracks all the way up and down this 
roadway.  However, unfortunately, the City of Fernley just doesn't have the 
funding to rehabilitate the road as it's needed.  So I wanted to address your 
issues and items, Member Fransway, at least that one in particular, because I 
know that's come up a couple of times. 

 So with that I just wanted to go over a project timeline with you.  I started at 
2008 for a reason.  I'm sure by reading the materials that you have you've 
probably reached the conclusion that there was quite a bit of a difference 
between the original agreement and the amendment.  And because of the 
recession and the economic climate, back in 2008, what I would guess 
happened is because of the economic downturn that the Wade's endured, 

84 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

they approached a previous NDOT administration on renegotiating the 
terms of that original agreement, which really put Nevada Pacific Parkway 
in their purview for completing. 

 So based on interviews that I've conducted, information that I've looked at, 
that is my conclusion, is that there was devastating financial circumstances 
that the Wade's were enduring at that time and they needed relief and NDOT 
accommodated that.  And honestly, this is just my humble opinion, but I 
think that was probably for the good of the project, for the good of NDOT, 
for the good of the Wade's, quite honestly.  So it kept the project moving 
along instead of trying to walk down the bitter legal path. 

So 2009, the interchange was completed.  I think I've gone over all of this ad 
nauseam, so I will just -- although this part of the agreement, you've 
probably noticed, April 1, 2019, we have to have that phase three -- or the 
Wade's have to have that phase three of the project completed as the 
amendment is written.  So some points that were brought up at the February 
meeting hopefully -- I went through the February Board Meeting minutes in 
detail, highlighted, made notes, wanted to make sure that I answered every 
single Board member's questions.  The state economic development funds 
were not state economic development funds as, Governor, you pointed out.  
It couldn't have been.  So I went back and researched and, of course, they 
were actually set aside NDOT highway funds that was part of an NDOT 
program to help with rural economic development for projects exactly like 
this one. 

It was approved at a 2005 Transportation Board meeting and it was not to 
exceed $4.8 million in total for use on this project -- for the construction of 
the interchange on this project.  So the next one, control of access value and 
contribution.  Property rights; I went through this.  There is an increase 
property right value that NDOT gets through the control of access, the 
opening now that exists for the interchange project, for access to the 
interstate.  It was valued at $5.765 million.  The control of access, as I read 
in the amendment and in the agreement, control of access value was 
NDOT's contribution to the interchange project in exchange for the 
developer completing the Nevada Pacific Parkway from I-80 to US 50A.  
And there is an article within the amendment that clearly talks about what 
happens with this value if the project is not completed by April 1, 2019. 

85 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Project cost and expenditures -- I better grab a drink of water.  This might 
take a while.  This is where the numbers come out.  So project cost and 
expenditures, and this was included in your Board packets.  What I tried to 
do is just shrink it down, make it a little bit more legible for the slides.  So 
phase one, the I-80 interchange, was completed in 2009.  The estimated 
construction cost, $14.5 million.  Actual construction cost, final actual, 
$10.8 million.  Now, Governor, you had asked questions about, okay -- and 
what I had presented was we took the savings and just rolled them into 
phase two.  That's not exactly what happened.  So what happened was 
NDOT retained those $3.6 million and change in savings and then 
programmed $2.74 million in eligible federal funds for the project.  So that's 
different than just rolling it in.  There were two separate actions; a retain for 
the savings and then an actual program for those amounts.  So hopefully that 
cleared that piece up. 

And then phase two, Nevada Pacific Parkway.  Estimated construction cost, 
$2.887.  Actual is $2.859.  So if you look at the -- these were a couple of 
very successful projects, quite honestly, and the phase one project finished, I 
think, 22 days ahead of schedule, if I did my math right.  And I don't have 
any of that information up, but the documents I looked at.  And I should 
mention, kudos to City of Fernley.  They provided the 5% matching funds 
for that phase two portion on Nevada Pacific Parkway, that northern section. 

So phase three, status on that.  Estimated construction cost, $10 million.  It's 
to be constructed per the amendment, April 1, 2019.  It's currently unfunded 
at this point, the construction.  We don't have the funding for that.  I will say 
that if we go back to… 

Sandoval: Let me stop you there. 

Hoffman: Sure.  Sure. 

Sandoval: When you say "we," it's not NDOT, it's the developer. 

Hoffman: Yes.  Yes, Governor, that is correct.  So based on the amendment and the 
original agreement, it does put the onus, so to speak, on the developer for 
completing the project. 

Sandoval: And when was the original date of completion?  I know we extended this. 

86 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Hoffman: I want to think it was… 

Fransway: January 1st of 2010, I think. 

Hoffman: Yeah, 2010 was what I was going to say.  But that was to complete the 
interchange project.  There was verbiage in the original agreement that 
spoke about NDOT and the developer getting together to work out when the 
Nevada Pacific Parkway project should be completed. 

Fransway: Governor, if I may. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  And I don't want to -- I want to let… 

Hoffman: Okay. 

Sandoval: …Mr. Hoffman finish his presentation, but if you have a question, at least 
on this piece… 

Fransway: I do. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Fransway: According to the original agreement… 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm. 

Fransway: …the phase three of the project was to add two additional lanes, making the 
total lane volume at six.  The original connect to Highway 50, according to 
the original agreement... 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm.  Okay. 

Fransway: ...was January 1, 2010.  And go ahead with your… 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm.  Okay. 

Fransway: …presentation, Mr. Hoffman… 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm. 

Fransway: …but that is my interpretation. 

Hoffman: Okay. 

87 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Fransway: And I believe it strongly indicates that in the original agreement. 

Hoffman: Okay.  Thank you, Member Fransway.  So what I went through before were 
project costs.  Now, these are expenditures.  So federal funds that were 
expended on construction costs, construction engineering and management 
costs for a total of $11.46 million.  State gas tax funds, $4.17 million, were 
spent.  That was under the $4.8 maximum that was approved at that 
previous Board meeting -- or the previous Transportation Board meeting.  
And then the developer has put in $3.3 million in design and that was -- the 
design was separate.  There was never a flow through of funds for the 
design cost.  The developer did those separate.  The only link to NDOT was 
their design had to be reviewed by NDOT and met minimum standards.  
Okay.  Plus the right-of-way value that I'm not quite sure, probably in the $3 
to $4 million range of right-of-way that they donated for the roadway and 
the interchange. 

 And this is how it breaks down.  Design work that the developer put in, 
$2.5.  I've heard as high as $3.1.  I'm still trying to consolidate all of the 
different information.  I've looked in three or four different cost accounting 
systems, so I'm trying to get down to the nitty-gritty on that whole thing.  
And just very quickly, this is how the $3.3 million breaks down.  The right-
of-way value is for 21 acres.  It's been donated for all the -- okay.  And then 
Member Skancke, you had asked about federal matching fund percentages.  
Of the $11.5 million in federal funds reimbursed, $535,000; they were 
reimbursed at 100%.  So this was a special earmark or special grant that 
didn't require matching funds.  Then the remainder, the $10,923,560 would 
have been reimbursed at the 95/5 rate that Nevada likes to take advantage 
of. 

 So with that, I'll open it up for questions. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  So just so I am clear, the state has made 
its contribution and it is not on the hook for any expenditures from 80 to 50, 
between now and 2019? 

Hoffman: That is correct, Governor. 

88 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: Okay.  And then phase two is done.  We're designing phase three, which has 
to be done by April of 2019.  Assuming that gets completed, that existing 
roadway, who's responsible for that? 

Hoffman: That's the City of Fernley, Governor.  So the City of Fernley, the developer 
has, I believe -- and we have Patty Wade here if you guys so desire her to 
speak on this.  But they've worked out an agreement with the City of 
Fernley to maintain from about, you know, this portion of the interchange 
all the way down just inside of -- or just outside of our right-of-way. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Hoffman: Or at our right-of-way line, actually. 

Sandoval: So bottom line for me is we've done -- we being the State of Nevada, has 
done everything it's going to do with regard to this project, and we're just 
waiting to see what the outcome would be with phase three.  And will you 
remind me, assuming -- and I don't like to do that, but assuming phase three 
doesn't get built, what happens? 

Hoffman: Okay.  So let me just move this over.  There we go.  Okay.  Thank you.  So 
the way that the amendment reads is that if phase three is not constructed 
and usable by April 1, 2019, the developer is supposed to reimburse NDOT 
the $5.765 million in control of access property right values that we 
contributed to the interchange project, minus right-of-way donations -- the 
value of the right-of-way donations that the developer's already made for -- I 
believe it's the interchange project.  It might be for both.  I'd have to look at 
that.  It looks like -- I see a question coming, Mr. Fransway. 

Sandoval: So is it possible that the right-of-way will exceed that value and that we 
would owe the developer money? 

Hoffman: Based on some quick -- whipping up some numbers and doing the quick 
math, there would be a little room left for us to receive dollars back.  But I 
would have to really dig in and see what the actual -- we would actually 
have to have our right-of-way division help us determine what the actual fair 
market value property cost back to the year of expenditure; those sorts of 
things.  We'd have to go through a fairly rigorous exercise. 

Sandoval: And pardon the pun... 

89 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Hoffman: Yeah.  Yeah. 

Sandoval: ...we'll cross that bridge when it comes. 

Hoffman: Mm-hmm. 

Sandoval: But if that happened, and it's years away, we don't really know, but if that 
road doesn't get built, we'll have built an interchange that doesn't connect to 
anything. 

Hoffman: Not a lot of connection, Governor, but there is some benefit.  There is some 
benefit.  There is still this piece that this development still gets to use.  Now, 
you know, the pavement is not in great shape here.  The intention was for 
this full cutoff or bypass, so to speak, but there is some circulation that we're 
benefiting from.  Nowhere near what we would if this whole thing was 
complete though.  You're correct. 

Sandoval: Because it's a good project.  I mean that -- it would be very helpful to get 
away from that circle at… 

Hoffman: Right.  Right.  The -- yeah.  There's the roundabout... 

Sandoval: Roundabout.  Thank you. 

Hoffman: ...right here.  Yeah, so… 

Sandoval: Any other questions?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  And I suppose the first thing I need to do is disclose 
that I am the only member of the current Board that took the original action 
in September of 2008 to see this done.  The Controller was also present, but 
I see she is not with us now.  I can tell you that as far as I'm concerned the 
amendment is totally different, totally different from the intent of the Board 
back in September 20th of 2008, or is it 2007.  Yes, 2008.  As far as I'm 
concerned, particularly after what you just said about the continuation to 
connect, what incentive does the developer have now to make that 
connection when she's going to have to reimburse the Department if she 
doesn't for the control of access cost and you compare that to the cost to 
complete the project? 

Hoffman: Member Fransway? 

90 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Fransway: Go ahead. 

Hoffman: I'll go ahead and answer.  I'm speaking on behalf of Patty Wade.  She is 
here, if you'd like to hear what her answer would be to that.  But I would say 
that just as we would benefit from having this completed, they're the 
developer of all of this property.  The more roadway they get in, the better.  
So I think there is an incentive for them to complete this for their benefit 
and, obviously, then to stand by the amendment that they've signed to the 
original agreement with NDOT to complete the project.  But I do think there 
is a benefit to them just from an economic development standpoint. 

Fransway: Okay.  Mr. Hoffman, you mentioned that NDOT will not be responsible for 
any funds to make the connection, correct? 

Hoffman: That's correct.  We are not responsible or have any authority to put any 
funds towards the project. 

Fransway: Well, when I read the amendment and correspond that with the original 
agreement that the Board based its decision on, I see that Article 1, 
Paragraph 1 was changed.  The financial obligation of the developer was 
changed by $7.5 million.  It was changed from the original agreement of 
"Developer agrees to pay all construction costs associated with the project in 
excess of $5.6 million."  In the amendment it changed that figure and said 
that the developer agrees to pay all project in excess of $13 million.  That's 
$8 million. 

Hoffman: Yes, sir, it is.  The difference that you're talking about… 

Fransway: Okay.  So who's going to pay the $8 million? 

Hoffman: I'm trying to figure out how… 

Fransway: I know and I… 

Hoffman: ...I'm trying to follow and I apologize, but Patty Wade is coming up.  Is it all 
right if she speaks, Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Hoffman: Okay.  Patty. 

91 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Wade: I was just standing and hoping I'd get a shot.  Good afternoon, Governor and 
members of the Board.  There a lot of history here.  We talked about it a 
little bit at the last meeting, but I think it might be helpful -- and I'll get to 
the numbers, Member Fransway.  I'd be happy to.  But if I could just take a 
minute to kind of explain to everybody and make sure everybody 
understands really the intent and little bit of the history. 

 Basically, in the late 1990s, early 2000, it became pretty clear to us as the 
developer and also to the City that, at some point, if Fernley was going to 
continue -- and we had a really good run in the beginning, and we brought in 
several companies pretty quickly.  We created about 4,000 new jobs within 
about a two-and-a-half year period.  Things were going really, really well.  
And so as the master developer, what we needed to do was to plan; that's 
what you do as a master developer is you plan 20, 30 years out.  Things 
continued to go well.  We knew that connection had to happen, but it wasn't 
solely for the benefit of the park.  It was also a connection that absolutely 
had to happen, given the traffic counts that would happen, the 10,000 trips a 
day that would go through that.  That was, you know, we had a bunch of 
studies done. 

 All the regional parts of that were very significant and we knew that the 
roundabout even back then we knew that that was not going to suffice as 
Fernley continued to grow.  It was the fastest growing city in the country for 
a while there or line county, county.  I can't remember if it was city or 
county.  But it was definitely -- there was a lot going on.  We had Amazon 
come in.  We had Allied Signal and Honeywell and -- you're all familiar 
with that, I think.  But the Trex Company and several -- Sherwin-Williams.  
Several fortune companies.  It took off and things were going great and we 
were all fat, dumb, and happy.  But we were planning it, and that's what a 
master developer does. 

 That connection, if things had continued on, say mid-2005, 2006, things 
were just going really, really well.  End of 2007 and 2008, when this was 
signed, things started really taking a dive and continued to take a dive, a 
major dive economically.  I think the majority of developers were wiped out 
entirely.  While this started to happen and we saw that curve trending 
downward, that was about the time that this was going on to sign this 
agreement.  And we got very, very concerned about that and sat down with 

92 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

the folks from NDOT, a different administration, and also with some of the 
members of the Board that were involved in this, and Governor Guinn, 
originally, and then Governor Gibbons after that. 

And we talked about it and we said, okay, you know, we need to be able to 
build this, but we also don't have funding for this portion of it so -- and the 
economy is going down and funding is going to come from, hopefully, three 
sources.  One, funding for the connection is going come from one of three 
sources or a combination.  One is sales proceeds.  Two is impact fees 
through the City Fernley, and three, we were, at that time, thinking we were 
still going to be able to get some funding from the federal government 
because they had been working with us.  They're still talking to us about 
trying to get some funding through Senator Reid's office.  In fact, I have a 
meeting with Senator Reid's -- one of his key people on Wednesday, to 
continue these discussions. 

We did get money through the state that was headed up by Governor Guinn 
at that time for this project.  And a big reason why we got public funding 
was because it is indeed a regional project.  It's very significant regionally.  
And it was understood that we would not be held solely responsible as the 
developer because it isn't something that solely serves our park.  This 
regional improvement is -- it really improves the current deficiencies.  And 
much beyond the current growth of our park, which right now is zero, but 
it's going to get better.  But we have been very handicapped.  We've lost five 
or six years through this recession in terms of sales.  We haven't had a sale 
out there in years.  So we've got all that that we're dealing with. 

I do want to get to the numbers, but I want to make sure that everyone 
understands when we embarked upon this project we really did so with the 
understanding that it was going to be a public-private partnership because of 
its regional nature and all the benefits to the region to take a lot of that 
traffic off of the famous roundabout out there that's actually pretty 
dangerous and pretty full capacity most of the time.  But in order to fund 
this -- and I do want to make sure everyone understands we're the ones that 
want it most of all.  We want that connection.  We have to have that 
connection in order to protect and maintain the integrity of the 4,500 acres 
we have left out there.  If we don't have that connection that's really going to 
compromise us.  So, Member Fransway, that's a huge incentive for us, huge 

93 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

incentive, to have a regionally significant park and create economic 
development and have those sales come back.  That's something that's got to 
happen.   

Now, is that the only reason to have this connection?  No.  There are 
definitely a lot of other reasons, which makes it a regional project.  And 
that's why we've always looked at it as a project that we would have 
participation, and we did.  We had state participation and we had federal 
participation for the interchange part, and now we've got that road 
connection.  And we'd probably have it easily built a couple years ago if the 
economy hadn't tanked on us.  And so as soon as those dollars come through 
sales, as soon as they come through impact fees -- we are on Fernley's 
impact fee program, but you only get impact fees if you have development.  
So we've been really stymied. 

But we absolutely -- I stand before you today and tell you we want most of 
all to see that connected, but we don't have those extra dollars today.  We're 
hopeful that we'll get them, and as soon as we do it's our top priority to get it 
done.  So we do have tremendous motivation to get it done.  I also want to 
make sure that everyone understands that we were not, nor was anyone else 
involved in this, trying to pull the wool over anyone's eyes.  When we met 
with the former Director, Susan Martinovich, everybody came to the 
conclusion, as was alluded by Bill earlier, that the best for everyone is to 
make sure that there was ample time to get this done, because what does it 
serve when you, you know, further hit a developer that really doesn't have 
any means to get it done.  It doesn't do any good for anybody. 

I think it's important that we work together.  I think it's still very important 
that we work together.  And we are continuing to try to make sales in the 
park.  We are continuing to meet with the federal folks that may or may not 
have funding.  We're continuing to look for other things, but when you don't 
have sales and you don't have cash, you can't finance it.  There's no way to 
finance the deal because, you know, the private financers are not going to 
come in and pay for it if they don't see it as a saleable project.  So we just 
have to get it back on its feet.  It has a lot of potential.  We have a great big 
deal we're working on right now that can make a major difference in this. 

But I tell you, it's my word -- I'm not sure what that's worth to you, but I will 
tell you that that is absolutely -- we intend to get this done.  We're really 

94 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

hoping to exceed the deadline.  We're hoping it'll work, but some of these 
things are really truly out of our control.  The recession was a big part of 
that.  And you look like you want to ask a question, so… 

Fransway: Governor and Ms. Wade, thank you. 

Wade: Mm-hmm. 

Fransway: And I want to say that it was totally the intent of the Board for this to be a 
public-private partnership. 

Wade: Mm-hmm. 

Fransway: I just wish -- you have to admit that the amendment is almost totally 
different than what we -- the action that we take it on and the rationale that 
we provided to spend those funds and to approve.  The minutes absolutely 
reflect that.  My problem all along has been why did you and everybody 
involved come to the Board instead of going through an amendment by 
administration?  This is not what we voted on, not even close, and that's my 
problem.  I want to make sure this Board -- the purpose for this Board is not 
to provide bailouts.  It's to provide roadway for the people who pay for 
them.  And I don't believe that that happened.  And I would have loved to 
have had an opportunity to have the discussion that we're having today back 
in September of 2008.  I find it offensive that we did not get that 
opportunity.  Now, whether or not we had the ability, as far as 
administrative ability (inaudible) don't now, an amendment like that now 
would certainly come before this Board. 

Hoffman Member Fransway, for the record… 

Fransway: Go ahead. 

Hoffman: Oh, I'm sorry.  For the record, Bill Hoffman again.  The interviews that I 
held with certain DOT folks, very high-ranking DOT folks, I was under the 
impression that there were meetings with -- I don't want to throw people 
under the bus, but there were other administrations that felt like, at that time, 
because the Board really didn't have agreement or amendment approval 
authority as you all have today.  It was a totally different atmosphere.  Now, 
I do completely agree with you that there should've probably been some 
notification to you that this was the path everyone was going, but it was the 

95 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

decision by the Governor at the time, and the Director at the time, that as 
long as the Governor and the, you know, the Director at the time and the 
Wade's were in agreement, that was it.  And my recollection of how that 
went down was just that way.  (Inaudible)… 

Fransway: Okay.  Let me address that right now… 

Hoffman: Sure. 

Fransway: …while it's clear in my mind.  You had an understanding with the previous 
administration.  Well, for the record, the previous administration declined to 
vote on this particular item because it was a conflict of interest.  So how 
could that same person be involved in an amendment? 

Hoffman Well, you bring up some very valid points… 

Fransway: Well… 

Hoffman: …Member Fransway.  But what I'd like to do and what I offered back in 
February is that won't happen again.  Developer agreements will come 
before you all, as well as the amendments.  Everything will come before 
you, will be open, transparent.  Here's what's going on.  You'll be fully 
engaged and involved in any other developer agreements that come through.  
So we'll fix that.  We'll make sure that that doesn't happen again.  
Unfortunately, we're -- I shouldn't say stuck, but we are where we are with 
the current situation.  And like I offered back in February, DOT and City of 
Fernley, Lyon County, and the Wade's have to -- we all have to work 
together to try to get this thing done. 

 Now, I know the amendment says NDOT doesn't have an obligation to fund 
anything.  I'll stand behind that amendment, but I will also do everything 
within my power to try to assist in trying to get that project through, 
however that is.  If it's meetings with, I don't know, federal delegations, 
whatever it is, I'm willing to pitch in and to try to help to try to get the 
project completed. 

Fransway: Governor, I'm wondering if it would help me personally to get through this 
thing, because I think we can all see how complicated this whole thing was 
with amendments, with the agreements, with the original agreements, with 

96 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

so many different things.  And I'll make another point now; would you agree 
that the road is in very -- that it's in poor shape? 

Hoffman: The pavement… 

Fransway: Phase two? 

Hoffman: Member Fransway, the pavement is not in great condition.  You're right. 

Fransway: Okay.  Well, we asked… 

Hoffman: But not -- yeah, not the new portion.  The new portions are… 

Fransway: New portions. 

Hoffman: There are new pieces. 

Fransway: Very good. 

Hoffman: Right.  Right. 

Fransway: The original agreement called for the roadway to be built to state and federal 
standards, and that's certainly not the case. 

Hoffman: Well, and if I could, that was why I made such a big deal out of the existing 
roadway was there before the agreement was entered into.  That existing 
piece, that orange piece in the map, in my opinion, doesn't play into them 
designing to standards and having to maintain the road.  That was outside of 
the agreement and the amendment.  That's just my assumption, Member 
Fransway. 

Fransway: It's your assumption, but that's not what the agreement said. 

Hoffman: Okay. 

Fransway: So I'm just wondering if we can't come up with another agreement so that 
we understand exactly what it is and we can ratify that amendment, so that 
we can truly have a public-private partnership.  And that, I guess, is going to 
be a question to the Chairman.  Can we do that, Mr. Chair? 

Sandoval: Well, I've got to think about that.  But… 

Fransway: Yeah. 

97 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Sandoval: …I mean there's two parties.  We can't make them change an agreement that 
they've already signed.  I mean that's my first thought off the top of my 
head.  But that's too big of a question to answer off the cuff here today. 

Fransway: Well, it is what it is.  And what it is, is this Board member still remains 
perplexed by the whole thing. 

Wade: Can I add a little bit here, Governor? 

Sandoval: Just a little bit. 

Wade: Okay.  Just a little bit. 

Sandoval: We've been here for… 

Wade: Yeah. 

Sandoval: …four hours. 

Wade: Yeah.  No, I understand.  And I just want to say that we want very much to 
maintain a good working relationship.  We've been here 21 years.  We've 
done a lot of economic development, and that's very important to us.  And I 
think perhaps what might make the most sense is for us to get together with 
senior staff and people that are involved and not take any more time from 
this Board, and talk about some of this and, you know, see where things 
might go, okay.  And I think that would probably make the most sense and 
that's what we'd like to suggest and that's how I was going to conclude, is 
just to say that that's the case. 

And the only other thing I wanted to do so that we're all understanding, the 
dollars were actually not inclusive that were shown up, and that's not your 
fault.  I went through this weekend and went through everything.  So just so 
you know that we spent $3.3 in hard dollars, then we spent another $1 
million for consultants of hard money coming out of our pocket.  And then 
we -- the right-of-way is actually 29.9 acres and its value at, say 350 a foot, 
is about $4.7, I believe.  So just so you know, just under $10 million is what 
we've contributed to date.  Okay. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Savage: I have a question for Ms. Wade. 

98 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Wade: Oh. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Wade: Yes. 

Sandoval: Because we got to -- ask this one question.  We're going to lose another 
member because of scheduling, so go ahead, Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Real quick.  I can certainly understand Member 
Fransway's position and I can certainly understand the Wade's position.  I 
mean this is something that I think that can be reviewed very thoroughly and 
with oversight from the Department, because it has to be built to our 
standards.  But I guess the question is, is it the Wade's intention to complete 
the project with the construction costs being paid for by the developer? 

Wade: Yes, it is.  Well, by the developer or a combination of developer, perhaps 
some of the federal folks have talked to us about the possibility of getting 
some dollars.  Don't know if that's going to happen or not.  And the City of 
Fernley impact fees.  If we can start development again that will play into it.  
But, yes, a combination thereof. 

Savage: Thank you. 

Wade: Mm-hmm. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor. 

Wade: Definitely intending to build it. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Hoffman.  All right.  Rudy, can you get through old 
business quickly, please? 

Malfabon: Yes, I'll just be very brief, Governor.  We have the report of outside counsel 
costs on open matters, monthly litigation report.  And Dennis Gallagher is 
available to answer any questions on that.  We do repeat the item on the 
settlements, since it is a legal issue that we included it here as well that we 
had previously presented for informational purposes on the Woodcock case.  
And fatality report, the good news is that we're 10 under on fatals compared 
to where we were this time last year, so great news there.  I'm willing to 
entertain any questions on those items. 

99 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

 I want to also mention, Governor, that we did get the list of TIGER grant 
applications and the requests, and we will present that to the Board -- or 
give that to the Board in an e-mail shortly after this meeting, and also 
include it in old business so it's public record next time around.  We did get 
a response from our staff on the question about the Pyramid Lake Paiute 
Tribe on the Wadsworth Bypass.  They did not request participation from 
the developer for the Burning Man event, so that's in response to one of the 
questions that was asked.  So if there's any questions related to Item No. 17, 
Items A through D, we will try to answer those. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  No?  Okay.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  And next time we'll try to -- there were some things 
on the Agenda we needed to cover, but we'll definitely not put so many 
items so that it's this lengthy of a meeting.   

Sandoval: Okay. 

Malfabon: Thank you for your indulgence. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Let's move to public comment.  Any public comment from Carson 
City?  And just an aside, Rudy, I don't know if it's our responsibility or not, 
but just going through the I-80 corridor through Reno there's a lot of trash 
on the highway.  So if… 

Malfabon: That is our responsibility. 

Sandoval: Okay.  So if we could get someone over there to get the trash. 

Malfabon: We will. 

Sandoval: Anyone from Las Vegas for public comment? 

Martinez: None here, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  We'll move to Agenda Item 19, Adjournment.  Is there a motion 
for adjournment? 

Skancke: So moved. 

Sandoval: Member Skancke has moved.  Is there a second? 

100 

 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director's Meeting 

April 14, 2014 
 

Savage: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Savage.  All in favor, say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes 4-0.  This meeting is adjourned.  Thank you for your 
patience, ladies and gentlemen. 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to the Board     Preparer of Minutes 

 

 

101 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

           May 5, 2014  
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      May 12, 2014, Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #4:  Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 – For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to present to the Board a list of construction contracts which are over 
$5,000,000 for discussion and approval. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per statute.  
  
The attached construction contracts constitute all contracts over $5,000,000 for which the bids were 
opened and the analysis completed by the Bid Review and Analysis Team and the Contract 
Compliance section of the Department from March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada Revised 
Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or Department policies and 
procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts for Approval, March 25, 2014 to 

April 21, 2014. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all contracts listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by: Administrative Services Division 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 1 of 9



Attachment  

A 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 2 of 9



 
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS FOR APPROVAL 
March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 

 
 

1. April 10, 2014, at 1:30 p.m., the following bids were opened and read related to Contract No. 3558, 
Project No. STP-0431(007), SR 431 Mt Rose Hwy from 0.11 Miles East of the Mt Rose Summit to 
US 395. Described as 2 1/2" Cold Mill, 2 1/2" Plantmix Bituminous Surface with 1" Open-Graded 
Wearing Course, Washoe County. 

 
Granite Construction Company ................................................................................. $10,293,293.00 
Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.  ............................................................................. $10,817,007.00 
Road and Highway Builders LLC .............................................................................. $11,979,979.00 

 
The Director recommends awarding the contract to Granite Construction Company, in the amount 
of $10,293,293.00. 
 
Engineer’s Estimate: $12,720,911.34 

 
 
 
 
 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 3 of 9



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 4 of 9



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Administrative Services 

 
April 18, 2014 

 
To: John Terry, Assistant Director - Engineering 
 Richard Nelson, Assistant Director - Operations 
 Rudy Malfabon, Director 
 
From:  Jenni Eyerly, Administrative Services Officer 
 
Subject:  Concurrence in Award for Contract No. 3558, Project No. STP-0431(007), SR 

431 Mt Rose Hwy from 0.11 Miles East of the Mt Rose Summit to US 395, 
Washoe County, described as 2 1/2" Cold Mill, 2 1/2" Plantmix Bituminous 
Surface with 1" Open-Graded Wearing Course, Engineer’s Estimate 
$12,720,911.34.  

 

This memo is to confirm concurrence in award of the subject contract. 
Bid proposals were opened on April 10, 2014.   Granite Construction Company is the apparent 
low bidder at $10,293,293.00 and they submitted a properly executed proposal, bid bond and 
anti-collusion affidavit.  The second low bidder is Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. with a bid of 
$10,817,007.00.   
 
The project is Federally funded, required 6.5% DBE participation and is not subject to State 
Bidder Preference provisions.  
 
The subcontractor listing documentation and DBE information submitted by the two lowest 
bidders have been reviewed and certified by the Contract Compliance Officer. The bid is below 
the Engineer’s Estimate Range, and a copy of the Unofficial Bid Results report is attached for 
your reference.  The BRAT Chairman has provided their concurrence to award, and their report 
is attached. 
 
Your concurrence in award of this contract by endorsement hereon is respectfully requested.  
Please return the approved copy to this office.  Upon receipt a packet will be prepared to obtain 
Transportation Board approval of the award at the next available meeting. 
 
Concurrence in award: 
 

________________________________  ________________________________  
     John Terry, Assistant Director        Richard Nelson, Assistant Director 
 
 

________________________________ 
Rudy Malfabon, Director 

 
Enclosures: 
Unofficial Bid Results Report 
Contract Compliance Memo 
BRAT Summary Report 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7070 
Fax:      (775) 888-7101 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: F8D55BD1-EC51-43B6-9F91-83191B4F0D28

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 5 of 9

https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com
https://trust.docusign.com


DocuSign Envelope ID: F8D55BD1-EC51-43B6-9F91-83191B4F0D28

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 6 of 9



DocuSign Envelope ID: F8D55BD1-EC51-43B6-9F91-83191B4F0D28

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 7 of 9



DocuSign Envelope ID: F8D55BD1-EC51-43B6-9F91-83191B4F0D28

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 8 of 9



DocuSign Envelope ID: F8D55BD1-EC51-43B6-9F91-83191B4F0D28

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 
                                         Page 9 of 9



 
MEMORANDUM 

                             May 5, 2014 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      May 12, 2014 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #5: Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014. 
 
Background: 
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements, new task orders on existing agreements, and all amendments 
which take the total agreement above $300,000 during the period from March 25, 2014 to April 
21, 2014. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  
 
List of Attachments:    
 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements for Approval, March 25, 

2014 to April 21, 2014. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:    
 
Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A. 
 
Prepared by:  Administrative Services Division 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 1 of 22



Attachment  

A 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 2 of 22



Attachment A

Line No Agreement No Amend No Contractor Purpose Fed
 Original 

Agreement 
Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount  Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

1 07213 01 SYLVESTER & 
POLEDNAK, LTD.

EMINENT DOMAIN STATE 
VS RAILROAD PASS

Y 275,000.00       275,000.00     550,000.00       -           1/23/2014 1/31/2015 5/12/2014 Service Provider AMD 1 05-12-2014: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $275,000 TO 
$550,000 FOR ONGOING EMINENT DOMAIN LITIGATION 
INVOLVING EXTREMELY COMPLEX ISSUES
03-08-13: LEGAL SUPPORT FOR CONDEMNATION RE: STATE V. 
RAILROAD PASS, 8TH JD A-12-665330 (BOULDER CITY BYPASS 
PROJECT), CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19981131366

2 39413 00 WHITING-TURNER 
CONTRACTING

PRE-CONSTRUCTION 
SERVICES

N 289,911.00       -                   289,911.00       -           4/11/2014 12/31/2017           - Service Provider 04-11-14: CMAR PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE 
PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE ESCALATOR REPLACEMENT PROJECT, 
LOCATED AT THE TROPICANA/LAS VEGAS BOULEVARD SOUTH 
INTERSECTION. THE PROJECT IS TO IMPROVE EXISTING 
PEDESTRIAN BRIDGES AND ELEVATORS AND REPLACE 
SIXTEEN (16) EXISTING INTERNAL/BUILDING ESCALATORS 
WITH NEW AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
ASSOCIATION-COMPLIANT, EXTERNAL TYPE, TRANSIT-GRADE 
DESIGN UNITS, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19821000674-R

3 42913 00 CA GROUP, INC. I-15/TROPICANA 
FEASIBILITY

N 1,149,708.00    -                   1,149,708.00    -           4/14/2014 12/31/2015           - Service Provider 04-14-14: TO PREPARE I-15/TROPICANA INTERCHANGE 
FEASIBILITY STUDY REPORT, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20081407877-R

4 51012 03 LAURA FITZSIMMONS EMINENT DOMAIN LEGAL Y 300,000.00       800,000.00     2,700,000.00    12/6/2012 7/31/2015 5/12/2014 Service Provider AMD 3 05-12-2014: INCREASE AUTHORITY $800,000 TO 
$2,700,000 FOR ONGOING EMINENT DOMAIN LITIGATION 
INVOLVING EXTREMELY COMPLEX ISSUES - BOULDER CITY 
BYPASS PROJECT, CLARK COUNTY.
AMD 2 01-27-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $750,000.00 FROM 
$1,150,000.00 TO $1,900,000.00.
AMD 1 08-12-13: INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $850,000.00 FROM 
$300,000.00 TO $1,150,000.00.
12-06-12: LEGAL CONSULTANT FOR VARIOUS EMINENT DOMAIN 
CASES, CARSON CITY, WASHOE, AND CLARK COUNTIES.
NV B/L#: NV20121016853

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 3 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 4 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 5 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 6 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 7 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 8 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 9 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 10 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 11 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 12 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 13 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 14 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 15 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 16 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 17 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 18 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 19 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 20 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 21 of 22



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 22 of 22



 
MEMORANDUM 

           May 5, 2014 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors  
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director   
SUBJECT:      May 12, 2014 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #6:  Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 
 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 

• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 
• Agreements under $300,000 executed March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 
• Settlements entered into by the Department which were presented for approval to the 

Board of Examiners March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 
 

Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 
 
Background: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  
 
The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 1 of 9



The attached construction contracts, agreements and settlements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 and agreements executed by 
the Department from March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014.  There were no settlements during the 
reporting period. 
 
Analysis: 
 
These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  
 
List of Attachments:    

 
A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Informational, 

March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 
 

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements - Informational,  
March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 

 
 
Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 
 
Prepared by: Administrative Services Division 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 2 of 9



Attachment  

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 3 of 9



 
STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS AWARDED - INFORMATIONAL 
March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014 

 
 

 
1. March 20, 2014, at 2:30 p.m., the following bids were opened and read related to Contract No. 

806-14, Project No. DE-NH095-2(057), US95 CL MP 88. The project is to construct two 60” 
drilled shafts and perform Osterberg load cell (O-Cell) testing, Clark County. 

 
Aggregate Industries SWR Inc.  ................................................................................ $545,000.00 
Case Pacific Company  .......................................................................................... $1,010,250.00 
 
The Director awarded the contract April 10, 2014, to Aggregate Industries SWR Inc., in the 
amount of $545,000.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the state will 
enter into contract with the firm. 
 
Engineer's Estimate: $491,154.88 
 
 

2. March 20, 2014, at 2:00 p.m., the following bids were opened and read related to Contract No. 
803-14. The project is for street sweeping (2 year Contract), Clark County. 

 
Clean Street .............................................................................................................. $435,335.20 
Flagship Sweeping Services Inc.  .............................................................................. $447,885.31 
Nevada Water Trucks LLC  ....................................................................................... $451,540.00 
Elkhorn Environmental LLC  ...................................................................................... $457,448.00 
Nevada Barricade & Sign Co. Inc.  ............................................................................ $649,880.00 
A Track-Out Solutions  ........................................................................................... $1,100,069.60 
 
The Director awarded the contract April 8, 2014, to Clean Street, in the amount of $435,335.20. 
Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the state will enter into contract with the 
firm. 
 
Engineer's Estimate: $500,000.00 
 
 
 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 4 of 9



Attachment  

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 5 of 9



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

1 11714 00 KENNETH/CHRISTINE 
JOHNSON

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-
021.219

N 2,200.00           -              2,200.00          -              3/27/2014 4/30/2016           - Acquisition 03-31-14: TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
MCCARRAN PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-
021.219, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

2 11814 00 CITY OF RENO ACQUIRE S-650-WA-019.489 N -                   -              -                   -              3/27/2014 4/30/2016           - Acquisition 03-31-14: ACQUIRE A FEE ACQUISITION NEEDED 
FOR THE MCCARRAN PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-
WA-019.489, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L: EXEMPT

3 06414 00 LYON COUNTY OPERATE/ MAINTAIN 
LIGHTING

N -                   -              -                   -              4/11/2014 1/1/2030           - Cooperative 04-11-14: TO ESTABLISH THAT LYON COUNTY 
WILL MAINTAIN THE HIGHWAY LIGHTING 
SYSTEM WITHIN NDOT'S ROW ON US50 AT 
SR341, LYON COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

4 07114 00 UNLV TRANSPORTATION 
INSTITUTE

Y 48,000.00         -              48,000.00        -              4/3/2014 12/31/2014           - Cooperative 04-03-14: NATIONAL SUMMER TRANSPORTATION 
INSTITUTE PROGRAM AT THE UNIVERSITY OF 
NEVADA, LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY.NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

5 14014 00 CLARK COUNTY RCV PAYMENT FROM CC 
FOR SIGNAL

N -                   -              -                   163,823.15 4/10/2014 7/31/2014           - Cooperative 4-10-14: TO RECEIVE FINAL PAYMENT FOR 
PEDESTRIAN SIGNALS IN CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

6 33113 00 CITY OF NORTH LAS 
VEGAS

SAFETY MULTIPLE 
INTERSECTIONS

Y 700,000.00       -              700,000.00      30,000.00   4/11/2014 12/31/2016           - Cooperative 04-11-14: SAFETY LIGHTING AND SIGN 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR MULTIPLE INTERSECTIONS 
IN NORTH LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

7 14914 00 ELKO MOTORCYCLE JAM ELKO JAMBOREE N -                   -              -                   2,250.00     4/14/2014 6/15/2014           - Event 4-14-14: $750 EVENT FEE AND $1500 DEPOSIT 
FOR MOTORCYCLE JAMBOREE ON SR227 IN 
ELKO COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20011300791

8 11414 00 NV ENERGY I-15 CACTUS 
IMPROVEMENTS

Y 342,619.00       -              342,619.00      -              3/25/2014 3/31/2017           - Facility 03-31-14: NEW SERVICE FOR TRAFFIC SIGNALS, 
STREET LIGHTING, RAMP METERS, BRIDGE 
DECK LIGHTING, AND HIGH MAST LIGHT FOR I-15 
AT CACTUS AVE, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20081042445

9 11614 00 NV ENERGY LINE EXT TRAMWAY 
KINGSBURY

N 654.00              -              654.00             654.00        3/27/2014 2/28/2018           - Facility 04-02-14: LINE EXTENSION, PROJECT E-825U, 
NEW SERVICE PEDESTALS FOR CROSSWALK 
NEAR TRAMWAY ON KINGSBURY GRADE, 
DOUGLAS COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19831015840

10 12114 00 COX COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY ADJ US-95/I-15 
INTCHG

N -                   -              -                   -              4/1/2014 4/30/2020           - Facility 04-03-14: (NON MONETARY) UTILITY 
ADJUSTMENT ON A 3.7 MILE STRETCH OF 
HIGHWAY FROM THE US-95/I-15 INTERCHANGE 
IN DOWNTOWN LAS VEGAS TO SAHARA 
AVENUE, PROJECT NEON, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19981315619

11 12214 00 UPRR SEISMIC RETROFIT 
STRUCTURE

Y 25,000.00         -              25,000.00        -              4/1/2014 2/28/2018           - Facility 04-03-14: SEISMIC RETROFIT AND 
REHABILITATION OF STRUCTURE G-949 ON I-15 
IN NORTH LAS VEGAS, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19691003146

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Informational

March 25, 2014 to April 21, 2014

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 6 of 9



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

12 12314 00 SOUTHWEST GAS CORP UTILITY ADJ US-95/I-15 
INTCHG

N -                   -              -                   -              4/1/2014 4/30/2020           - Facility 04-03-14: (NON MONETARY) UTILITY 
ADJUSTMENT ON A 3.7 MILE STRETCH OF 
HIGHWAY FROM THE US-95/I-15 INTERCHANGE 
IN DOWNTOWN LAS VEGAS TO SAHARA 
AVENUE, PROJECT NEON, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19571000091

13 12414 00 UPRR SEISMIC RETROFIT 
STRUCTURE

Y 25,000.00         -              25,000.00        -              4/1/2014 2/28/2018           - Facility 04-03-14: SEISMIC RETROFIT AND 
REHABILITATION OF STRUCTURES ON I-15 IN 
NORTH LAS VEGAS G-953, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19691003146

14 07813 01 UNR POST TENSIONED WEB 
CRACK

Y 188,903.00       -              188,903.00      -              3/12/2013 6/30/2015 3/25/2014 Interlocal AMD 1 03-25-14: NO COST TIME EXTENSION 
FROM 10-31-14 TO 06-30-15 TO ALLOW 
SATISFACTORY COMPLETION OF ALL TASKS.
03-12-13: TO CONDUCT A RESEARCH PROJECT 
TITLED: "POST-TENSIONED WEBCRACKING," 
WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

15 09513 01 UNLV NEXT GEN PERF MONITOR 
DATA

Y 105,058.00       -              105,058.00      -              3/27/2013 12/31/2014 4/21/2014 Interlocal AMD 1 04-21-14: TO EXTEND TERMINATION DATE 
FROM 06-30-14 TO 12-31-14 TO ALLOW FOR 
COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.
03-27-13: TO CONDUCT A RESEARCH PROJECT 
TITLED: "NEXT GENERATION PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING DATA NEEDS FOR NEVADA DOT," 
CLARK COUNTY.NV B/L#: EXEMPT

16 10214 00 TMCC MAINTENANCE ACADEMY 
TRAINING

N 99,000.00         -              99,000.00        -              4/15/2014 6/30/2014           - Interlocal 04-15-14: DEVELOP, ORGANIZE, AND CONDUCT 
MAINTENANCE ACADEMY TRAINING TO BE 
GIVEN THREE TIMES, ONCE EACH IN RENO, LAS 
VEGAS, AND ELKO. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

17 11214 00 RTC SOUTHERN NEVADA CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT 
PLAN

N 18,000,000.00  -              18,000,000.00 -              4/15/2014 6/30/2017           - Interlocal 04-15-14: ESTABLISH RESPONSIBILITY FOR 
FUNDING, DESIGNING & COORDINATING THE 
CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT PLAN ALONG SR592 
FLAMINGO ROAD, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
EXEMPT

18 49312 01 UNR EST FINE SEDIMENT 
GENERATION

Y 59,395.00         -              59,395.00        -              12/3/2012 8/31/2014 3/25/2014 Interlocal AMD 1 03-25-14: NO COST TIME EXTENSION 
FROM 04-30-14 TO 08-31-14 TO ALLOW 
SATISFACTORY COMPLETION OF ALL TASKS.
12-03-12: TO CONDUCT A RESEARCH PROJECT 
TITLED: ESTIMATING FINE SEDIMENT 
GENERATION FROM HIGHWAY CUT SLOPES IN 
THE LAKE TAHOE BASIN, DOUGLAS COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

19 54213 00 WALKER RIVER PAIUTE 
TRIBE

REMOVE STREAMBED 
MATERIAL

N 5,329.70           -              5,329.70          -              4/1/2014 12/31/2014           - Interlocal 04-01-14: REMOVE STREAMBED MATERIAL AND 
FORM A LOW FLOW CHANNEL WITHIN THE 
WALKER RIVER UNDERNEATH BRIDGE B-626, 
MINERAL COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20121141800

20 10114 00 WASHOE COUNTY REIMBURSE FOR VIDA CORE N -                   - - 497,500.00 4/21/2014 6/30/2015 - Interlocal 4-23-14: REIMBURSEMENT OF WASHOE 
COUNTY'S PORTION OF THE VIDA CORE SWITCH 
REPLACEMENT TO KEEP THE SHARED RADIO 
SYSTEM OPERATING, WASHOE COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 7 of 9



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

21 10914 00 RICHARD GONZALES EMIGRANT 244 N -                   -              -                   4,580.00     3/24/2014 1/31/2018           - Lease 3-24-14: LEASE OF MAINTENANCE STATION 
HOUSE EMIGRANT 244 IN EUREKA COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: EXEMPT

22 14814 00 RALPH CLINE BIG SMOKY 3 N -                   -              -                   2,400.00     4/14/2014 3/31/2018           - Lease 04-14-14: LEASE OF MAINTENANCE STATION 
HOUSE BIG SMOKY #3 TO NDOT EMPLOYEE IN 
NYE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

23 15814 00 O'FLAHERTY RENTALS 
LLC

CREW 922 OFFICE N 30,000.00         -              30,000.00        -              4/1/2014 4/30/2015           - Lease 4-21-14: LEASE OFFICE FOR CREW 922 IN WHITE 
PINE COUNTY. NV B/L#:NV20071746105

24 10514 00 ADAN VELASCO DISPOSE OF STATE OWNED 
PROP

N -                   -              -                   4,191.95     3/21/2014 4/30/2014           - Property Sale 03-25-14: TO DISPOSE OF STATE OWNED 
PROPERTY BY DIRECT SALE, PARCEL U-095-CL-
078.146 XS1, CLARK COUNTY.NV B/L#: EXEMPT

25 12614 00 AMERICAN PROPERTY OF 
NV, INC

APPRAISAL/REPORT FOR 
NEON

Y 11,500.00         -              11,500.00        -              4/2/2014 7/31/2014           - Service 04-03-14: PREPARATION OF APPRAISALS AND 
REPORT - SCOPE OF WORK PROJECT NEON, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20021493849

26 13314 00 GARDNER ENGINEERING 
& MECH

BOILER HOT WATER TANK N 21,918.00         -              21,918.00        -              4/15/2014 7/30/2014           - Service 04-15-14: BOILER HOT WATER BUFFER TANK TO 
PROVIDE HOT WATER SEPARATOR STORAGE 
AND ELIMINATE BOILER SHORT CYCLE ISSUES 
IN THE MATERIALS LAB AND CARSON HQ 
BUILDING BOILER SYSTEM, CARSON CITY. N/V 
B/L#: NV19751005065-Q 

27 13614 00 CALIF SURVEY & DRAFT 
SUPPLY

PLOTTER REPAIR SERVICES N 10,000.00         -              10,000.00        -              4/21/2014 4/30/2016           - Service 04-21-14: PLOTTER REPAIR SERVICES, CARSON 
CITY. NV B/L#: NV20081191911

28 14114 00 CHAPMAN LAW FIRM PARALEGAL ASST 
W/PROJECT NEON

Y 150,000.00       -              150,000.00      -              4/14/2014 3/31/2016           - Service 04-14-14: PARALEGAL ASSISTANCE FOR 
PROJECT NEON AND BOULDER CITY BYPASS, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20011462722

29 14214 00 CHAPMAN LAW FIRM MCCARRAN BLVD WIDENING Y 200,000.00       -              200,000.00      -              4/14/2014 12/15/2016           - Service 04-14-14: LEGAL ASSISTANCE FOR MCCARRAN 
BLVD WIDENING, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20011462722

30 05514 00 ESI INTERNATIONAL MANAGING PROJECTS 
TRAINING

N 75,000.00         -              75,000.00        -              4/3/2014 12/31/2014           - Service Provider 04-03-14: PROVIDE TRAINING IN PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT; SIX SESSIONS AT $12,500.00 FOR 
A TOTAL OF $75,000.00, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: 
NV19981289042-Q

31 09814 00 THE DIFEDERICO GROUP STATE VS CITY OF LOS 
ANGELES

N 40,000.00         -              40,000.00        -              2/14/2014 2/13/2016           - Service Provider 03-25-14: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL AND EXPERT 
WITNESS SERVICES FOR STATE VS CITY OF LOS 
ANGELES CONDEMNATION CASE, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20021361729

32 10714 00 D & B PROFESSIONAL SALMON FALLS REST AREA N 72,480.00         -              72,480.00        -              3/24/2014 9/30/2016           - Service Provider 3-24-14: PROVIDE JANITORIAL AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES AT THE SALMON 
FALLS REST AREA IN ELKO COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20101094756

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 8 of 9



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

33 10814 00 LAS VEGAS PAVING OVERHEAD SIGNS 515 N 264,000.00       -              264,000.00      -              3/24/2014 12/31/2014           - Service Provider 3-24-14: REMOVE AND REPLACE OVERHEAD 
SIGNS ON I-515 IN CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20051055015Q

34 11114 00 SLATER HANIFAN GROUP 
INC

STATE VS JERICHO HEIGHTS Y 50,000.00         -              50,000.00        -              3/1/2014 3/1/2016           - Service Provider 03-26-14: CIVIL ENGINEERING AND EXPERT 
WITNESS SERVICES FOR STATE VS JERICHO 
HEIGHTS CONDEMNATION CASE, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20031430130

35 13114 00 J & L JANITORIAL 
SERVICES

BEOWAWE AND EMIGRANT 
STOPS

N 74,400.00         -              74,400.00        -              4/7/2014 9/30/2016           - Service Provider 4-7-14: PROVIDE JANITORIAL SERVICES AT 
BEOWAWE REST AREA AND EMIGRANT TRUCK 
STOPS IN EUREKA COUNTY. NV B/L: 
NV20101116972Q

36 14314 00 O.R. COLAN ASSOC OF 
CA, LLC

ROW ACQ ANALYSIS US93 Y 50,000.00         -              50,000.00        -              3/26/2014 3/31/2016           - Service Provider 04-14-14: HIGHWAY RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION 
ANALYSIS AND EXPERT WITNESSSERVICES FOR 
STATE VS JERICHO HEIGHTS, US 93, CLARK 
COUNTY.NV B/L#: NV20061582074

37 14514 00 CUSTOM CLEAN ELY OFFICE JANITORIAL N 12,000.00         -              12,000.00        -              4/14/2014 11/30/2016           - Service Provider 4-14-14: PROVIDE JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR 
THE ELY OFFICES IN WHITE PINE COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV20101244038Q

38 14614 00 LAS VEGAS PAVING COLD MILL CHARLESTON N 247,850.00       -              247,850.00      -              4/14/2014 6/30/2015           - Service Provider 4-14-14: REPAVE AND COLD MILL SR159 AT 
HUALAPAI IN CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#:19581000650Q

39 14714 00 FACILITIES MANAGEMENT REPLACE WELL COSGRAVE N 132,820.00       -              132,820.00      -              4/14/2014 12/31/2014           - Service Provider 4-14-14: TO REPLACE WELL AT COSGRAVE REST 
AREA IN PERSHING COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV20011331118Q

40 15614 00 TERRACON 
CONSULTANTS INC

STATE VS K&L DIRT 
COMPANY

Y 120,000.00       -              120,000.00      -              2/11/2014 2/1/2016           - Service Provider 04-21-14: GEOTECHNICAL AND EXPERT WITNESS 
FOR STATE VS K&L DIRT COMPANY, LLC, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20041426032

41 31813 01 TERRACON 
CONSULTANTS INC

STATE VS JERICHO HEIGHTS Y 50,000.00         50,000.00   100,000.00      -              7/1/2013 7/1/2015 4/21/2014 Service Provider AMD 1 04-21-14: INCREASE AUTHORITY FROM 
$50,000.00 TO $100,000.00 FOR ADDITIONAL 
SERVICES.
08-15-13: GEOTECHNICAL AND EXPERT WITNESS 
SERVICES FOR THE CONDEMNATION ACTION 
STATE VS JERICHO HEIGHTS, CLARK COUNTY. 
NV B/L#: NV20041426032EA 73527

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                             Page 9 of 9





















































































 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: May 12, 2014 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #11: Approval of Equipment Purchases in Exess of $50,000 – Two “Best 

Available Technology” (BAT) Abrasive Spreaders – For Possible Action 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
Pursuant to NRS 408.389, approval of the Transportation Board is required for the purchase of 
equipment that exceeds $50,000.  
 
Accordingly, the Department of Transportation hereby requests approval to purchase the 
following equipment: 
 

Two Abrasive Spreaders – The abrasive spreaders with advanced in-cab controls and 
GPS automation and tracking will increase the efficiency of snow and ice control 
activities in the Lake Tahoe Basin.  The BAT spreaders give operators a higher level of 
control over the placement and amount of anti-icing brine and traction control abrasives 
applied during winter storms.  This helps reduce the formation of packed snow and ice 
and aids in the removal of accumulated snow.  The BAT spreaders are capable of 
treating multiple lanes in a single pass reducing the time and fuel required to treat the 
roadway and also provides operators the ability to mix the abrasives and salt brine to 
create a “heavy” sand that stays on the road surface and doesn’t bounce off.  The 
reduction in abrasives applied to the roadway will help the Department meet 
environmental goals within the Lake Tahoe basin. 
 

The budgeted amount is $200,000 and is funded with 50% State Funds and 50% Federal 
319(h) Nonpoint Source Pollution Prevention Grant Funds 
 
Background: 
 
The Department of Transportation’s legislatively-approved budget did not originaly include the 
purchase of two BAT spreaders.  A work plan was prepared for Interim Finance Committee’s 
(legislative) and was subsequently reviewed and approved.  
 
The Department Applied for the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection’s Annual Nonpoint 
Source Pollution Preventions Programs 319(h) Grant.  The Department was successful and the 
grant was awarded for up to $100,000 towards the purchase of two BAT spreaders.  The 319(h) 
grant requires a minimum 50% non-federal match which the Department was willing to commit 
to.                            
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



The Lake Tahoe Basin is an environmentally sensitive area with water clarity being a major 
concern.  The recently implemented Lake Tahoe Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) requires 
the Department to reduce the fine sediment particles, phosphorus and nitrogen discharged from 
the highway. The Nevada Department of Environmental Protection has identified “Advanced 
Abrasive Application” technology as a recommended strategy for meeting TMDL requirements 
by reducing the fine sediment on the highway. 
 
The Department and other entities in the basin continue to explore alternative methods and 
products to reduce, minimize, and/or eliminate the use of traction abrasives and enhance 
recovery effectiveness in the Tahoe Basin. The BAT abrasive spreaders have been shown to 
provide an immediate reduction in the amount of traction abrasive and salt applied which results 
in a reduction of pollutants transported to Lake Tahoe.  The Department will also realize savings 
from reduction in abrasives and salt purchased as well as a reduction in the cost to remove and 
clean up the applied materials.   
 
List of Attachments: 
 

A) BAT Bulk Abrasive Spreader General Information 
B) Grant award notice 

 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
The Department recommends approval of the requested BAT Spreader purchase.  
 
Prepared by: 
 
Matt Nussbaumer, Principal Hydraulic Engineer 
 

 



 

BAT Bulk Abrasive Spreader General Information 
 
 
Roadway stormwater runoff is one the main transports of pollutants to Lake Tahoe.  The 
NDOT's 46+ miles of roads within the Tahoe Basin bisect nearly all of Nevada’s primary 
tributaries to Lake Tahoe and in many areas is located near the shoreline. 
 
The NDOT and the NDEP have entered into an agreement that requires the NDOT to reduce 
pollutants reaching Lake Tahoe.  A reduction in the amount of material applied to the roads 
results in a direct reduction of pollutants that could be transported by runoff.  The 
implementation of BAT spreaders has been identified as one of the most cost 
effective measures available to meet NDOT’s commitment. 
 

 
BAT Spreaders allow the operator to spray liquid brine, apply dry 
traction material, or pre-wet the dry material.  Pre-wetting reduces 
bounce and scatter leaving more material on the road during 
application.  The pre-wetted material is heavier which also 
reduces the effect of traffic blowing material off the road. 
 
A conveyor belt system allows the operator to maintain 
consistent, ground speed related delivery of material to the 
roadway.  Operators can esily monitor and change width, 
quantity, and symmetry settings in the cab. 
 
 
 

 
Symmetry function allows for precise material placement - Saves Time, Money, and 
Environment  

 
 
 

 

 

Attachment A

http://www.google.com/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&frm=1&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&docid=_dstlC6AHV3ikM&tbnid=EPKocixOb2T6qM:&ved=0CAUQjRw&url=http://www.liveinternet.ru/tags/%F4%EE%F1%F4%E0%F2%FB/&ei=BNc1U9rGIYzvqQGa5YCQBQ&bvm=bv.63808443,d.aWc&psig=AFQjCNGTjZWdtDxnPQEHq26Dw9MQF4iIkw&ust=1396123706964858


901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001 • Carson City, Nevada 89701 • p: 775.687.4670 • f: 775.687.9561 • ndep.nv.gov 
Printed on recycled paper 

 

 
November 6, 2013 

 
 
Matt Nussbaumer, P.E.  
Principal Hydraulic Engineer 
Nevada Department of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart  
Carson City, NV  89712 
 
RE: 319(h) Grant Application 
 
 
Dear Mr. Nussbaumer, 
 
I am pleased to inform you that the proposal titled Nevada Department of Transportation BAT Bulk Abrasive 
Spreader Project has been approved for funding up to the requested amount of $100,000. Please note that a 
contract between NDEP and NDOT must be finalized prior to the purchase of the bulk spreader. However, 
activities contributing to match funding may begin immediately.  
 
Ed Skudlarek will be the NPS Project Manager and will contact you in the near future to discuss next steps. We 
look forward to working with you to take another important step toward the restoration of Lake Tahoe clarity 
through the successful implementation of this project.  
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Jason Kuchnicki 
Lake Tahoe Watershed Program Manager 
 
 
CC: Birgit Widegren, NDEP NPS Program Manager 

Sondra Neudauer, NDEP Contract Manager 
 Ed Skudlarek, NDEP Lake Tahoe Watershed Unit 
  

Attachment B



 
                  

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
April 24, 2014 

 
To:  Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
From:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
Subject: May 12, 2014 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #12: Briefing on Federal Funding Cliff – For Possible Action 
 
 
Summary: 
 
The current federal transportation bill, MAP-21, expires on September 30, 2014.  On or 
before that date, the balance of the highway trust fund is expected to fall below zero.  If 
new legislation is not approved by Congress before the trust fund reaches zero the 
FHWA will not obligate new projects in FFY 2015. The American Association of State 
Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) provided some guidance on how this 
will impact nationwide funding.  NDOT utilized this guidance to assess the impacts to the 
Nevada program, should a new federal transportation bill (funded at existing levels) not 
be passed by the US Congress prior to expiration of MAP-21. 
 
Background 
 
The current MAP-21 bill will expire in September 2014, but the federal highway fund 
balance is projected to go below zero before that date.  The Federal 18.4 cents per 
gallon gas tax will continue to be collected, but the current federal obligation exceeds the 
current revenues from the federal gas tax.  Without a new bill, the FHWA will reimburse 
states for the current obligations. For example, NDOT will receive federal 
reimbursements for contractor payments on already obligated federal projects, but no 
new obligations will be approved for FFY 2015. This will allow the federal Highway Trust 
Fund to meet current obligations. After 2015 a reduced federal program has been 
assumed to match incoming revenue. 
 
Analysis:  
 
NDOT used the national fiscal cliff impact chart prepared by AASHTO and applied the 
ratios of funding to the current Nevada program.  Since the AASHTO chart shows zero 
Federal obligations in 2015, NDOT assumed no Federal funds could be obligated in any 
core federal program in federal FY 2015.  In years 2016 to 2019 NDOT would receive 
approximately 70% of the FY 2014 allocation, a cut of approximately $100 million per 
fiscal year from FY 2014 levels. The cut in funding was assumed to be evenly distributed 
across all core programs. 
 
  

 
 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



The core federal programs and the approximate amounts of obligation authority received 
in FFY 14 are: 
 

• National Highway Performance Program (NHPP) - $200.5m  
• Surface Transportation Program (STP) - $92.2m  
• Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) - $32.5m  
• Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) - $20.9m   

 
NDOT currently has a state highway fund balance of approximately $200 million (not 
counting the $100 million bond proceeds for Project NEON) and this balance is assumed 
to remain at about the same level. Should the fiscal cliff occur, NDOT recommends we 
spend down the state highway fund and provide approximately $100 million in additional 
State funding in FY 2015 to deliver some key projects while receiving zero federal 
obligations for new projects. NDOT would also need to pay 2015 bond payments with 
State funds. Should a new bill not be passed after 2015, NDOT assumes the lower level 
of Federal obligation in FY 2016 to 2019 will be absorbed by shifting or canceling 
projects as shown in the attached NDOT Fiscal Cliff Five Year Impacted Projects list. 

 
With the Board’s approval, NDOT would like to distribute this list of projects impacted to 
the Nevada Congressional delegation and others. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 

A. AASHTO Fiscal Cliff Projection Chart 
B. NDOT Fiscal Cliff Five Year Impacted Projects List 

 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Approve the list of projects affected by the federal fiscal cliff and authorize the Director to 
submit the project list to the Nevada Congressional delegation and others as necessary. 
 
Prepared by:  
 
John M. Terry, P.E., Asst. Director - Engineering 



40.8 40.3 

38.1 
39.4 40.0 

0.0 

28.2 28.8 29.5 30.2 30.9 31.6 
32.4 

33.1 
33.9 

1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.3 0.0 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.6 

9.7 9.6 9.9 
9.2 9.6 

0.0 

2.4 

5.0 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6 5.7 

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

45.0

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Do
lla

rs
 in

 B
ill

io
ns

Total FHWA Obligations (excl. flex) Total Safety Program Obligations Total Transit Account Obligations (incl. flex)

The cliff: Federal highway obligations fall nearly  
100% in FY 2015 without new revenue 

Attachment A



DRAFT 2015 FEDERAL FISCAL CLIFF PROJECT LIST ($100M State)

CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

1 - MAJOR/CAPACITY PROJECTS

2016Boulder City Bypass - Utility WorkCL $13,425,300 0-NO CHANGE

2018I 580 Operational Improvements Ph 1WA $25,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2016SR 160 E Pahrump FM Rainbow Ave to Calvada Blvd WideningCL $4,200,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015US 95 NW Phase 3A; CC 215 from US 95 to Tenaya Way - N/E & W/S Ramps and S/B 
collector road

CL $35,200,000 2016

2015Carson City Freeway - Phase 2B-3CC $42,000,000 2017

2015SR 160 Phase 1, East end beginning at SR 159CL $25,000,000 2017

2016US 95 North - Phase 2B (Durango Drive to Kyle Canyon Rd.)CL $36,353,000 2018

2016I 15 North - Part 2 Pkg ACL $19,000,000 2019

2016I 15 North - Part 2 Pkg C (Bridges)CL $3,500,000 2019

2016I 15 North - Part 2 Pkg D (Capacity Imp)CL $29,400,000 2019

2017I 15 at SR 593 Tropicana - Operational ImprovementsCL $40,000,000 OFF

2018I 15 North - Phase 4 ("A Phase" of the I-15/CC-215 Interchange)CL $40,000,000 OFF

2017I 515 - Operational ImprovementsCL $40,000,000 OFF

2018I 580 Operational Improvements Ph 2WA $15,000,000 OFF

2018SR 160 Phase 2, West end ending at Mtn SpringsCL $47,000,000 OFF

2018US 50, Roy's Road to US-95A - Pkg 2LY $36,000,000 OFF

SubTotal = $451,078,300
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 1 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

2 - ROADWAY (3R) PROJECTS

2015I 580 FM S/B Off Ramps at the N Carson St Intch To 0.86 MS of the Bowers IntchCC $17,500,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015I 80 FM 1.065 MW of HU/LA Co Ln to HU/LA Co Ln; I 80 FM HU/LA Ln to 0.93 ME of 
E Battle Mtn intch; MP HU 60.31 to HU 61.38; LA 0.0 to LA 9.05

HU/LA $17,400,000 0-NO CHANGE

2016SR 592, Flamingo Road, from Paradise to Boulder HighwayCL $9,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015SR 592, Flamingo Road, from Paradise to Boulder HighwayCL $9,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2016SR 593, Tropicana Ave, from Dean Martin to Boulder HighwayCL $24,600,000 0-NO CHANGE

2018SR 596 Jones Blvd, Brantley St to Smoke Ranch RdCL $3,400,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015SR 604, Las Vegas Blvd, from Tonopah Avenue to 0.08 MN of Craig RdCL $12,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2018US 50 Fallon, Allen St to Sherman StCH $2,600,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015US 95 from 1.189 MN of FRCL34 to 1.688 MS of Jackass Flat RoadCL/NY $22,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015US 50 FM CH/LA Co Ln to 0.565 ME of SR 305 to 1.030 ME of SR 305 MP LA 0.00 to 
LA 24.00

CH/LA $10,900,000 2016

2015US 95 from 0.796 MS of Dry Wash B-1478, to the ES/NY Co LnES $8,000,000 2016

2016I 15 and US 95 Various Ramps in Las Vegas ULCL $10,000,000 2017

2015US 93 FM FRCL08 on the S side Garnet Intch to 15.887 mi N of FRCL07 at Garnet 
Intch MP CL 48.63 to 64.52

CL $24,400,000 2017

2016US 93 N of McGill, Success Summit Rd - MP WP 66.99 to 75.99WP $6,900,000 2017

2017I 580 Carson City, US 50/Williams St to CC/WA Co LnCC $4,900,000 2018

2017I 80 Grays Creek to Moor Intch - MP EL 62.11 to 83.26EL $29,300,000 2018

2017SR 648, Glendale Ave, FM Kietzke Ln to McCarran BlvdWA $15,000,000 2018

2016I 580 and I 80 Various Ramps in Reno/Sparks ULWA $10,000,000 2019

2018I 580 NB Moana to Mill Partial ReconstructionWA $11,000,000 2019

2015I 80 FM the trailing edge of H-902 to 0.93 MW of Osino Intch MP EL 26.61 to 31.98EL $13,100,000 2019

2017I 80 West Strip Grade Sep to East Winnemucca IntchHU $8,600,000 2019

2018SR 157 and SR 156 Kyle and Lee Canyon RoadsCL $13,200,000 2019

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 2 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

2016US 93 Cattle Pass to SR 229 - MP EL 30.76 to 43.07EL $9,000,000 2019

2018I 80 Pumpernickel Valley Intch to Stonehouse Intch - MP HU 42.42 to 54.86HU $22,800,000 OFF

2018SR 227 Lamoille Rd, FM N of Spring Creek to Crossroads LaneEL $4,700,000 OFF

2018SR 28 Incline to NV/CA StatelineWA $3,400,000 OFF

2017US 50 Ely, Ruth/Kimberly Rd to US 6 - MP WP 61.79 to 68.43WP $18,200,000 OFF

SubTotal = $340,900,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 3 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

3 - BRIDGE/STRUCTURES PROJECTS

2015Bridge B-1610 Nordyke Rd over the East Fork of the Walker River in LYLY $1,100,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015Bridge Inventory/Inspection Program $2,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015I 15 North Las Vegas - Rehab/Retrofit H-948, G-949, G-953, I-956CL $1,500,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015SR 115, Harrigan Rd, at L Line Canal, Replace Structure B-100CH $1,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015SR 447 at Washoe County Near Nixon B-1351 MP 15.49WA $1,092,500 0-NO CHANGE

2016SR 757, Muller Lane at Carson River Replace Structure B-474DO $1,200,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015I 515 at LV Downtown Viaduct - Rehab/Retrofit G-947, I-947R, I-947MCL $6,000,000 2016

2016Eden Valley Rd at Humboldt River Replace off-system structure B-1658HU $7,000,000 2017

2015I 515 at Flamingo Interchange, MSE Wall RehabCL $2,500,000 2018

2016SR 605, Paradise Road, at Tropicana Wash Replace B-1344CL $1,500,000 2018

2016SR 589, Sahara Ave, at UPRR Rehab/Retrofit G-1064CL $1,400,000 2019

2015US 395, WA & DO Co - Rehab/Retrofit I-1261, B-812N/S, B-1262N/S, B-1263N/SWA $2,500,000 2019

2016I 15 at Muddy River - Rehab/Retrofit B-781 N/SCL $2,000,000 OFF

2016I 515 at Boulder Highway and Sahara - Rehab/Retrofit I-1449, H-1446CL $750,000 OFF

2016I 80 at Fernley/ Wadsworth - Rehab/Retrofit I-717E/W, I-740E/W, H-844E/W, I-
700E/W, B-716E/W

LY $6,000,000 OFF

2016I 80 at Truckee River and UPRR near Verdi  Address Scour B-764 E/W and G-722 E/WWA $3,500,000 OFF

2017SR 163 at Colorado River in Laughlin Replace or Rehab structure B-1847CL $10,000,000 OFF

2016SR 206, Genoa Lane, at Carson River Address Scour B-1239DO $300,000 OFF

2017SR 88 in Douglas County - Rehab/Retrofit B-553, B-575, B-580, B-576, and B-627DO $4,000,000 OFF

2016US 50 at Carson River West of Fallon Address Scour B-1557CH $600,000 OFF

SubTotal = $55,942,500
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 4 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

4 - SAFETY PROJECTS

2016SR 372 at Blagg RoundaboutNY $710,000 0-NO CHANGE

2016SR 372 at Pahrump Valley RoundaboutNY $1,200,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015SR 431 Truck Escape RampWA $4,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015Strategic Highway Safety PlanSW $950,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015Traffic Incident ManagementSW $600,000 0-NO CHANGE

2016US 395 at Airport, Johnson Lane and Stephanie LaneDO $750,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015US 95 MP ES 0.00 to ES 20.00 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningES $5,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015US 50 LA 0.00 to LA 25.00 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningLA $10,350,000 2016

2016SR 147, Lake Mead from Civic Center to Pecos - Safety improvementsCL $4,500,000 2017

2015US 93 CL 48.63 to CL 64.52 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningCL $5,800,000 2017

2016US 95 MP NY 60.00 to NY 80.00 - Shoulder wideningNY $4,500,000 2017

2015US 95 from 0.16 MS of the Junction with SR 726 to 0.822 MS of the Trailing Edge of B-
680, CH 28.00 to CH 57.00

CH $10,000,000 2018

2018SR 667, Kietzke Lane, Safety Improvements - pkg 1WA $3,700,000 2019

2017US 6 MP ES 18.86 to ES 38.00 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningES $9,400,000 2019

2018SR 147, Lake Mead Blvd, pkg 2 CL 7.56 - 9.67CL OFF

2018US 6 MP ES 38.00 to ES 57.74 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningES $9,400,000 OFF

2018US 93 MP CL 64.52 to 86.58 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningCL $10,350,000 OFF

2015US 95 MP ES 20.00 to ES 44.13 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningES $5,000,000 OFF

2017US 95 MP NY 7.00 to NY 30.00 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningNY $4,500,000 OFF

2016US 95 MP NY 80.00 to NY 107.24 - Shoulder widening and slope flatteningNY $5,000,000 OFF

SubTotal = $95,710,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 5 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

5 - TRAFFIC OPERATIONS PROJECTS

2015Freeway Service Patrol - Incident Response Vehicle - Las VegasCL $775,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015Freeway Service Patrol - Las VegasCL $1,842,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015Freeway Service Patrol - RenoWA $365,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015US 95 from Bypass to Laughlin - Install ITS infrastructure, FAST Pkg KCL $8,000,000 2016

2016SR 160 from Pahrump to I 15 - Install ITS devices FAST Pkg JCL $8,000,000 2017

2017District 3 - Install Rural ITS Smart Zones Pkg AXX $2,000,000 2018

2016I 580 from Neil Road to Moana - Install ITS infrastructure, TM Pkg 1WA $2,000,000 2018

2017Install Electronic Check Station Signage, I 80 at Garson RoadWA $200,000 2018

2015Replace DMS signs, I 15 at Sahara, Tropicana, SummerlinCL $600,000 2018

2015Replace Faulty High Mast Lowering System along I 15, Phase 1CL $3,000,000 2018

2018District 1 - Install Rural ITS Smart Zones Pkg AXX $2,000,000 2019

2016Replace High Mast HPS Lighting with LED LightingSW $1,500,000 2019

2018I 580 from Mt. Rose to College Pkwy - Install ITS Infrastructure, WC Pkg 1WA $12,000,000 OFF

2017I 580 from Mt. Rose to Neil Rd - Install ITS infrastructure - TM Pkg 2WA $10,000,000 OFF

SubTotal = $52,282,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 6 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

6 - HYDRAULIC/TAHOE PROJECTS

2015Master Plan Water Quality & Erosion Control Improvements - SR 28 from 0.13 Miles 
East of the CC/WA line to Sand Harbor

CC $2,000,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015Burke-Rabe Meadow Coop $250,000 2016

2015Clear Creek Erosion Control Program $500,000 2016

2015Incline Green Streets Projects Coop $80,000 2016

2015Lake Tahoe Stormwater Project Coop $600,000 2016

2015SR 88 Cottonwood SloughDO $350,000 2016

2015US 50 Central Clear Creek Watershed Storm Drain ProjectCC $3,000,000 2016

2015Zephyr Cove Coop $250,000 2016

2016Burke-Rabe Meadow Coop $300,000 2017

2016Clear Creek Erosion Control Program $400,000 2017

2016Lake Tahoe Stormwater Project Coop $600,000 2017

2016US 395 Martin SloughDO $250,000 2017

2016US 50 Slope Stability, Water Quality, and Erosion Control Imp. - US 50 from Cave Rock 
to SR-28 Spooner Junction

DO $5,000,000 2017

2015US 50 Lower Clear Creek Watershed Storm Drain ProjectCC $3,000,000 2018

2017US 50 Upper Clear Creek Watershed Storm Drain ProjectDO $4,200,000 2018

SubTotal = $20,780,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 7 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

7 - LANDSCAPE & AESTHETICS PROJECTS

2015US 395, SR 431, 341 Interchange - Sierra SummitWA $2,000,000 2016

2015US 395, SR 88 - Minden GatewayDO $200,000 2016

2015US 93 Hoover Dam - US Route State GatewayCL $150,000 2016

2015US 93 Jackpot - US Route State GatewayEL $150,000 2016

2016Hidden Gems Highway - Info kiosks/pull-outs (4 locations)WP/LN $160,000 2017

2016I 15 Spring MountainCL $1,000,000 2017

2016US 395 Damonte Ranch InterchangeWA $2,000,000 2017

2016Veterans Parkway Roundabout aesthetic improvementsWA $200,000 2017

2017Community Gateway to Winnemucca/Recreational to Black Rock DesertHU $50,000 2018

2017I 80 Winnemucca StructuresHU $1,000,000 2018

2016Russell Road and I 515CL $2,000,000 2018

2017SR 28 Crystal Bay - State Route GatewayWA $150,000 2018

2017US 395 N. Bordertown - US Route State GatewayWA $150,000 2018

2017US 50 Stateline S Lake Tahoe - State Route GatewayDO $150,000 2018

2017Charleston Rd and I-515CL $2,500,000 2019

2017US 395 South Meadows InterchangeWA $1,250,000 2019

2018Boulder Highway/ I 515CL $2,500,000 OFF

2015I 15 Flamingo InterchangeCL $2,500,000 OFF

2018I 15 Lake Mead BlvdCL $1,500,000 OFF

2018I 580 Spaghetti Bowl to Moana West SideWA $2,500,000 OFF

2018US 395 Neil Road InterchangeWA $750,000 OFF

SubTotal = $22,860,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 8 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



CURRENT 

PLANNED 

YR

PROJECT NAMECOUNTY ESTIMATED COST MOVED TO YR

8 - ADA PROJECTS

2016SR 593, Tropicana Ave, from Dean Martin to Boulder HighwayCL $1,400,000 0-NO CHANGE

2015SR 653 E. Plumb Ln. ADA Improvemetns FM Kietzke Ln to Harvard WayWA $50,000 0-NO CHANGE

SubTotal = $1,450,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

9 - MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS

20155 Schools in Washoe County SRTSWA $650,000 2016

2015US 95 in Goldfield from 1st Street to 2nd Street. ES 19.29 to ES 19.35ES $741,000 CANCELED

SubTotal = $1,391,000
 OFF  =  PROJECT HAS BEEN MOVED OFF OF NDOT'S CURRENT 5 YEAR PLAN

Wednesday, April 30, 2014 Page 9 of 9

                                                           Attachment B



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: May 12, 2014 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #13: Old Business 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
 

Please see Attachment A. 
 

b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
 

Please see Attachment B. 
 

c. Fatality Report dated April 30, 2014 – Informational item only. 
 

Please see Attachment C. 
 

List of Attachments: 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated April 30, 2014 – Informational item only. 

 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



Page 1 of 3

Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

Nossaman, LLP Pioneer Program  9/23/09 - 7/1/13 9/23/2009  $                    125,000.00 
Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 2/23/2010  $                      80,000.00 
NDOT Agmt No. P282-09-002  Amendment #2 10/6/2010  $                      30,000.00 

 Amendment #3 10/26/2010  $                      30,000.00 
 Amendment #4 8/31/2011  $                    365,000.00  $               630,000.00  $                 159,749.01 

Nossaman, LLP Project Neon  3/11/13 - 3/11/15 3/11/2013 1,400,000.00$                 
Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 1/14/2014 2,000,000.00$                 
NDOT Agmt No. P014-13-015

3,400,000.00$                 3,400,000.00$             $              1,995,639.71 
Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00030 1B
 Contract # 3407 (Wells Wildlife Crossing)
 NDOT Agmt No. P082-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14
Amendment #1

3/1/2012
9/12/13

 $150,000.00
20,000.00 

 $               170,000.00  $                   35,701.93 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT
1st JD 120C 00032 1B
Contract # 3377 (Kingsbury Grade)
 NDOT Agmt No. P083-12-004

3/1/2012 - 3/30/2015
Amendment #1
Amendment #2
Amendment #3

3/1/2012
2/18/13
9/12/13
1/17/14

 $150,000.00
$75,000.00
$70,000.00
825,000.00 

 $                1,120,000.00  $            1,120,000.00  $                 567,308.29 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Construction Claims Williams Brother, Inc.
Contract # 3392 (Various in Las Vegas) NDOT 
Agmt No. P084-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                        5,500.00 

 $                   5,500.00  $                         688.30 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders
8th JD - A-12-664693-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No  P192-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/15 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $               541,800.00  $                 420,269.71 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall
 8th JD - A-12-666487-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $               541,800.00  $                 406,972.83 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust
 8th JD - 12-665880-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004

10/23/12 - 10/12/14 10/23/2012  $                    475,725.00 

 $               475,725.00  $                 437,450.81 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust
 8th JD - A-12-671920-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P476-12-004

11/16/12 - 11/30/15 11/16/2012  $                    449,575.00 

 $               449,575.00  $                 435,030.96 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA
 8th JD - A-12-658642-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    455,525.00 

 $               455,525.00  $                 334,912.59 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980
 8th JD - 
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P507-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $               449,575.00  $                 423,204.43 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF APRIL 22, 2014
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Authority
Contract Authority 

Remaining

Attachment A



Page 2 of 3

Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF APRIL 22, 2014
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Authority
Contract Authority 

Remaining

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC
 8th JD - A-12-671915-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P501-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $               449,575.00  $                 238,431.51 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation
NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004

12/16/12 - 12/30/14 12/16/2012  $                    300,000.00 

 Amendment #1 8/12/2013  $                    850,000.00 
 Amendment #2 1/22/2014  $                    750,000.00 

 $                1,900,000.00  $            1,900,000.00  $                 291,154.64 

Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)
 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004

1/22/13 - 1/22/15 1/22/2013 $205,250.00 

 $               205,250.00  $                   87,562.02 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Wykoff
8th JD - A-12-656578-C
Warms Springs Project - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P071-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013 $275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                 103,342.23 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Railroad Pass
8th JD - A-12-665330-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P072-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                         798.29 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. K & L Dirt
8th JD - A-12-666050-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P073-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                 212,556.83 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs.  I-15 & Cactus
Cactus Project - Las Vegas
8th JD - A-12-664403-C
NDOT Agmt No. P074-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    200,000.00 

 $               200,000.00  $                 180,209.81 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT 
8th JD A-13-681291-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P127-13-004

 4/19/13 - 2/28/13 4/19/2013  $                    175,000.00 

 $               175,000.00  $                 154,371.77 

Watt, Tieder, Hoffar & Fitzgerald Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT
K3292 - I-580
2nd JD CV12-02093
NDOT Agmt No. P160-13-004

 4/30/13 - 4/30/15 4/30/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $               275,000.00  $                   60,176.66 

Attachment A



Page 3 of 3

Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF APRIL 22, 2014
Vendor Case/Project Name Contract and Amendment 

Amount
Total Contract 

Authority
Contract Authority 

Remaining

Sylvester & Polednak Fitzhouse Enterprises
(acquired title as Westcare)
8th JD - A-13-660564-C
Project Neon - Las Vegas
NDOT Agmt No. P201-13-004

 5/31/13 - 5/31/15 5/31/2013 290,000.00$                    

290,000.00$                 $                 201,596.86 

Chapman Law Firm 54 B LLC vs. Clark County & NDOT
8th JD - A-12-674009
NDOT Agmt No. P217-13-004

 6/6/13 - 11/30/15 6/6/2013 250,000.00$                    

250,000.00$                 $                 211,914.73 
Snell & Wilmer Meadow Valley Public Records

 Request K3399
NDOT Agmt No. P273-13-004

   

 7/18/13 - 7/30/14 7/18/2013 $30,000.00

30,000.00$                   $                   16,371.70 
Kemp, Jones, Coulthard Nassiri vs. NDOT

8th JD A672841
NDOT Agmt No. P290-13-004

 7/17/13 - 6/30/15 7/17/2013 280,000.00$                    

280,000.00$                 $                 154,381.60 
Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (Project Neon)

8th JD A640157
NDOT Agmt No. P291-13-004

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/2013 200,000.00$                    

200,000.00$                 $                           35.02 
Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT

(Cactus Direct and Inverse)
8th JD A-10-631520-C & A-12666482-C
NDOT Agmt No. P292-13-004

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/2013 250,000.00$                    

250,000.00$                 $                 196,095.99 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (South Point)
8th JD A-11-653502-C
NDOT Agmt No. P293-13-004

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/2013 70,000.00$                      

70,000.00$                   $                   35,344.18 

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard NDOT vs. City of Los Angeles
8th JD A-13-687717-C
Boulder City Bypass Project
NDOT Agmt No. P405-13-004

 9/1/13 - 9/30/15 9/1/2013 250,000.00$                    

250,000.00$                 $                 215,895.33 

Sylvester & Polednak NDOT vs. Smith Family Trust
8th JD A-13-687895-C
Project Neon
NDOT Agmt No. P465-13-004

 9/7/13 - 9/30/15 9/7/2013 280,000.00$                    

280,000.00$                 $                 270,951.29 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. LGC, 231, LLC
 

 12/20/13 - 12/15/15 12/20/2013 453,650.00$                    
8th JD 
NDOT Agrmt No. P561-13-004 453,650.00$                 $                 435,831.56 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Risk Management Analysis for Project NEON 1/13/14 - 12/13/17 1/13/2014  $                    900,000.00 

900,000.00$                 $                 451,662.18 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy 
cecommendations, negotiation support and 
advice regarding NEXTEL and Re-channeling 
of NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/2012  $                      77,750.00 

 $                 77,750.00  $                   76,340.00 
*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

Attachment A



Page 1

Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - April 22, 2014       

Fees Costs Total
Condemnations
NDOT vs. AD America, Inc.  (Cactus - Direct)   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 150,496.76$    27,732.45$     178,229.21$       
NDOT vs. Bawcon 4   Eminent domain - Elko
NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust, Carmine V.   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 13,108.25$      1,435.79$       14,544.04$        
NDOT vs. City of Los Angeles, et al.   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 31,491.50$      2,613.17$       34,104.67$        
NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare  Eminent domain  - Project Neon 56,525.00$      31,878.14$     88,403.14$        
NDOT vs. Gendall Trust   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 112,726.30$    22,100.87$     134,827.17$       
NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980, LLC   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 22,702.50$      3,668.07$       26,370.57$        
NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 173,935.11$    37,208.38$     211,143.49$       
NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 18,400.00$      1,390.19$       19,790.19$        
NDOT vs. Jenkins, Carrie, aka Carrie Sanders   Eminent domain - Project Neon 98,970.25$      22,560.04$     121,530.29$       
NDOT vs. Jericho Heights, LLC   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 849,800.00$    759,045.36$   1,608,845.36$    

NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 51,250.00$      11,193.17$     62,443.17$        
NDOT vs. KP & TP, LLC, Roohani, Khusrow   Eminent domain  - I-15 and Warm Springs 
NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA   Eminent domain - Project Neon 103,270.00$    17,342.41$     120,612.41$       
NDOT vs. Railroad Pass Investment Group   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 133,625.00$    140,576.71$   274,201.71$       
NDOT vs. Smith Family Trust, et al   Eminent domain - Project Neon 7,725.00$        1,323.71$       9,048.71$          
NDOT vs. Union Pacific Railroad Co.   Eminent domain - Recnstr.  of SR 317
NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 144,650.78$    27,006.99$     171,657.77$       
Nevada Power Company vs. Westcare, NDOT  - 8      Public utility seeks permanent easement

Inverse Condemnations
54 B LLC   Inverse condemnation 30,312.28$      7,772.99$       38,085.27$        
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON)   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 447,494.05$    104,525.51$   552,019.56$       
JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 18,255.25$      2,372.98$       20,628.23$        
Nassiri, Fred vs. NDOT  Inverse condemnation 122,592.68$    3,025.72$       125,618.40$       
P8 Arden, LLC vs. NDOT    Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road
Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT   Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 36,333.58$      1,940.61$       38,274.19$        

Cases Removed from Last Report: Disposition:

NDOT vs. Woodcock, Jack   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case Outside Counsel to Date

Eminent domain case settled and property 
acquired.

Attachment B



Page 2

Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - April 22, 2014 

Fees Costs Total
Torts
Antonio, James S. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Ariza, Ana, et al. vs. Wulfenstein, NDOT Plaintiff alleges wrongful death
Castro, Steve vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Deming, Jerry Lee vs. Manha, Granite, NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Discount Tire Company vs. NDOT; Fisher   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Francois, John A. vs. NDOT    Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Harper, Kenneth J. vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence/wrongful death
Harris Farm, Inc. vs NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Jorgenson & Koka, LLP Plaintiff alleges negligence causing property damage
Lopez, Jewelee Marie vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Marshall, Charles vs. State, NDOT   State awarded costs.  Appeal of arbitration pending.
Mullen, Janet vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges personal injury
NDOT vs. Tamietti   NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access
Oneal, Brenda vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Rodriguez and Martinez-Grazo vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing property damage
Slegers, Gloria vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Windrum, Richard & Michelle vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Zito, Adam vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence and property damage
Contract Disputes
Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT      Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3377, SR 207 499,511.50$    53,180.21$      552,691.71$                  
Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT      Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3407, US-93 130,043.00$    4,255.07$        134,298.07$                  
Personnel Matters
Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT  Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment  - discrimination
Cooper, Jennifer vs. State, NDOT   Plaintiff appeals trial verdict of alleged decrimination
Hettinger, Travis vs. State Employees  Plaintiff alleges wrongful termination

Lau, Stan vs. State, NDOT  

Nevada Supreme Court affirmed summary judgment
 and award of attorney fees and costs; attempting to 
collect fees and costs

Highlighted matters are new since last report.

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case
Outside Counsel to Date

Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  4/30/2014

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 
NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Yesterday Crashes Fatals Yesterday Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

4/29/2014 1 2 4/29/2013 1 1 0 1
MONTH 15 17 MONTH 21 21 -6 -4
YEAR 72 78 YEAR 85 91 -13 -13

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2013 AND 2014, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2013 2014 2013 2014

COUNTY 2013 2014 % 2013 2014 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 3 1 -66.67% 3 2 -33.33% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
CHURCHILL 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
CLARK 65 42 -35.38% 71 45 -36.62% 21 9 -57.14% 22 10 -54.55%
DOUGLAS 1 1 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
ELKO 0 2 200.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%
ESMERALDA 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
EUREKA 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%
HUMBOLDT 0 4 400.00% 0 4 400.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
LANDER 0 3 300.00% 0 3 300.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 2 200.00%
LINCOLN 3 0 -100.00% 3 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00%
LYON 0 5 500.00% 0 6 600.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 2 200.00%
MINERAL 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
NYE 4 1 -75.00% 4 1 -75.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
PERSHING 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
STOREY 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
WASHOE 8 10 25.00% 8 11 37.50% 3 1 -66.67% 3 2 -33.33%
WHITE PINE 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

YTD 85 72 -15.29% 91 78 -14.29% 29 16 -44.83% 30 18 -40.00%
TOTAL 13 246 ----- -70.7% 267 ----- -70.8% 56 ----- -71.43% 63 ----- -71.43%

2013 AND 2014 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON VERY PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2013 AND 2014, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014

COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2013 2014 % Motor- Motor- % 2013 2014 % Other Other

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change

moped,sc

ooter,atv

moped,sc

ooter,atv

CARSON 1 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CHURCHILL 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CLARK 41 17 -58.54% 19 13 -31.58% 9 12 33.33% 2 0 -100.00% 0 3

DOUGLAS 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

ELKO 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

ESMERALDA 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

EUREKA 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

HUMBOLDT 0 4 400.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LANDER 0 2 200.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LINCOLN 3 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LYON 0 3 300.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

MINERAL 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

NYE 1 1 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

PERSHING 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

STOREY 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

WASHOE 4 5 25.00% 1 4 300.00% 3 2 -33.33% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

WHITE PINE 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

YTD 52 37 -28.85% 23 20 -13.04% 14 18 28.57% 2 0 -100.00% 0 3

TOTAL 13 132 ----- -71.97% 70 ----- -71.43% 53 ----- -66.04% 7 ----- -100.00% 5 -----

Total 2013 267

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Attachment C


	Agenda
	Item #3
	Item #4
	Item #4 Attachment A

	Item #5
	Item #5 Attachment A

	Item #6
	Item #6 Attachment A
	Item #6 Attachment B

	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #9 Attachment 1
	Item #9 Attachment 2
	Item #9 Attachment 3
	Item #9 Attachment 4

	Item #10
	Item #10 Attachment 1
	Item #10 Attachment 2
	Item #10 Attachment 3

	Item #11
	Item #11 Attachment A
	Item #11 Attachment B

	Item #12
	Item #12 Attachment A
	Item #12 Attachment B

	Item #13
	Item #13 Attachment A
	Item #13 Attachment B
	Item #13 Attachment C




